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---------------r:i--NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 31,. Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Members of PHOENIX TOWNSIDP LIMITED 
(CIN-L67190GA1993PLC001327) will be held on Saturday, September 28th, 2024 at 03.30 P.M. IST through Video Conference ("VC")/ 
Other Audio Visual Means ("OA VM") facility to transact the following items ofbusiness: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

(a) The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2024, containing the Audited Balance Sheet, the 

Statement of Change in Equity, Profit and Loss, Cash Flow statement and report of the Board and Auditors thereon, on that date. 

(b) The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2024, containing the Audited Balance Sheet, 

the Statement of Change in the Equity, Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement and report of the Auditors thereon, on that date. 

2. To declare Final Dividend of2.5% i.e. Rs. 0.25/- per Equity Share of Rs. l 0/-each and l % i.e. Rs. 0.10/- per preference share ofRs. 10/­

each for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

3.To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Shibanee Manish Harlalka (DIN: 00507607), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 

herself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. To Aimoint Dr.Anita Rahul Shantaram <DIN: 00786517). as an Independent Director of the Company. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s ), the following Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 150, 152, 161 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory amendment(s) or modification(s) thereto or enactment(s) or re-enactment(s) 

thereof for the time being in force) and on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the 

Board of Directors of the Company, Dr. Anita Rahul Shantaram {DIN: 00786517) who was appointed as an Additional Director 

designated as an Independent Director of the Company on August 14, 2024 and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in 

writing from a Member proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the 

Company; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory amendment(s) or modification(s) 

thereto or enactment(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification( s) or 

amendment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Dr. Anita Rahul Shantaram {DIN: 00786517) Director of the Company be and is 

hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for first term of 5 (Five) consecutive years with effect 

from August 14, 2024 to August 13, 2029, and that she shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors and/or the Company Secretary, be and are hereby authorized to settle any 

question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this Resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be 

necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution. 

5. APPROVAL OF LOANS. INVESTMENTS. GUARANTEE OR SECURITY UNDER SECTION 185 OF COMPANIES ACT. 2013: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification( s ), the following resolution as Special Resolution: 

01 
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r:J PllOENIXIDWNSllIPLIMIIED ---------------r:i--
"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier resolution and pursuant to Section 185 and all other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 and Rules made thereunder as amended from time to 

time, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 

referred to as the Board, which term shall be deemed to include, unless the context otherwise required, any committee of the 

Board or any director or officer(s) authorised by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board subject to the 

approval of members of the company through this general meeting under this resolution) to advance any loan including any 

loan represented by a book debt, or give any guarantee or provide any security in connection with any loan taken by any 

entity which is a subsidiary or associate or joint venture of the Company, (in which any director is deemed to be interested) 

upto an aggregate sum of Rs. 100 Crore in their absolute discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, 

provided that such loans are utilized by the borrowing company for its principal business activities." 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or the Company Secretary, be and are hereby authorised to settle any 
question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this Resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be 
necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution." 

6. TO MAKE LOANS OR INVESTMENT(S) OR PROVIDE SECURITY AND GUARANTEE IN EXCESS OF THE PRESCRIBED LIMITS 

UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification( s ), the following resolution as Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier resolution and pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 and other applicable 
provisions ifany of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meeting ofBoard and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subjectto such approvals as may be necessary 
and subject to the compliance of applicable laws, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors 
and the Audit Committee from time to time to: 

a) give loan to any person or body corporate or give guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other 

person or body corporate provided that the aggregate amount of such loan investment and guarantee outstanding at 

any time shall not exceed Rs. 3 50 Crore; and 

b) Make investment and acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise securities of any other body corporate by 

cash or swap of shares or other mode or any combination hereof provided that the total amount of such investments 

outstanding at any time shall not exceed Rs. 3 50 Crore 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or a duly constituted Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to decide and 
finalize the terms and conditions while making investment giving loan or guarantee or providing securities within the aforesaid 
limits including with the power to transfer and dispose of the investments so made from time to time and to execute all deeds 
documents and other writings and to do all such acts deeds matters and things as may be necessary and expedient for 
implementing and giving effect to this resolution." 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or the Company Secretary, be and are hereby authorised to settle any 
question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this Resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be 
necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution." 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: August 14, 2024 
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By Order of the Board 

Phoenix Township Limited 

Sd/-

Mr. Samit Prafulla Hede 

Managing Director 

DIN-01411689 
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1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the 

Companies Act, in respect of the SPECIAL BUSINESS 

to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto and 

forms part of this Notice. The details relevant to 

Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), in 

respect of Director seeking reappointment, are annexed 

with the Notice. 

2. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its 

circulars dated May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, 

December 8, 2021, December 14, 2021 and May 5, 2022 

read with the circular dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 

and December 28, 2022 (collectively referred as "MCA 

circulars") and Securities and Exchange Board of India 

("SEBI") vide its circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 

15, 2021, May 13, 2022 and January 5, 2023 

(collectively referred to as "SEBI Circulars") permitted 

the holding of Annual General Meeting ("AGM") 

through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of 

the Members at a common venue till 30th September 

2024. In compliance with the MCA circulars and SEBI 

circulars, the 31st AGM of the Members of the Company 

is being held through VC/OAVM. The registered office 

of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the 

AGM. 

3. The Register of Members will remain closed from Friday, 

September 20, 2024 to Saturday, September 28, 2024 (both days 

inclusive). Friday, September 20, 2024 shall be the cut-off date as 

on which the right of voting of the Members shall be reckoned 

and a person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should 

treat this Notice for information purposes only. 

4. Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are 

requested to register the same with their Depository Participants 

in case the shares are held by them in dematerialized form and 

with the Company in case the shares are held by them in physJical 

form. 

5. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, securities 

of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized 

form with effect from April 01, 2019, except in case of request 

received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view 

of this, Members holding shares in physical form are requested 

to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

6. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 

mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) 

by every participant in securities market. Members holding 

shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the 

PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are 

maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 

physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company/ 

Registrars and Transfer Agents. 

7. Equity shares of the Company are under compulsory Demat 

trading by all Investors. Those shareholders who have not 

dematerialized their equity shares are advised to dematerialize 

their shareholding, to avoid inconvenience in future. 

8. The shareholders who are holding shares in demat form and have 

not yet registered their e-mail IDs, are requested to register their 

e-mail IDs with their Depository Participant at the earliest, to 

enable the Company to use the same for serving documents to 

them electronically, hereinafter. Shareholders holding shares in 

physical form may kindly provide their e-mail IDs to the RTA by 

sending an e-mail to Adroit Corporate Services Private Limited at 

prafuls@adroitcorporate.com. The Annual Report of the 

Company would also be made available on the Company's 

website www.hbeindia.com. 

9. D i v i d e n d R e I a t e d i n f o r m a t i o n : 

a) During the year 2023-2024, the Company declared 

Dividend of 2.5% i.e. Rs. 0.25/- per Equity Share of Rs. 10/­

each and 1% i.e. Rs. 0.10/- per preference share of Rs. 10/­

each forthe financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

b) Members may note that pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020 

dividends paid or distributed by a Company after April 1, 

2020 shall be taxable in the hands of Members. The Company 

shall therefore be required to deduct tax at source at the time 

of making payment of the said Final Dividend. 

c) Subject to approval of members at the AGM the dividend 

will be paid within 30 days from the date conclusion of AGM, 

to the members whose names appear on the Company' 

Register of Members as on the Record Date. Payment of 

Dividend shall be made through electronic mode to the 

Shareholders who have updated their bank account details. 

Dividend warrants /demand drafts will be dispatched to the 
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r:J PllOEINllXIDWNSllIPLIMIIED ---------------r:i--NOTES 

1. Registered address of the shareholders who have not 3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 

updated their bank account details. Members are requested 

to register/ updated their complete bank details: 

1. With Depository Participant(s) with whom they maintain 

their demat accounts if shares are held in dematerialized 

mode by submitting the requisite documents and 

2. With Company (Phoenix Township Limited) at 

complaince@hbgindia.com / RTA (Adroit Corporate Services 

Private Limited) at sshetty@adroitcorporate.com. 

pratapp@adroitcorporate by submitting the requisite 

documents if shares are held in physical forms. 

CDSL E·VOTING SYSTEM- FORE-VOTING AND JOINING 

VIRTUAL MEETINGS. 

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to 

minutes before and after the scheduled time of the \ 

commencement of the Meeting by following the 

'procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 

participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 

available toat least 1000 members on first come first served 

basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 

holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 

Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 

Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 

without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through 

VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the 

quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

COVID-19 global pandemic, the general meetings of the 5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 

companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 

14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17 /2020 dated 

April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. 

The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video 

conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM). 

Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing 

the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the 

members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance 

of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

representatives of the members such as the President of India 

or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the 

AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 

AGMthroughVC/OAVM. 6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 

Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA 

Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 

2020, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to 

its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 

AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 

agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

(CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 

authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a 

member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system 

on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

Circular No. 17 /2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice 

calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the 

Company at http://hbgindia.com/ . The Notice can also be 

accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE 

Limited at www.bseindia.com respectively. The AGM Notice 

is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for 

providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system 

during the AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com. 
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---------------r:i--
7. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in 

compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 

and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA 

Circular No. 20/2020 dated May OS, 2020. 

8. In continuation of this Ministry's General Circular No. 

20/2020, 02/2022 dated 05th May, 2022 and after due 

examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose 

AGMs were due to be held in the year 2022, to conduct their 

AGMs on or before 30.09.2022, in accordance with the 

requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General 

Circular No. 20/2020 as per MCA circular no. 02/2021 dated 

January,13,2021. 

9. The Board has appointed Mis. Kothari H. & Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretaries firm represented by Mr. Hitesh 

Kothari (Partner of Kothari H. & Associates) & Mrs. Sonam Jain 

- (Partner of Kothari H. & Associates) Company Secretary, as a 

scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in 

a fair and transparent manner. 

The Scrutinizer shall from the conclusion of voting at the 
meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter 
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of 
at least two witnesses, not in the employment of the Company, 
and make a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in 
favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or in his absence to any 
other Director authorised by the Board. 

The Chairman or in his absence any other Director authorized by 
the Board shall forthwith on receipt of the Consolidated 
Scrutinizer's Report, declare the results of the voting. 

The results of voting will be declared and published, along with 
consolidated Scrutinizer's Report, on the website of the Company 
www.hbgindia.com,and on CDSL website 
www.evotingindia.comand the same shall also be simultaneously 
communicated to the BSE Limited within two working days from 
the Conclusion of the A GM. 

INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING 
AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER: 

The Notice is being sent to all the members, whose names 

appeared in the Register of Members I records of depositories as 

beneficial owners, as on Friday, August 30, 2024. 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting 
system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in demat 
mode. 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of 
shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual 
shareholders in demat mode. 

(i) The voting period will begin on Wednesday, September 25, 

2024 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 

5.00 p.m. During this period, Shareholders of the Company 

holding shares either in physical or dematerialized form, as on the 

cut-off date (record date) of Friday, September 20, 2024 may 

cast their vote electronically. The e-Voting module shall be 

disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting 

date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, 

under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting 

facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' 

resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation 

by the public non-institutional shareholders'/retail shareholders is 

at a negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) 

providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This 

necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of 

multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant 
to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to 
all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of 
Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders 
would be able to cast their vote without having to register again 
with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of 
participating in e-voting process. 

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting 
system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in demat 
mode. 

(iv) I n t e r m s o f S E B I c i r c u 1 a r n o • 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 

2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies. 
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Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with De_positories 

and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to 

access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method fore-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 

Type of Login Method 
shareholders 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in Demat mode 
with CDSL 
Depository 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL 
Depository 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
Depository 
Participants (DP) 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi /Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e -Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login to Easi / 
Easiest are requested to visit eds! website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab. 
2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e -Voting option for eligible companies 
where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user 
will be able to see e-Voting page of thee-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e -Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at eds! website www.cdslindia.com 
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then die k on registration option. 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e -Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. 
from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will auth enticate the user by sending OTP 
on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see 
thee-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of al 1 e-Voting Service 
Providers. 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e -Services website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the following URL: https:Ueservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 
a mobile. Once the home page of e -Services is launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login" 
which is available under 'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e -Voting services. Click on "Access to e -
Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e -Voting page. Click on c ompanyname ore-Voting 
service provider name and you will be re -directed toe -Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered fo r IDeAS e -Services, option to register is available at 
https:Ueservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or click at 
https:Ueservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit thee -Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https:ljwww.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mo bi le. Once the home page of e -Voting 
system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under 'Shareholder /Member' section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you 
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e -Voting page. Click on company name ore -
Voting service provider name and you will be redir ected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered 
with NSDL/CDSL fore-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e -Voting option. Once you click one­
Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see 
e-Voting feature. Click on company name ore -Voting service provider name and you will be redirected toe -Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e -Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID I Password are advised to use Forget User 
ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can 
securities in Demat mode with contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
CDSL helQdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 

toll free no.1800 22 55 33 
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can 
securities in Demat mode with contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
NSDL evotina:@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 02i 

4886 7000 and 022-2499 7000 
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of 
shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual 
shareholders in demat mode. 

(i) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 

Physical shareholders and shareholders other than 

individual holding in Demat form. 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 

www.evotingindia.com. 

2) Click on "Shareholders" module. 

3) NowenteryourUserID 

a. ForCDSL: 16digitsbeneficiaryID, 

For Physical shareholders and other 
De mat. 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter 

Folio Number registered with the Company. 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on 

Login. 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to 

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any 

company, then your existing password is to be used. 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

than individual shareholders holding shares in 

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 
demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with th e Company /Depository Participant are 
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company /RTA or contact Company /RTA. 

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
Bank demat account or in the company records in order to login. 
Details If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company; please enter the member id 
OR Date / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 
of Birth 
(DOB) 
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(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on 

"SUBMIT" tab. 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then 

directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 

'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to 

mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 

Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat 

holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which 

they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts fore-voting 

through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share 

your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential. 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the 

details can be used only fore-voting on the resolutions contained 

in this Notice. 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Phoenix Township 

Limited> on which you choose to vote. 

(x) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION 

DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option "YES/NO" for 

voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES 

implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies 

that you dissent to the Resolution. 

(xi) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to 

view the entire Resolution details. 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, 

click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 

wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK'', else to change your 

vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xiii) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you 

will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on 

"Click here to print" option on the Voting page. 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password, 

then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click 

on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the 

system. 
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(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any 

uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for 

verification. 

Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and 

Custodians-For Remote Voting only. 

· Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, 

HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to 

www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the 

"Corporate" module. 

· A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp 

and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

· After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be 

created using the admin login and password. The Compliance 

User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to 

vote on. 

· The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped 

automatically & can be de link in case of any wrong mapping. 

· It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution 

and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of 

the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the 

system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

· Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required 

mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 

etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly 

authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 

Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 

complaince@hbgindia.com, if they have voted from individual 

tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the 

scrutinizer to verify the same. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING 

THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING 

MEETING AREAS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the 

day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

e-voting. 
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2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available 

where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after successful 

login as per the instructions mentioned above fore-voting. 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will 

be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be 

eligible to vote at the A GM. 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through 

Laptops I !Pads for better experience. 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and 

use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the 

meeting. 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile 

Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 

Hotspot may experience AudioMdeo loss due to Fluctuation in 

their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use 

Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 

aforesaid glitches. 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask 

questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 

speaker by sending their request in advance at least 10 days prior 

to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 

number, email id, mobile number at 

complaince@hbgindia.com. The shareholders who do not wish to 

speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in 

advance 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

complaince@hbgindia.com. These queries will be replied to by 

the company suitably by email. 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a 

speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions 

during the meeting. 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM 

through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the 

Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 

barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 

system available during theAGM. 
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10.If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through thee-voting 

available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have not 

participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the 

votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as the 

facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 

shareholders attending the meeting. 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE 

EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 

THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details 

like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 

certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of 

PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar 

Card) by email to 

complaince@hbgindia.com/prafuls@adroitcorporate.com. 

2. For Demat shareholders, please update your email id & 

mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders - Please update your email 

id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 

which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings 

through Depository. 

4. If you have any queries or issues regarding attendingAGM & 

e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email 

tohelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 

and022-23058542/43. 

5. All grievances connected with the facility for voting by 

electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. 

Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, 

A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 

Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai -

400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 

call on 022-23058542/43. 

6. The Statutory Registers and documents in accordance with the 

Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection in 

electronic mode. 

The result of the voting shall be displayed on the Notice Board of 
the Company at its Registered Office and Corporate Office. The 
result along with the Scrutinizers' Report shall also be placed on 
the website of the Companywww.hbgindia.com and ofCDSL. 
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7. Members may also write to the Company Secretary in case of grievances connected with voting by electronic means at the mail id: 
complaince@hbgindia.com. 

IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO THEMEMBERS 

1. Mandatory update of PAN and Bank Details Pursuant to SEBI Circular SEBl/HO/MIRSD/DOPl/CIR/P/2018173 dated 20th April, 2018, 
shareholders holding shares in physical form whose folio do not have I have incomplete details with respect to PAN and bank particulars 
are mandatorily required to furnish the PAN and bank account details to the Company/Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA) for registration 
undertheir folio. Hence, the shareholders are requested to update their PAN and bank details. 

2. Compulsory Dematerialization of shares oflisted company: As per SEBI Notification No. SEBl/LADNRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 
2018 and further amendment vide Notification No. SEBl/LADNRO/GN/2018/49dated November 30, 2018, w.e.f. April 1, 2019 the 
transfer of securities oflisted companies shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form (Demat) with a 
depository. Hence, the members of the company are requested to dematerialize their shareholding to avail the benefits of dematerialization 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: August 14, 2024 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

By Order of the Board 

Phoenix Township Limited 

Sd/-

Mr. Samit Bede 

Managing Director 

DIN-01411689 
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM 3 & 4 OF THE NOTICE 

Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to Regulation 
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries oflndia. 

Name of the Director 

Director Identification Number 
(DIN) 

Date of Birth 

Nationality 

Mrs. Shibanee Manish Harlalka 

00507607 

03/04/1972 

Indian 

Date of Appointment/Re 09/02/2016 
Appointment on Board 
Qualification Graduate in Commerce. 

Expertise in specific functional Area She has a good experience in 
various industries. 
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Dr. Anita Rahul Shantaram 

00786517 

07/07/1968 

Indian 

14/08/2024 

Post-graduate in Industrial 
Psychology, Bombay University, 1990. 
An Independent Director on multiple 
boards, Dr. Anita Shantaram has over 
30 years of corporate training and 
teaching experience. She has 
completed her PhD titled 'Ethical 
Business Practices and Corporate 
Financial Performance: An Empirical 
Analysis' from BITS Pilani in 2015 and 
soon thereafter founded Ethics India 
that has since been acquired by 
Legasis Services. 

She is certified as a Leading 
Professional in Ethics and Compliance 
by ECI, U.S.A, after completing the 
executive-education program 
"Managing Ethics in Organizations" 
from Bentley University, Boston. Dr. 
Shantaram has set up an online 
certification platform which has 
courses in the GRACE (Governance, 
Risk Assurance, Compliance and 
Ethics) area. A post -graduate in 
Industrial Psychology, Bombay 
University, 1990, Dr. Anita Shantaram 
has received the Outstanding Teacher 
Award in the area of Business Ethics 
by the Higher Education Forum in 
2013. She has been committed to 
teaching and has impacted students 
across multiple institutes such as IIT 
Bombay (SOM), NMIMS, and IIM 
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has received the Outstanding Teacher 
Award in the area of Business Ethics 
by the Higher Education Forum in 2013. 
She has been committed to teaching and 
has impacted students across multiple 
institutes such as lIT Bombay (SOM), 
NMIMS, and lIM Rohtak. She has been 
guest faculty to various Management 
Institutes and has conducted 1500+ 
workshops in India, Dubai and Jordan 
for organizations such as Larsen and 
Toubro, the Tata Group, IDBI, Motorola, 
Great Eastern Shipping, MUST 
Garments, Utmost Group and Intertec 
Systems among others. 

She conducts Ethics Audits and helps 
organizations set up E&C programs, has 
been an external member for POSH, and 
has also been on the Academic Advisory 
Board of several institutes. Dr. Anita 
Shantaram regularly writes on the 
subject of Business Ethics, and has 
published 7 papers on the same. She has 
also been Rotary Club President and 
held various Club and District positions. 

Shareholding in Company Equity Shares-19,46,190 NIL 

Number ofBoard Meetings B NIL 

attended during the year 

List of Directorships held in other 1 Rama Capfin Private Limited I.Responsive Industries Limited 

Companies 2. Hede Consultancy Company Private 2.Gujarat Insecticides Limited 

Limited 3.Abans Jewels Limited 

4.Abans Enterprises Limited 

5. Bharat Wire Ropes Limited 

6. Centre for Leadership and 

Od Private Limited 

7. Ethics Research and Consulting 

Private Limited 

8. Grid Consultants Pvt. Ltd 

Memberships / Chairmanships of 

Audit and Stakeholders' Relationship 

Committees across other Public NIL NIL 

Companies 

NIL 

Relationship between Yes 

Directors inter-se (She is sister of Mr. Samit Hede) 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

ITEM NO. 4 TO REGULARIZE/ APPOINT DR. ANITA 
RAHULSHANTARAMASNON-EXECUTIVE 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY. 

As per Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014 and rule 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable rules 
regulations every Listed Company shall have requisite number of 
directors as Independent Directors on the board. 

In order to comply with the provisions of Section 149(4) of 
Companies Act 2013 it is proposed to regularise appointment of 
Dr. Anita Rahul Shantaram (Din: 00786517) from Additional 
Independent Director to Independent Director of the Company. 

The Company has received following declaration and documents 
from Dr. Anita Rahul Shantaram (Din: 00786517): 

I. consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2 pursuant 
to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 

II. intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of Rule 14 of the said 
Rules to the effect that he is not disqualified under subsection (2) 
of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming his 
eligibility for such appointment and 

III. a declaration to the effect that she meets the criteria of 
Independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 any person appointed as an additional director can 
hold office upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Since Dr. Anita Rahul Shantaram (Din: 00786517) was appointed 
as an Additional Director on the board on 14th August, 2024 and 
her term of office will expire on the day of AGM. However, she 
can be regularized as a Director with the approval of members of 
the Company at general meeting. She is qualified the Independent 
Director's Examination and fulfils the conditions for their 
appointment as Independent Director as specified in the Act and 
Listing Regulations. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 
recommended the appointment of Dr. Anita Rahul Shantaram 
(Din: 00786517) as an Independent Director for a period of 5 
years. She is not liable to retire by rotation. 

In the opinion of the Board Dr. Anita Rahul Shantaram (Din: 
00786517) fulfils the conditions as specified in the Act and the 
Rules framed thereunder for appointment as Independent 
Director and she is independent from the management. 
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In compliance with the provisions of section 149 read with 
Schedule IV of the Act the appointment of Dr. Anita Rahul 
Shantaram (Din: 00786517) as an Independent non-executive 
Director is now being placed before the Members for their 
approval. 

Copy of the letter of appointment issued to Dr. Anita Rahul 
Shantaram (Din: 00786517) setting out the terms and conditions 
of appointment is available for inspection by the members 
electronically. Members seeking to inspect the same can send an 
email to complaince@hbgindia.com 

Dr. Anita Rahul Shantaram (Din: 00786517) being appointed is 
interested in her appointment. Besides this none of the other 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are in 
any way concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the 
said resolutions. 

The Board of Directors commends the Special Resolution set out 
at Item No. 3 of this Notice for approval by the members. 

ITEM NO. 5: APPROVAL OF LOANS. INVESTMENTS. 
GUARANTEE OR SECURITY UNDER SECTION 185 OF 
COMPANIES A CT. 2013: 

The Company is expected to render support for the business 
requirements of other companies in the group, from time to time. 
However, owing to certain restrictive provisions contained in the 
Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company would be 
unable to extend financial assistance by way ofloan, guarantee or 
security to other entities in the group. 

In the light of provisions of Section 185 of Companies Act, 2013, 
the Company with the approval of members by way of special 
resolution, would be in a position to provide financial assistance 
by way ofloan to other entities in the group or give guarantee or 
provide security in respect of loans taken by such entities, for 
their principal business activities. 

The members may note that board of directors would carefully 
evaluate proposals and provide such loan, guarantee or security 
proposals through deployment of funds out of internal resources I 
accruals and I or any other appropriate sources, from time to time, 
only for principal business activities of any other entities in group 
up to an aggregate sum ofRs. 100 Crore. 

Hence, in order to enable the company to advance loan to 
Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures /associates/ other Companies/ Firms 
in which Directors are interested directly or indirectly under 
section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires approval of 
members by a Special Resolution. 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out at 
Item No. 5 for approval of the members as Special resolution. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 
relatives is any way concerned or interested financially or 
otherwise in the resolution except to the extent of their 
shareholding, if any. 
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ITEM NO. 6: TO MAKE LOANS ORINVESTMENT(S) OR PROVIDE SECURITY AND GUARANTEE IN EXCESS OF THE 
PRESCRIBED LIMITS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES A CT, 2013. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, no Company shall directly or indirectly, 
without prior approval by means of special resolution passed at a general meeting, give any loan to any person or other body corporate or 
give guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person and acquire by way of subscription, 
purchase or otherwise the securities of any other body corporate, exceeding Rs. 350 Crore of its paid up capital, free reserves and 
securities premium account or one hundred percent of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more. 

Accordingly, present resolution is proposed for approval of the members to authorize the board of directors of the Company to: 

a) give loan to any person or body corporate or give guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other person or body 
corporate provided that the aggregate amount of such loan investment and guarantee outstanding at any time shall not exceed Rs. 350 
Crore ; 

b) Make investment and acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise securities of any other body corporate by cash or swap 
of shares or other mode or any combination hereof provided that the total amount of such investments outstanding at any time shall not 
exceed Rs. 350 Crore; and which exceeds the prescribed ceiling under Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013. 

The Board ofDirectors recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 6 for approval of the members as Special resolution. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives is any way concerned or interested financially orotherwise in the 
resolution. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: August 14, 2024 
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By Order of the Board 

Phoenix Township Limited 

Sd/-

Mr. Samit Bede 

Managing Director 

DIN-01411689 
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Directors Report 

To 
The Members, 
Phoenix Township Limited 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 31st Annual Report together with Audited Financial Statements of the Company 
for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024. 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/ PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY 

The highlights of the financial results are given below: 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Standalone Consolidated Standalone Consolidated 
Total Income 2,954.44 2,954.44 2,623.35 2,623.34 
Less: Total 2,361.10 2,364.21 2,155.09 2,155.09 
Expenditure 
Profit Before 593.33 590.23 468.26 468.25 
Interest, 
Depreciation and 
Tax 
Less: Depreciation 195.97 195.98 216.48 216.48 
Less: Interest 148.38 148.38 152.53 152.53 
Profit Before 248.97 245.87 99.25 99.25 
Extraordinary 
Items and Tax 
Less: Extra -Ordinary 19468.19 19468.19 - -
Items 
Profitj(Loss) 19,717.17 19,714.06 99.25 99.25 
Before Tax 
Less: Tax Expense 

(a) Current 62.24 61.47 24.81 24.81 
Tax 

(b) Deferred Tax 12.09 12.09 6.50 6.50 

Less: Other - - 8.20 8.20 
Comprehensive 
Income 
Profit /(Loss) For 19642.842 19640.51 76.13 76.13 
The Year 
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2. PERFORMANCE IDGHLIGHTS: 

Standalone: 

Your Company recorded a turnover of Rs. 2954.443 Lakhs as 

against Rs. 2623.35 Lakhs in previous financial year. The 

Company registered profit before tax of Rs. 248.979 Lakhs for 

the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 against a profit before 

tax of Rs. 99.25 Lakhs in the previous financial year and the 

Profit after Tax for the current year is Rs. 19,642.842 Lakhs as 

compared to Rs. 76.13 Lakhs incurred in the previous year. It 

resulted in considerable improvement in the performance during 

the year under review. 

Consolidated: 

Your Group earned total income of Rs. 2954.443 Lakhs during 

the period under review. 

Your Group earned profit before tax of Rs. 245.871 Lacs and 

Profit after Tax ofRs. 19640.511 during the year under review. 

The Company's performance and outlook for the year under 

review has been discussed in detail in Management Discussion 

andAnalysis which forms a part of this Report. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As per Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing 
Regulations") and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") read with the Rules made thereunder (as 
amended from time to time), the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of your Company for the FY 2023-24 have been 
prepared in compliance with applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards and on the basis of the Audited Financial Statements of 
your Company and its subsidiary, as approved by the respective 
Board of Directors ("Board"). The Consolidated Financial 
Statements together with the Auditors' Report is forming part of 
the Annual Report. 

3. CHANGEINTHENATUREOFBUSINESS 

There is no change in the business activity of the Company. 
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4. DIVIDEND 

Your Directors have recommended final Dividend of 2.5% i.e. 
Rs. 0.25/-per Equity Share ofRs. 10/- each and 1 % i.e. Rs. 0.10/­
per preference share of Rs. 10/- each for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024. 

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVE 

The Profit for the Year of Rs. 19642.842Lakhs is credited to the 
Profit and Loss account. 

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY HAVING OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF 
THE FINANCIAL YEARAND TILL THE DATE OF TIDS 
REPORT 

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of the Company which have occurred between 
the ends of the financial year i.e. 31st March, 2024 and as on the 
date of this report. 

7. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL 
ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN 
STATUS AND THE COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN 
FUTURE 

No significant and material orders have been passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and the Company's operations in future. 

8.DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT 
VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The Company has 1 (one) Subsidiary as on March 31, 2024: 

Green First Estate Private Limited is engaged in the business of 
Real estate activities on a fee or contract basis. 

The Company was incorporated on November 17, 2023. The net 
loss forthe year ended March 31, 2024 was Rs. (3 .11 Lakhs) 

The Company does not have any associate and joint venture 
company. Pursuant to Section 129 of the Act read with Rule 5of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the report on the 
performance and financial position of Subsidiary Company 
in Form AOC-lis attached herewith as 'Annexure I' and forms 
part of this Report. The statement also provides highlights of 
the performance and financial position of the subsidiary and 
their contribution to the overall performance of your 
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Company in Form AOC-lis attached herewith as 'Annexure I' 
and forms part of this Report. The statement also provides 
highlights of the performance and financial position of the 
subsidiary and their contribution to the overall performance of 
your Company as per Rule 8(1) the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules,2014. 

The Audited Financial Statements of the said Subsidiary 
Company is available on Company's website and shall ~lso be 
made available for inspection by any member at the Registered 
Office of the Company during business hours on working da~s 
up to the date of the ensuing AGM. Any m~mber,. who. 1s 
interested in obtaining a copy of the Audited Fmancial 
Statements of the Subsidiary Companies, may write to the 
Company Secretary of Company. 

Pursuantto the provisions of Section 136 of the Act the Audited 
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company along with relevant documents are available on the 
Company's website. 

9. DEPOSITS 

During the year under review, your Company did not accept any 

deposits in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014. No 

amounts were outstanding which were classified as Deposit 

under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as 

on the balance sheet date. 

10. SHARE CAPITAL 

As on 31" March, 2024, the Company is having an Authorized 
share capital of Rs. 28,00,00,000/- comprising of 202,00,000 
Equity Shares of Rs. l 0 each and 78,00,000 Preference shares of 
Rs. 1 O each. The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share 
Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 is Rs. 
13,98,42,600 and the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Prefe.rence 
Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 1s Rs. 
76,966,080. 

During the year under review, the Company has not is~ued 
shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options 
nor sweat equity. 

The Company has not made any purchase or provision of its own 
shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees 
during the financial year 2023-2024. 

11. ANNUALRETURN 

The Annual Return in Form MGT-7 for the financial year ended, 
31''March,2024, is available on the website of the Company at 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

http://www.hbgindia.com/lnvestor-Information.html 

12. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL 

FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate 
with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The scope 
and authority of the Internal Audit (IA) function is to maintain its 
objectivity and independence. Based on the repo~ of ill;tem~l 
audit function, process owners undertake corrective action m 
their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. 
Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are 
presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

13. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO 

The particulars prescribed under Section 134 of ~e Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, relating to Conservation of Energy, Techn~logy 
Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are furnished 
in" AnnexureA" to this Report. 

14. AUDITORS 

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND STATUTORY AUDIT 
REPORT 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Companies Act, 
2013 the members at the Annual General Meeting of the 
Com~any held on 28th September, 2022 re-appointed Mis. 
Bhatter & Company., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm 
Registration No. 131092W), as th statutory auditors ~f the 
Company from the conclusion of29 Annual General Meeting up 
to the conclusion of34th Annual General Meeting to be held in the 
year 2027 covering second term of five consecutive years. 

Mis. Bhatter & Company, Statutory Auditor of the Company has 
audited books of account of the Company for the financial years 
ended March 31, 2024 and have issued the Auditor's Report 
thereon. There are no qualifications or reservation or adverse 
remarks or disclaimers in the said report. 

The Statutory Auditors Mis. Bhatter & Company., Chartered 
Accountants have issued their reports on Standalone & 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year 2023-
2024. 

No frauds have been reported by the Statutory Auditors during 
the financial year 2023-2024 pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND SECRETARIAL 
AUDIT REPORT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed 
Mis. Kothari H. &Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, 
to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for financial 
year ended 31" March, 2024. The Report of the Secretarial Audit 
s annexed herewith as "Annexure B". 

INTERNALAUDITORS 

Your Company had designated Bharat Gupta & Co. Chartered 
Accountants as an Internal Auditor of your Company, in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Act and 
Rules framed thereunder. 

Internal Audit Reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee of 
your Company at their meetings held during quarterly intervals. 
Internal Auditor carried out his functions as per the scope of 
work assigned and placed his reports at the meetings of the Audit 
Committee, during quarterly intervals. 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and the 
Secretarial Auditors have not reported to the Audit 
Committee/Board pursuant to Section 143 (12) of the Act, any 
instances of frauds committed in your Company by its officers or 
employees, the details of which needs to be mentioned in this 
Report. 

15. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

A) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

• In accordance with provisions of Sections 149, 152 read 

with Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Surendra Ambalal Dave (DIN: 

07969034), who was appointed as an Independent Director of 

the Company at the board meeting dated 30" May, 2019 and 

members' approval regarding the same taken at 26" Annual 

General Meeting of the Company and who holds office up to 28" 

September, 2024 would now vacate the office due to completion 

of term often years. The Board ofDirectors had placed on record 

a deep appreciation n for the valuable services rendered by Mr. 

Surendra Ambalal Dave during his tenure as Independent Non­

Executive Director of the Company. 
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• Mrs. Kavita Chajjer, Company Secretary had resigned from 
the post of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 
Company w.e.f 31" March, 2023, however, pursuant to Section 
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and on the recommendations of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the board has 
appointed Mrs. Hunny Mehta as Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f 14" August, 2023but 
due to personal reason she resigned from the post of Company 
Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f 06" 
February, 2024. 

• Further to fill the vacancy arises due to resignation of 
company Secretary, the Board has appointed Ms. Mansi Thakkar 
as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company 
in theirmeeting held on 21 ''March, 2024. 

B) Declaration by Independent Director(s) 

The Independent Directors have submitted the Declaration of 
Independence, as required pursuant to Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided 
therein and also none of the Directors of the Company is 
disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the 
Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 
Company, other than sitting fees, commission, if any and 
reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of 
attending meetings of the Board/Committee of the Company. 

C) FormalAnnualEvaluation 

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR), the 
annual performance evaluation of the Non-Independent 
Directors, Chairman and the Board as a whole (including its 
Committees) was carried out in the separate meeting of 
Independent Directors. 

Independent Directors, in their separate meeting, held on 12" 
February, 2024 reviewed performance of the Non Independent 
Directors, Board as a whole including committees. All the 
directors present participated in the discussion & suggested areas 
of improvement/changes. Assessment of Independent directors 
was shared with the Chairman of the Board. Independent 
Directors, in their separate meeting, also reviewed the 
performance of the Chairman after taking into account the views 
of all the Directors. 

Criteria of performance evaluation of the Board and Directors are 
laid down by Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 
of the Company. The NRC decided to continue existing method 
of performance evaluation through circulation of performance 
evaluation sheets. An assessment sheet based on SEBI Guidance 
Note dated January 05, 2017, containing the parameters of 
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performance evaluation along with rating scale was circulated to 
the Directors. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out 
performance evaluation of its own, evaluation of working of the 
Committees and performance evaluation of all Directors in 
aforesaid manner. 

D) Familiarization Program for Independent Directors 

The familiarization program seeks to update the Directors on the 
roles, responsibilities, rights and duties under the Act and other 
statutes. 

The policy on Company's familiarization program for 
Independent Directors is posted on the Company's website 
www.hbgindia.com 

E) Meetings of the Board ofDirectors 

The Company held a minimum of one Board meeting in every 
quarter. The details of the Meetings held during the financial 
year are given in the Corporate Governance Report 

16. AUDITCOMMITTEE 

An Audit Committee is in existence in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Kindly 
refer to the section on Corporate Governance under the head, 
'Audit Committee' for matters relating to constitution, meetings 
and functions of the Committee. 

17. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in existence in 
accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of Section 178. Kindly 
refer to section on Corporate Governance, under the head, 'Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee' for matters relating to constitution, 
meetings, functions of the Committee and the remuneration policy 
formulated by this Committee. The Brief of the Company's Policy on 
appointment and remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 is 
attached as "Annexure-C"tothisreport. 

18. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM/ 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND 

EMPLOYEES. 

The Company has a vigil mechanism to deal with instance of 
fraud and I or mismanagement, if any. The details of the Policy 
are explained in the Corporate Governance Report and also 
posted on the website of the Company. 
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19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

The Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is currently not applicable to Company. 

20. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

Sustainability has been deeply embedded into the Company's 
business and has become an integral part of its decision making 
process while considering social, economic and environmental 
dimensions. 

21. BUSINESSRISKMANAGEMENT 

Your Company has a robust Risk Management policy. The 
Company through a Steering Committee oversees the Risk 
Management process including risk identification, impact 
assessment, effective implementation of the mitigation plans and 
risk reporting. At present the company has not identified any 
element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company. 

The details ofRisk Management as practiced by the Company are 
provided as part of Management Discussion and Analysis 
Report, which is a part of this Report. 

22. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 

INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given 
in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

23. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, your Company has formulated a Policy on 
Related Party Transactions which is also available on Company's 
website at www.hbgindia.com. The Policy intends to ensure that 
proper reporting; approval and disclosure processes are in place 
for all transactions between the Company and Related Parties. 

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in 
Ordinary Course of the Business and on Arm's Length basis. No 
significant Material Related Party Transactions were entered 
during the year by your Company and therefore, the disclosure of 
Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 enclosed as 
annexure Annexure-D. 

All related party transactions were placed before the Audit 
Committee for prior approval. Prior omnibus approval of the 
Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are 
repetitive in nature. The details of all such related party 
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transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval of 

the Committee, were placed before the Audit Committee on a 

quarterly basis for its review. 

Further, details of related party transactions as per Indian 
Accounting Standard- 24 (IND AS 24) and Schedule V of the 
Listing Regulations containing name of the related party and 
details of the transactions entered with such related party are 
given under Note 3 7 forming part of the Notes to Account of the 
Standalone Financial Statements which forms part of this 
Annual Report. 

24. BOARD DIVERSITY 

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a 

diverse board in its success. The Company believes that a truly 

diverse board will leverage differences in thought, perspective, 

knowledge, skill, regional and industry experience, cultural and 

geographical background, age, ethnicity, race and gender, which 

will help the Company to retain its competitive advantage. The 

Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out the 

approach to diversity of the Board of Directors. The policy is 

available on our website at https://www.hbgindia.com/ 

25. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The information required under Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, is annexed as "Annexure-E". 

During the financial year 2023-2024, there were no employee in 
the Company whose particulars are required to be given in terms 
of Section 197 (12) of the Act, read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

26 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE & 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

Certificate from the Auditors of the Company, Mis. Kothari H. & 
Associates, practicing Company Secretaries, confirming 
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated under Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is presented in a separate 
section forming part of the Annual Report. 
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27. POLICIES: 

All the policies are available on the website of the Company 
i.e.www.hbgindia.com. 

28. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION &ANALYSIS REPORT: 

Management Discussion & Analysis Report for the year under 
review, as stipulated in Chapter IV of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is presented in a separate 
section forming part of the Annual Report. 

29. DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the 
information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors 
make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)( c) of 
the Companies Act, 2013: 

(a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for 
the year ended 31 '' March, 2024, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with proper explanation 
relating to material departures, if any; 

(b) that such accounting policies as (mentioned in the Notes to 
the financial statements) have been selected and applied 
consistently and judgements and estimates have been made that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2024 and of the 
Profit of the Company forthe year ended on that date; 

( c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities; 

( d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis; 

( e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that 
the financial controls were adequate and were operating 
effectively. 

(f) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws were in place and were adequate and operating 
effectively. 
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30. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD: 

Your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial 

Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 'Meetings of the Board 

ofDirectors' and 'General Meetings' respectively. 

31. OTHERDISCLOSURES 

1. No application has been made under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code; hence the requirement to disclose the details 

of application made or any proceeding pending under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the 

year along with their status as at the end of the financial year is 

not applicable; and 

ii. The requirement to disclose the details of difference between 

amount of the valuation done at the time of onetime settlement 

and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or 

Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof, is not 

applicable. 

32. DISCLOSURE ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 

WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

The Company is an equal opportunity employer and consciously 

strives to build a work culture that promotes dignity of all 

employees. As required under the provisions of the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013, and Rules framed there under, the 

Company has implemented a policy on prevention, prohibition 

and redressal of Sexual harassment of Women at workplace. All 

employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are 

covered under this policy. Accordingly, an Internal Complaint 

Committee has been formed and the policy on 'Anti-Sexual 

Harassment' is posted on the website of the Company at 

www.hbgindia.com. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: August 14, 2024 
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Matters handled by Internal Complaint Committee during the 

year 2023-2024, are as follows: -
• Number of complaints on sexual harassment received during 

the year: NIL 
• Number of complaints disposed of during the year: N .A. 
• Numberofcases pending for more than 90 days: N.A. 
• Nature ofaction taken by the Employer: N.A. 
• Number ofWorkshops: NIL 

33. CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board 
Members and Senior Management of the Company which is 
posted on the website of the Company. As per the requirement of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(LODR) the Board Members and Senior Management have 
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. The Code lays 
down the standard of conduct which is expected to be followed 
by the Directors and by the employees in their business dealings 
and in particular on matters relating to integrity in work place, in 
business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. 

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors wish to express their grateful appreciation for the 
co-operation and support received from customers, financial 
institutions, Banks, regulatory authorities, customers and 
members and the society at large. The Directors also thank 
Governments of various countries, Government of India, 
Government of Goa, Government of Maharashtra and concerned 
Government Departments/ Agencies for their co-operation. Deep 
sense of appreciation is also recorded for the dedicated efforts 
and contribution of the employees of the company at all levels, as 
without their focus, commitment and hard work, the Company's 
consistent growth would not have been possible, despite the 
challenging environment. 

By Order of the Board 

Phoenix Township Limited 

Sd/-

Mr. Samit Bede 

Managing Director 

DIN-01411689 
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FormAOC-1 Annexure I 

Sr.No. 1. 

Name of the subsidiary Green First Estate Private Limited 

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if N.A 
different from the holding company's reporting period 

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last N.A. 
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of 

foreign subsidiaries 

Share Capital/Contribution 100 

Reserves &surplus 3.11 

Total assets 21,861 

Total Liabilities 21,861 

Investments NIL 

Turnover NIL 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation -3.11 

Provision for taxation Nil 

Profitj(Loss) after taxation -3.11 

Profit/(Loss) after taxation -3.11 

% of shareholding 97% 

22 
31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 



r..:J PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 

---------------r:i--
ANNEXURE-A 

Particulars of Conservation of Energy, 

Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

a. Energy conservation of measure taken: The operation or your company is not intensive. 
However, adequate operational measures have been initiated to reduce energy consumption. 

i) Energy efficient lighting and high efficient HVAC System used/retrofitted extensively in all 
hotels has reduced electrical consumption. 

ii) Computerized power monitoring is implemented in all properties on gradual basis to monitor 
and control power consumption. 

ii) Air conditioning system and system boiler have been tuned for best efficiency to conserve 
energy 

iv) Building Management System installation and electricity distribution system equipped with 
power factor correction panel monitors that control energy wastage equipment. 

v) STP treated water and rain water harvesting has been implemented. 

b. Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form-A of 
the annexure to the Rules in respect of industries specified in the schedule: Not Applicable 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

Research and Development (R&D) 

1. Areas in which R&D carried out 

2. Benefit derived as a result of the above efforts 

3. Future Plan of action 

4. Expenditure on R&D 

5. Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation : 

6. Imported Technology for last 5 years 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Particular with regard to Foreign Exchange and Outgo are given in the notes to Accounts, as a part 

of the financial statement. 
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FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31 sT MARCH, 2024 

ANNEXURE-B 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To, 

The Members, 

PHOENIXTOWNSIDPLIMITED, 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

practices by PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED (hereinafter called "the Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 

manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 

thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 

during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2024 ('Audit period') complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 

made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Phoenix Township 

Limited for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of: 

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the 

Audit Period) 

v. The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board oflndiaAct, 1992 ('SEBI Act') viz :-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (SubstantialAcquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015and amendment made 

thereunder; 
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c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 

2 021; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit Period) 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 

2 021; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit Period) 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

199 3 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Delisting ofEquity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to 

the Company during the Audit Period) 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the 

Company during the Audit Period) 

i. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and amendment made thereunder. 

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the 

Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and Regulations as applicable specifically to the Company. 
1. The Goa shops and Commercial Establishments Act 1973; 
2. Food Safety and Standards Act 2006; 
3. The Kerala Shops and Commercial Establishments Act, 1960; 
4. Goa Excise Duty Act, 1964; 
5. Goa Health Services Development Act, 2008; 
6. Goa Municipalities Act, 1968; 

• We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries oflndia. 

ii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

Amendmentmade thereunder read with the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited; 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
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We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with balance of Non-Executive Independent Directors and 

Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 

at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation atthe meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 

meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

We further report that based on the information provided the Company; and also on review of the compliance reports 

by the respective Department Heads, in our opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further reportthatduringthe audit period the Company has not passed any resolution for: 

i. Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares/ sweat equity; etc. 

ii. Redemption/ buy-back of securities. 

iii. Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

iv. Merger/ amalgamation/ reconstruction, etc, 

v. Foreign technical collaborations. 

For KOTHARI H. &ASSOCIATES 

Company Secretaries 

(Peer Review Certificate No.5312/2023) 

Sd/-
Hitesh Kothari 

Membership No. F6038 

Certificate of Practice No. 26758 

UDIN:F006038F000976535 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 14.08.2024 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this 

report. 
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Annexure-A 
To, 
The Members, 
PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED, 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance oflaws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test 
basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For KOTHARI H. &ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 
(Peer Review Certificate No. 5312/2023) 

Hitesh Kothari 
Membership No. F6038 
Certificate of Practice No. 26758 
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ANNEXURE-C 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY (u/s 178) 

Introduction: 

In pursuance of the Company's policy to consider human resources as its invaluable assets, to 
harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company and in terms of 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, 
this Policy on Nomination and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, senior 
management and other employees has been formulated, approved and adopted by the Board of 
Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination andRemunerationCommittee. 

The objective and purpose of this policy are: 

To oversee the nomination process and lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard 
to identifying persons who are qualified to become directors (executive and non-executive) and 
persons who may be appointed in senior management and key managerial positions and to 
determine their remuneration in a fair and equitable manner. 

To determine remuneration based on the Company's size and financial position and trends and 
practices on remuneration prevailing in peer companies, in the Hotel Industry. 

To ensure that remuneration paid to directors and executives is competitive, enabling the 
Company to attract and retain employees capable of meeting the Company's needs and service 
delivery obligations; and 

To reward directors and executives for achieving predetermined Company, Departmental as 
well as personal/ individual performance targets and goals. 

To carry out evaluation of the performance of directors, as well as key managerial and senior 
management personnel and other employees. 

To provide them reward linked incentives directly to their effort, performance, dedication and 
achievement relating to the Company's operations. 

To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented 
managerial persons and create competitive advantage. 

Note: The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is displayed on the website of the Company at 

www.hbgindia.com 
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ANNEXURED 
FORMAOC-2 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION: 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to 
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto: 

1) Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: Not Applicable 

2) Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis 

Name of Related Nature of Duration of the 
party and nature Contract/ contract 
of relationship arrangements/ arrangement 

transactions transactions 

GREEN FIRST Sale of Land Within 6 months 
ESTATES of execution of 
PRIVATE the sale deed. 
LIMITED 
(Wholly owned 
subsidiary 
Comoanv1 

Note: All of the above transaction are at arm length basis. 

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

Phoenix Township Limited 

Sd/-
Mr. Samit Prafulla Hede 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 01411689) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14th August, 2024 
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Salient terms of Date(s) of 
contract/ approval by the 
arrangement/ Board 
transactions, 
Including the 
value, If any 

NA March 9, 2024 

Sd/-
Mrs. Shibanee Harlalka 
Director 
(DIN: 00507607) 

Amounts paid as 
advance(s) if 
any 

Nil 
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ANNEXUREE 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 
RULES,2014 

1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director; Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the 
financial year 202 3-2024, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of 
the Company for the financial year 202 3-2024 and the comparison ofremuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) against the performance of the Company are as under: 

Sr. Name of Designation Remuneration % increase in Ratio of remuneration 
No. Director/ of Director/ Remuneration in the of Director/ KMP to 

KMP KMPfor Financial Year 2023-2024 median remuneration 
financial year of employees 
2023-2024 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

1. Mr. SamitP. Managing 48 33.33% 61.73% 
Hede Director 

2. Mrs. Shibanee Non-Executive 0.40 0% NA 
M. Harlalka Director 

3. Mr. Paul David Non-Executive 0.25 0% NA 
Talbot Willcox Director 

4. Mr.ArunP. Alternate 0.40 0% NA 
Pa war Director (to Mr. 

Willcox) 

5. Mr. Deepak Chief Financial 8.73 6% 11.22% 
Sakharam Officer 
Pednekar 

6. **Ms. Mansi Company Secretary NA NA NA 
Thakkar & 

Compliance officer 

7. Ms.Hunny Company Secretary 0.72 0% 0.92% 
Mehta & 

Compliance officer 

8. Mrs. Kavita 
Company Secretary 

Chajjer 
& 0.30 0% 0.38% 

Compliance officer 
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*Ms. Mansi Thakkar has been appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance officer W.e.f. 
21.03.2024 

Note: No Director other than Managing Director received any remuneration other than sitting fees for 
the financial year 2023-2024. 

1. Median remuneration of the Company for all its employees is ' 0.135 Lacs for the Financial Year 
2023-24. 

2. In the financial year 2023-2024, there was an Increase of 47.52 % in the median remuneration of 
employees. 

3. There were 173 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31" March, 2024. 

4. The average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than managerial personnel was 
22 % and increase in managerial remuneration 0%. 

5. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: 
It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Phoenix Township Limited 

Sd/-

Mr. Samit Prafulla Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN: (01411689) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2024 
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Sd/-

Mrs. Shibanee Harlalka 
Director 
DIN: (00507607) 

31 



r.:J PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Corporate Governance report for the Financial Year 

2023-24, which forms part of the Directors' Report, is 

prepared in accordance with Regulation 34 read with 

Schedule V to the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (the "Listing Regulations"). 

Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance 

Corporate Governance broadly refers to a set of rules and 
practices designed to govern the behavior of corporate 
enterprises. The Company's philosophy on Corporate 

Governance envisages accountability, responsibility and 
transparency in the conduct of the Company's business and its 
affairs vis-a-vis its employees, shareholders, bankers, lenders, 
government, suppliers, dealers etc. and accordingly lays great 
emphasis on regulatory compliances. The Company firmly 
believes that Corporate Governance is a powerful tool to sub 
serve the long term growth of the Company and continues to give 
high priority to the principles and practices of good Corporate 
Governance and has accordingly benchmarked its practices with 
the existing guidelines of corporate governance as laid down in 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. 

Sr. Name 
No. 

1. Mr. Samit Prafulla Hede 
2. Mrs. Shibanee Harlalka 
3. Mr. Paul David Talbot Willcox 
4. Mr. Arun Pandurang Pawar 

5. Mr. Surendra Ambalal Dave 
6. Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani 
7. Mr. Kiran Narayan Talchekar 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

» Board Composition 

The Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Company is broad­
based and consists of eminent individuals from industry, 
management, technical, financial, and legal field. The Company 
is managed by the Board of Directors in co-ordination with the 
Senior Management team. The composition and strength of the 
Board is reviewed from time to time for ensuring that it remains 
aligned with statutory as well as business requirements. 

As on 31st March, 2024 the Board comprises of 6 (Six) Directors 
out of which 3 (Three) are Non-Executive & Independent 
Directors, 1 (one )is Non - Executive Woman Director, 1 (one) is 
Executive Director, 1 (one) is Non-Executive Director and Mr. 

Arun Pandurang Pawar is alternate director of Mr. Paul David 
Talbot Willcox- Non-Executive Director. 

During the Financial year, the composition of the Board and 
category ofDirectors is as follows: 

Designation/ status 

Managing Director (Executive Director) 
Woman Director (Non- Executive Director) 
Non-Executive Director 
Non-Executive Director (Alternate Director of Mr. 
Paul David Talbot Willcox) 
Non-Executive and Independent Director 
Non-Executive and Independent Director 
Non-Executive and Independent Director 
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Brief Profile ofDirector's: 
The brief profile of directors is as under: 

1. MR. SAMIT PRAFULLA REDE (48 Years): Samit Hede is the Managing Director of Phoenix Township Limited, the property 

holding & hospitality arm of the Hede Business Group is a Public Limited Company listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. Mr. Hede 

completed his Graduation from University of Mumbai & joined the Hede Business Group in 1995, he was involved in the Financial & 

Foreign Exchange Business of Group before being involved in the Development of Hospitability Business Hede Business Group is a 

well-known business house from the State of Goa India established over 50 years ago primarily involved in the mining industry with 

other business interests. 

Mr. Hede holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from University of Bombay. He has worked with Hede Business Group for over 20 

years, starting his career as a management trainee & was instrumental developing its hospitality business with its first development in 

Goa & is presently focused on company's further developments in Goa & Kerala. He resides in Mumbai India. 

His hobbies are Automobiles aviation, films & travelling. He was instrumental in the development of the Park Inn by Radisson Goa, a 128 

Rooms Resort in Goa and the Phoenix Island Resort Kerala Poovar acquired by the group recently. 

2. MRS. SHIBANEE HARLALKA (52 Years) is a woman Director of the Company. She is a Commerce Graduate from Mumbai 

University; she is a director of Phoenix Township Limited, since 14th August, 2017. 

3.MR.PAULDAVIDTALBOTWILLCOX(72Years),Director 

Education: Eton College; M.A. (Hons.), Cambridge University; London Business School, "Continuing Executive Programme". He is 

Chairman ofEggar Forrester (Holdings) Ltd., Eggar Forrester Sale & Purchase Ltd. and C. W. Kellock& Company Ltd. He is a Director 

of Phoenix Township Limited, since 15th September, 1993 

4. MR. ARUN P. PA WAR (73 Years), Alternate Director is the only alternate Director of the Company, he is BSC (Hon) Botany, Pune 

University and also cleared Indian Administrative Examination (IAE) in 1975 & joined Income Tax Department in 1976 and retired as 

Chief Commissioner of Income Tax after rendering 35 years of public service. rendering 35 years of public service. He is acting as an 

Alternate director of Mr. Paul David Talbot Willcox, a Director of Phoenix Township Limited w.e.f 14th August, 2017 and is also acting 

as an Independent Director on the Board ofKalyani Steels Limited. 

5. DR. SURENDRAA. DAVE (87 Years), Independent Director, inducted on the Board of Phoenix Township Ltd., has been former 

Chairman of the Unit Trust of India for several years. He was the Chairman of SEBI. He has also functioned as Executive Director of 

IDBI. He is the Chairman of Centre for Monitoring Indian Economy. 

6. MR. DEV KIRIT TOPRANI (45 years), an Independent Director of the Company, is a Commerce Graduate, M.B.A, Certifications 

Derivatives and Mutual Fund (Advisors), Capital Market (Advisors) is a seasoned and accomplished professional with 19 years of 

diverse experience majorly in Banking and Financial Services. He has shown demonstrable excellence and leadership across roles 

encompassing Private Banking, Wealth Advisory, Client Relationship Management & Business Development. Currently a designated 

partner at QuerenciaAdvisors LLP, Mr. Toprani's job includes empanelling with Banks and other Insititutions and liasing with the clients, 

creating financial plans & proposals for new and existing clients. 

7. MR. KIRAN N. TALCHERKAR (76 Years), an Independent Director of the Company, is a Science Graduate from Mumbai 

University, obtained Sea training at the Sea Cadet Corp for 10 years and also represented India at the International Sea Cadet Muster in 

Kingston Canada which was organized by the Canadian and U.S. Navy's and is also a member of MCA Club BKC-Mumbai. He is the 

Managing Director ofKiran Talcherkar Advertising Pvt. Ltd, a Company engaged in the business of Advertising. He is a founder partner 

ofDisplay House, a company specializing in Exhibitions, Events & Retail, and a Company having a global reach. 
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As per the declarations received by the Company from each of the Directors, none of them is disqualified under Section 164(2) of the 

CompaniesAct, 2013. 

All the Independent Directors of the Company have furnished at the time of their appointment as Independent Director and thereafter at 

every first Meeting of the Board in the Financial year, a declaration that they satisfy the criteria of independence as per Chapter IV of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made therein. Further, 

disclosures have been made by the Directors regarding their Chairmanships/ Memberships of the mandatory Committees of the Board 

and that the same are within the maximum permissible limit as stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

};> Number and dates of Board Meetings held during the year 

Your Board met Seven times a year and the interval between any such two meetings has not been more than one hundred and twenty days. 
The Company Secretary under the direction of the Chairman and in consultation with Chief Financial Officer prepares the agenda along 
with the explanatory notes thereto and circulates it to the Directors, along with the notice of the meeting. During F. Y. 2023-24, meetings 
of the Board ofDirectors were held on: 

Sr.No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 
1 May 16, 2023 6 6 
2 June 28, 2023 6 6 
3 k'\ugust 14, 2023 6 5 
4 October 31, 2023 6 5 
5 November 11, 2023 6 4 
6 December 12, 2023 6 5 
7 February 12, 2024 6 6 
8 March 09, 2024 6 6 

};> Procedure of Board/ Committee Meeting 

The agenda papers with relevant explanatory notes and material documents relating to matters for perusal of the Board/ Committee are 
circulated in advance, so as to facilitate discussion and informed decision-making in the meeting. Apart from this, financial MIS 
containing details of annual operating plans, budgets, updates, capital expenditure budgets and updates and other material information is 
presented as set out in Regulation 17 read with Part A of Schedule II of Listing Regulations to the Board and the Board Committees. The 
same are reviewed at length by the Board. 
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·Attendance of Directors at board meetings, last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and number of directorships and 

chairmanships I memberships of Committees of each Director in other Companies: 

Name of the Attendance Directorship in Ot her Companies/ Membership/ 
Director Chairmanship Mandatory Committees/ 

No.of Board Last EGM Di recto Di recto Membershi Chairman 
Board Meeting AGM rship rship p in ship in Mandatory 
Meeting attended s in in Mandatory Committees 
held* Public Private Committee 

s 
Mr. Samit 8 8 Yes Yes 1 7 0 0 
Prafulla 
Hede 
Mrs. 8 6 Yes Yes 0 2 0 0 
Shibanee 
Harlalka 
Mr.Paul 8 7 Yes Yes 0 0 0 0 
David 
Talbot 
Willcox 
Mr.Aron 8 7 Yes Yes 1 0 0 0 
Pandurang 
Pa war 
(Alternate 
director) 
Mr. 8 7 Yes No 0 1 0 0 
Surendra 
Ambalal 
Dave 
Mr. Dev Kirit 8 8 Yes Yes 0 0 0 0 
Toprani 
Mr.Kiran 8 8 Yes Yes 0 2 0 0 
Narayan 
Talchekar 

*In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Memberships I Chairmanships 
of only Audit Committees and Stakeholder Relationship Committees in all public limited companies have been considered 
(excluding Phoenix Township Limited) 

None of the non-executive directors has any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 
Company. 
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Name of other listed Entities where Directors of the Company are Directors and the category of Directorship: 

The names and categories of Directors, the number of Directorships and Committee positions held by them in the companies are given 
below. None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 public limited companies (as specified in Section 165 of the 
Companies Act, 2013) or act as an independent director in more than 7 listed companies or 3 listed companies in case he serves as Whole 
Time Director in any listed company (as specified in applicable Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations), across all the Companies in 
which he/she is a Director, including separately the names of the listed entities where the person is a director and the category of 
directorship. 

Sr. Name of the Directors Total Number of Directorships of Name of listed entities where the 
No. public companies #. Director is a director along -with the 

Committee Chairmanships and category of directorship excluding the 
Memberships, as on Company as on 
31•t March, 2024. 31st March, 2024. 

1. Mr. Samit P. Hede Hede Resources Limited --
(Managing Director) 
(DIN: 01411689) 

3. Mrs. Shibanee M. Harlalka -- --
(DIN : 00507607) 

4. Mr. Paul David Talbot -- --
Willcox [DIN: 01862872) 

5. Dr. Surendra A. Dave -- --
(DIN: 00001480) 

6. Mr. Arun P. Pawar --- Kalyani Steels Limited Non 
(DIN : 03628719) Independent Director 

7. Mr. Kiran N. Talchekar -- --
[DIN: 00393180) 

8. Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani -- --
[DIN: 07969034) 

#excludes private limited companies/ foreign companies and companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Relationships, if any, between Directors inter-se: Mr. Samit Hede and Mrs. Shibanee Harlalka are siblings. 

-Executive 

Key Board qualifications, expertise and attributes : The Board of Directors of the Company recognizes that qualified members 

who bring in the required skills, competence and expertise that allow them to make effective contributions to the Board and its 

Committees. 

The following is the list of core skills I expertise I competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of the 
Company's business and that the said skills are available with the Board Members, 

i) Knowledge on Company's businesses, policies and culture (including the Mission, Vision and Values), major risks I threats and 
potential opportunities and knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates, 

ii) Behavioural skills-attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to contribute effectively to the growth of the 
Company, 

iii) Business Strategy, Sales & Marketing, Corporate Governance, Forex Management, Administration, Decision Making, 

iv) Financial and Management skills, 

v) Technical I Professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation to Company's business. 
None of the non-executive directors has any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company. 
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The table below summarises the key qualifications, skills and attributes which are taken into consideration while nominating candidates 
to serve on the Board 

Sr. Name of Knowledge Corporate Business Financial Technical / Professional skills 
No. Director on Governance Strategy, Sales Proficiency 

Company's Experience & Marketing, in financial 
businesses, with a major Corporate accounting 
policies and organisation Governance, and 
culture that Forex reporting, 
knowledge of demonstrates Management, corporate 
the industry rigorous Administration, finance and 

governance Decision internal 
Standards. MakintL controls. 

1. Mr. Samit ? ? ? ? ? 
Prafulla 
Hede 

2. Mrs. ? ? ? ? ? 
Shibanee 
Harlalka 

3. Mr. Paul ? ? ? ? ? 
David 
Talbot 
Willcox 

4. Mr.Arun ? ? ? ? ? 
Pandurang 
Pa war 

5. Mr. ? ? ? ? ? 
Surendra 
Ambalal 
Dave 

6. Mr.Dev ? ? ? ? ? 
Kirit 
Toorani 

7. Mr. Kiran ? ? ? ? ? 
Narayan 
Talcherkar 

Shareholding of Directors in the Company as on 31" March, 2024. 

No. Name of the Director Number of Shares held 

1 Mr. Samit Prafulla Hede 7,77,086 

2 Mrs. Shibanee M. Harlalka 19,46,190 

3 Mr. Paul David Talbot Willcox 0 

4 Mr. Arun Pandurang Pawar 0 

5 Mr. Surendra Ambalal Dave 0 

6 Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani 0 

7 Mr. Kiran Narayan Talcherkar 0 
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Board Diversity: 

Your Company has over the years been fortunate to have eminent 
persons from diverse fields as Directors on its Board. Pursuant to 
SEBI Regulations, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
has formalized a policy on Board Diversity to ensure diversity of 
experience, knowledge, perspective, background, gender, age 
and culture. The policy is posted on the Company's website of the 
Company i.e. www.hbgindia.com. 

Independent Directors: 

All the Independent Directors of the Company have been 

appointed as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the Rules made there under and meet the requirement of 

Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Independent Directors held a separate meeting in compliance 

with the requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 25 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

With respect to Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of 

Director confirms that Independent Director fulfills the 

conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Companies 

Act, 2013 and independent of the management. 

BOARD COMMITTEES 

The Company is having three Board Committees as given below: 

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors 

The Board members are also provided with the necessary 

documents/ brochures, reports and internal policies to enable 

them to familiarize with the Company's procedures and 

practices. The Board and Committee members are apprised of 

business and performance updates, business strategy and risks 

involved and it is also available on the website of the Company 

www.hbgindia.com. 

Meeting oflndependent Directors: -

The meeting oflndependent Directors was held on 12th February, 

2024 inter-alia to, 

• Review the performance of Non-independent directors and 

Board of director as a whole; including committees of the Board. 

• Review the performance of the Chairperson. 

• Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 

information between management and board of directors; 

Mr. Kiran Narayan Talcherkar, Dr. Surendra Ambalal Dave and 

Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani, were present in the meeting. 

Assessment of Independent directors was shared with the 

Chairman of the Board, who had one to one feedback session 

with them. 

I. Audit Committee II. Nomination and Remuneration III. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
Committee 

Dr. Surendra A. Dave - Chairman Dr. Surendra A. Dave - Chairman Mr. Kiran N. Talchekar -Chairman 
Non-executive Non-executive Non-executive 
Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director 

Mr. Kiran N. Talchekar - Member Mr. Kiran N. Talchekar - Member Mr. Samit Hede - Member 
Non-executive Non-executive Managing Director-Executive Director 
Independent Director Independent Director 

Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani - Member Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani - Member Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani - Member 
Non-executive Non-executive Non- executive 
Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director 
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I. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Composition: 

The Audit Committee of the Board comprises three Independent 
Directors, namely Dr. Surendra A. Dave as Chairman and Mr. 
Kiran N. Talchekar and Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani as on 3 lst March 
2024 as members of the Committee. They possess good 
knowledge of corporate and project fmance, accounts and 
Companies Act. The composition of the Audit Committee meets 
with the requirement of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the 
Audit Committee. The minutes of the meetings of the Audit 
Committee were also placed before the Board. 

Objective: 

The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility for 
overseeing the quality and integrity of the accounting, auditing 
and reporting practices of the Company and compliance with the 
legal and regulatory requirements. The Committee oversees the 
accounting and financial reporting process of the Company, the 
audits of the Company's financial statements, the appointment, 

independence, performance and remuneration of the Statutory 
Auditors, the performance of internal auditors and the 
Company's risk management policies. 

The Role of Audit Committee includes: 

• To investigate any activity within its terms of reference 
• To seek information from any employee 
• To obtain outside legal or other professional advice 
• To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, 

if it considers necessary 
• Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and 

the disclosure ofits financial information to ensure that the 

• Financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible 
• Recommending to the Board the appointment, remuneration 

and terms ofappointment of Auditors of the Company 
• Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other 

services rendered by the statutory auditors 
• Reviewing I Examination, with the management, the annual 

financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 
submission to the Board for approval, with particular 
reference to: 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

~ Matters required to be included in the Director's 
Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in 
terms of clause ( c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013; 
~ Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and 
reasons for the same; 
~ Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the 
exercise of judgment by management; 
~ Significant adjustments made in the financial statements 
arising out of audit findings; 
~ Compliance with listing and other legal requirements 
relating to financial statements; 
~ Disclosure of related party transactions; 
~ Modified opinion in the draft audit report, if any; 

Reviewing I Examination, with the management, the 
quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval; 

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / 
application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for 
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / 
prospectus I notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or 
rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the 
Board to take up steps in this matter; 

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of 
the Company with related parties; 

Scrutiny ofinter-corporate loans and investments; 

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, 
wherever it is necessary; 

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk 
management systems; 

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory 
and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal control 
systems; 

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, 
including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting 
structure coverage and frequency ofintemal audit; 
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Reviewing I Examination, with the management, the 
quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval; 

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses I 
application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for 
purposes other than those stated in the offer document I 
prospectus I notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or 
rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the 
Board to take up steps in this matter; 

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of 
the Company with related parties; 

Scrutiny ofinter-corporate loans and investments; 
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, 

wherever it is necessary; 
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk 

management systems; 
Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory 

and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal control 

systems; 
Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, 

including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting 
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings 
and follow up there on; 

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the 
internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material 
nature and reporting the matter to the Board; 

Discussion with statutory auditors, before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post­
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the 
payment to the shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared 
dividends) and creditors; 

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower 
mechanism; 

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time 
Finance Director or any other person heading the finance 
function or discharging that function) after assessing the 
qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the candidate; 

Carrying out other functions as may be specifically referred 
to the Committee by the Board of Directors 
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To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances 
from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary 
exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the 
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans I 
advances I investments existing 

To consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and 
impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation 
etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders. 

To review the following: 

~ Management discussion and analysis of financial condition 
and results of operations 

~ Statement of significant related party transactions (as 
defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management 

~ Management letters I letters of internal control weaknesses 
issued by the statutory auditors 

~ Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses 
and 

~ The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the 
chief internal auditors shall be subject to review by the audit 
committee 

~ Statement of Deviations; Quarterly statement of 
deviation( s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 
submitted to stock exchange (s) in terms of Regulation 32 (1) of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and disclosure requirements), 
Regulations, 2015 
Annual Statement of funds utilized for purpose other than those 
stated in the offer document/ prospectus/notice in terms of 
regulation 32 (7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and disclosure 
requirements), Regulations, 2015 

Six meetings of Audit Committee were held during the year 
ended March 31, 2024: 

16thMay, 2023 

28th June, 2023 

14th August2023 

11th November, 2023 

12thFebruary,2024 

09thMarch, 2024 

Attendance details of the members: 

Name of !he CoD11Dittee Member 
No. of meetings 
Held 

Mr. Kiran Narayan Talcherkar 6 

Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani 6 

Dr. Surendra A Dave 6 

Attended 
) 

6 
) 

Executives of accounts department, finance department, secretarial 
department and representatives of the Statutory Auditors attended the 
Audit Committee Meetings. 
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II. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

Composition: 

As on date, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises three Independent Directors, namely, Mr. 
SurendraA. Dave as Chairman and Mr. Kiran N. Talchekar and Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani as members of the Committee. 

The Committee's composition and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and disclosure requirements), Regulations, 2015. 

Terms of reference of the Committee includes: 

• Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the 
Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the 
criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal; 
• Formulation of criteria for evaluation oflndependent Directors, the Board and every Director's performance; 
• Devising a policy on Board diversity; 
• Whether to extend or continue the term ofappointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report of performance 

evaluation of independent Directors. 
• Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 

Meetings: 

The meeting of the Committee was held during the year on 14"' August, 2023 and 12"' February, 2024. 

Name of the Committee Member 
No. of meetings 

Held Attended 

Dr. Surendra A. Dave 2 1 

Mr. Kiran Talchekar 2 2 

Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani 2 2 

Remuneration Policy: 

The Committee has formulated a policy on Nomination and Remuneration of Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 

Management, which is attached as "Annexure - C" to the Directors Report and has been published on the website of the Company 

www.hbgindia.com. 

All Executive Director(s) receive salary, allowances and perquisites while Non-Executive Director and Non-Executive Independent 

Directors receive sitting fees for attending Board and Committee meetings. Payment of remuneration to the Executive Director is 

governed by a resolution approved by the shareholders of the Company. 

The remuneration of the Managing Director I Executive Director is decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee based on 

the Company's performance vis-a-vis the industry performance/ track record of the Managing Director and Executive Directors and 

same is reported to the Board of Directors. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary to its Managing Director I Whole-time 

Director. Increment(s) are decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the overall limits approved by the Members. 
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The details regarding remuneration paid to Executive Directors and sitting fees paid to Independent Directors are provided as follows: 

Sr.No. Name of Director Salary (Rs.) Sitting Fees (Rs.) Total (Rs.) 

1 Dr. Surendra A. Dave - 55,000/- 55,000/-
2 Mr. Samit P. Hede 48,00,000/- 48,00,000/-
3 Mrs. Shibanee M. Harlalka - 40,000/- 40,000/-
4 Mr. Paul David Talbot 25,000/- 25,000/-

Willcox 
5 Mr. Arun P. Pawar 30,000/- 30,000/-
6 Kiran N. Talchekar 45,000/- 45,000/-
7 Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani 45,000/- 45,000/-

Total 48,00,000/- 2,40,000/- 50,40,000/-

III. STAKEHOLDERS'RELATIONSHIPCOMMITTEE (SRC) 

As on date, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) of the Company comprises three Directors, namely, Mr. Kiran N. Talchekar 

as Chairman and Mr. Samit P. Hede and Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani as members of the Committee. 

The SRC's composition and terms of reference meet with the requirements of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and disclosure 

requirements), Regulations, 2015 and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Terms of reference: 

The terms ofreference I powers of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as under: 

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, 
non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 
Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 
Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 
Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and 
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company. 
To oversee the performance of the Registrars & Transfer Agents of the Company 
To monitor the implementation and compliance with the Company's Code of Conduct for Prohibition oflnsider Trading in 
pursuance of the SEBI (Prohibition oflnsider Trading) Regulations, 2015 
To carry out such other functions as may be directed by the Board from time to time and/ or enforced by any statutory 
notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable and 
To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties. 

Meetings: 

One meeting of the Committee was held during the year on 09th March, 2024. 

Attendance of each member at the SRC meetings held during the year 

Name of the Committee Member No. of Meetings 
Held Attended 

Mr. Samit P. Hede 1 1 
Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani 1 1 
Mr. Kiran Talcherkar 1 1 
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---------------r:i--
Statement of various complaints received and resolved during the financial year 2023-24 is as follows: 

Nature of Opening Received Resolved Closing 
Complaint balance as on during the year during the year Balance as on 

April 01, 2023 March 31, 2024 
Non receipt of share 
certificates 
sent for Transfer, NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Demat, Deletion of 
name, Transmission, 
Transposition, 
Consolidation of 
folios & Share 
certificates / Non 
Receipt of Exchange 
certificates/dividend 
warrants 

Compliance Officer: 

Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for complying with the requirements of Securities Laws and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and disclosure requirements), Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges in India. 

Mrs. Hunny Mehta (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer) of the company had tendered her resignation dated 06th February, 2024 
and the board of directors on the recommendation ofN omination and Remuneration Committee has appointed Ms. Mansi Thakkar, as 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officerw.e.f21" March, 2024. 

Company secretary & Compliance Officer 
Phoenix Township Limited 

Tel No.: 022-61590900 Fax No.: 022-22028212 
E-mail: complaince@hbgindia.com 

Complaints Status: 

During the financial year 2023-2024, the Company did not receive any complaints from shareholders. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board has approved and adopted a Code of Conduct for all Board members and senior management of the Company. The code of 
conduct has been posted on the website of the Company at www.hbgindia.com. All Board members and senior management personnel 
affirm compliance with the code of conduct annually. A declaration to this effect signed by Mr. Samit Hede, Managing director of the 
company is given below: 

Declaration 

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and senior management personnel, 

affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for directors and senior managerial personnel in respect 

of the financial year ended 31"March,2024. 
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Sci/-

SamitHede 

Managing Director 

(DIN: 01411689) 
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OTHER DISCLOSURES 

None of the transactions with any of the related parties was in conflict with the interest of the Company. 

All related party transactions are negotiated on arm's length basis and are intended to further the interests of the Company. 

The Policy dealing with related party transactions is available on the website of the Company under the link 
htqi://www.hbgindia.com/documents/PTL-Related-Party-Transaction-Policy.pdf 

There has been no instance of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years and 

hence no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the stock exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority. 

CEO I CFO CERTIFICATION: 

The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company gives annual certification on financial reporting and internal 
controls to the Board in terms of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and disclosure requirements), Regulations, 2015. The 
Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer also gives quarterly certification on financial results while placing the financial results 
before the Board in terms ofRegulation 33 ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and disclosure requirements), Regulations, 2015. 

EFFECTIVE VI GIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

The Board of Directors of the Company are committed to maintain highest standard of honesty, openness and accountability and 
recognize that each and every person in the Company has an important role to play in achieving the organizational goals. It is the policy of 
the Company to encourage employees, when they have reason to suspect questionable accounting/audit practices or the reporting of 
fraudulent financial information to shareholders, the Government or the financial markets, and/or serious misconduct otherwise, to 
report the concerns to the Company's Management. We further affirm that no employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

INSIDER TRADING POLICY: 

The Company has implemented an Insider Trading Policy to comply with the relevant Insider Trading Regulations. In accordance with 

the policy, the Company has well explained the applicability of the code and important concepts. 

An insider shall formulate a trading plan for dealing in securities of the Company and present it to the Compliance Officer for approval 

and trades may be carried out in accordance with such plan. 

The Company is strictly monitoring its Insider Trading Policy. 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

Quarterly results: 

Quarterly results of the Company are published in "Financial Express" and '"Dainik Herald" and are also displayed on the Company's 
websitewww.hbgindia.com 

Website: 

The Company's website www.hbgindia.com contains a separate dedicated section 'Investors' Information' where shareholders' 
information is available. The Annual Report of the Company is also available on the website in a user friendly and downloadable form. 

Annual Report: 

Annual Report containing, inter alia, AuditedAnnualAccounts, Directors' Report andAuditor's Report and other important information 
is circulated to members and others entitled thereto. The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report forms part of the 
Annual Report and is displayed on the Company's website www.hbgindia.com 

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the 'Listing Centre?: 

BSE's Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern, 
corporate governance report, media releases, among others are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre. 
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SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): 

The investor complaints are processed in a Centralized web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are: 
Centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by 
investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status. 

Designated Exclusive email-id: 

The Company has designated the following email-ids exclusively for investor servicing. 

For queries on Annual Report-complaince@hbgindia.com 

For queries in respect of equity shares of the Company: prafuls@adroitcorporate.com. 

PAYMENT OF LISTING AND CUSTODIAL FEE: 

The annual Listing Fees for the year 2023-2024 has been paid to the concerned Stock Exchanges. 

The Company has also paid the Annual Custodial fees to both the Depositories I.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and 
Central Depository Services {India) Limited (CDSL). 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations. The Company has also fulfilled the 
following discretionary requirements as provided in the Listing Regulations: 

a. The Internal Audi tor reports to the Audit Committee.: 

Details of Non-compliance, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange/SEBI/Statutory 

Authorities on matter relating to capital market during the last three years. 

The Company has complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities on capital market and no penalties/strictures have 

been imposed against it in the last three years. 

The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 while preparing Financial Statements for 2023-24. 

Total fees for all services paid by the Company to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which 

the statutory auditor is a part is given below: 

Payment to Statutory Auditors FY2023-24 
Audit Fees Rs. 1,00,000 
Tax Audit Fees Rs. 50,000 
Other Services 0 
Reimbursement of expenses 0 
Total Rs.1,50,000 

Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

Number of complaints filed during the NIL 
financial year 2023-24 
Number of complaints disposed of during NIL 
the financial vear 2023-24 
Number of complaints pending as on end NIL 
of the financial year. 
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• InsiderTradingRegulations: 

Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition oflnsider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time, your Company has adopted a code of 
conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by designated persons and their immediate relatives for prevention of Insider Trading in 
the shares of the Company. The code is available on the website of the Company atwww.hbgindia.com 

This code prohibits the purchase or sale of Company's shares by the Director's, designated employees and connected persons, while in 
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company when the trading window is closed. 

All the Board of Directors, designated employees and connected persons have affirmed their compliance 
with the Code. 

• Certificate on Non-Disqualification ofDirectors: 

All the Directors of the Company have submitted a declaration stating that they are not debarred or Disqualified by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority from being appointed or continuing as Directors 
of Companies. Kothari H. & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary has submitted a certificate to this effect, which is forming part of 
the Annual Report. 

• Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of'Loans and advances in the nature ofloans to firms/companies in which directors are 
interested by name and amount: 

Particular Amount 

Debentures Subscribed by Phoenix Township Limited of Rs.15746 Lacs 
Green First Estate Private Limited 

Loan and advances by Phoenix Township Limited to Rs. 2126 lacs 
firms/companies in which directors are interested 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

I. General Body Meetings 

Location and time oflast three Annual General Meetings: 

Financial Year Date Time Venue 

2022-2023 29/09/2023 03.00 P.M. Through Video Conference ("VC")/Other Audio Visual 
Means ("OAVM") 

2021-2022 28/09/2022 03.00 P.M. Through Video Conference ("VC")/Other Audio Visual 
Means f"OAVM") 

2020-2021 29/09/2021 03.00 P.M. Through Video Conference ("VC")/Other Audio Visual 
Means ("OAVM") 

The following special resolution( s) were passed in the previous annual general meetings: 

Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2023 

• To Re-appoint Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani (DIN: 07969034), as an Independent Directorof the Company, for Second term. 
• To consider and approve the remuneration of Mr. Samit P. Hede, Managing Director of the Company for the remaining 

duration ofhis Tenure. 

Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2022 

• To re-appoint Mr. Ajit Warty (DIN: 00051463 ), an Independent Directorof the company, for second term 
• To re-appoint Mr. Kiran Narayan Talcherkar (DIN: 00393180) as an Independent Director of the Company for a second term. 
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Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2021 

• To continue the Directorship ofMr. Kiran Narayan Talcherkar (DIN: 00393180), an Independent Directorof the company, as a 
Non-Executive Independent director after attaining the age ofSeventy-Fiveyears. 

• To approve transactions under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 
• To increase threshold ofloans/ guarantees, providing of securities and making ofinvestments in securities under section 186 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

I. CompanyRegistrationDetails: 

The Company is registered in the State of Goa, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L67190GA1993PLC001327. 

Annual General Meeting Saturday, September 28, 2024 at 3.30 P.M. through video conferencing. 
Day, Date, Time 

Financial Year April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025 
Financial Calendar (tentative) June 30, 2024- Second week of August, 2024 

September 30, 2024- Second week of November, 2024 
December 31, 2024- Second week of February, 2024 
March 31, 2025- Last week of May, 2025 

Date of Book closure Friday, September 20 ,2024 to Saturday, September 28 ,2024 (both days 
inclusive). 

Dividend Payment Date Not Applicable 

Listing on Stock Exchanges The shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) 
P.J. Tower, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001. 

Stock Code/ ID 537839/ PHOENIXTN 

Registrars and Transfer Agents The Company has appointed Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. of Mumbai as the 
Registrars and Share Tran sfer Agents. For any assistance regarding share 
transfers, transmissions, change of address, duplicate/missing share certificate 
and other relevant matters, please write to the Registrars and Transfer Agents, at 
the address given below: 

Adroit Corporate Services Private Limited 
17 /20, Jaferbhoy Ind. Estate, 1st Floor, Makwana Road, Maro! Naka, Andheri 
(East), Mumbai - 400059. 

Share Transfer System The equity shares of the Company are primarily dealt with in electronic form in 
the depository system with no involvement of the Company. There are negligible 
or no transfers made in physical form. As regards transfer of shares held in 
physical form the transfer documents can be lodged with Registrars and Transfer 
Agents at the above mentioned address. 
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3. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024: 

No. of shares No. of % of No. of shares Amount o/o of 
shareholders shareholders held flnRs.l shareholdim! 

UPTO -100 770 37.29 19013 190130 0.14 
101 - 500 562 27.22 162812 162812 1.16 

501-1000 293 14.19 266196 266196 1.90 
1001-2000 252 12.20 439158 439158 3.14 
2001-3000 37 1.79 95308 95308 0.68 
3001-4000 44 2.13 166617 166617 1.19 
4001-5000 18 0.87 86532 86532 0.62 
5001-10000 32 1.55 244547 244547 1.75 
10001 -20000 18 0.87 240453 240453 1.72 
20001 -50000 13 0.63 366355 366355 2.62 
50001 &Above 26 1.26 11897269 11897269 85.08 
Total 2065 100.00 13984260 139842600 100.00 

4. Shareholding Pattern {Category of Shareholders) as on March 31, 2024: 

Category 
Category of shareholder 

rrotal no. As a percentage 
code of shares (A+B+C) 

If Al Shareholdinl! of Promoter and Promoter Group 

lfl) Indian ~8,51,720 70.45 
lf2) Forei!m 0 0 

Total Shareholdinl! of Promoter and Promoter Group ~8,51,720 70.45 

lfB) Public shareholdinl! 
l[1) Institutions 1,000 0.01 
Im Non-institutions 141,32,540 29.50 

Total Public Shareholdinl! 141,32,540 29.55 

'Cl Shares held bv Custodians and aeainst 
which Depository Receipts have been issued 

11 Promoter and Promoter Group 0 0 
2) Public 0 0 

Total 
TOTAL (A+B+Cl 1,39,84,260 100 

5. Reconciliation of Share Capita/Audit: 

As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified practicing Company Secretary carries out the Reconciliation of Share Capital to reconcile 
the total capital held with the National Security Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. The Audit is carried out every quarter and the report thereon is 
submitted to the Stock Exchanges. The report, inter alia, confirms that the total listed and paid-up share capital of the 
Company is in agreement with the aggregate of the total dematerialised shares and those in physical mode. 

6. Details of Public Funding obtained in the Last Three Years 
No capital has been raised from public in the last three years. 

7. Dematerializationo/SharesandLiquidityasonMarch31,2024 

Category No. of Shares held No of Shareholders Yo ofTotal Shareholding 

Shares held in Demat Form 1,28,11,260 1408 91.61 
Shares held in Physical Form 11,73,000 657 8.39 
TOTAL 1,39,84,260 2065 100 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE OFTHEAUDITORS: 

Certificate from the Auditors of the Company, Mis. Kothari H. & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary confirming compliance 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Chapter IV ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is forming part of the Annual Report. 

Annual Report: 

Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Directors' Report and Auditor's Report and other important information 
is circulated to members and others entitled thereto. The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report forms part of the 
Annual Report and is displayed on the Company's website www.hbgindia.com. 

AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To, 
The Members of 
Phoenix Township Limited 

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement with Phoenix Township Limited ('the Company'). 

2. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Phoenix Township Limited ("the Company"), for 

the year ended 31" March, 2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) ofregulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D 

and E of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time ("Listing Regulations") pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company 

with Stock Exchanges. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STATEMENT 

3. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the listing regulations is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all the relevant records and documents. This 

responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the 

compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY 

4. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 

of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of 

the Company. 

5. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether the 

Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations for the year ended 

31"March2024. 

OPINION 

6. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and the 

representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the 

Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31",2024. 

7. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
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RESTRICTION ON USE 

8. The certificate is addressed and provided to the Members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling the Company to 

comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. 

Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom 

this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. 

For KOTHARI H. & ASSOCIATES 

Company Secretaries 

(Peer Review Certificate No.5312/2023) 

Sd/-

Hitesh Kothari 

Membership No. F6038 

Certificate of Practice No. 26758 

UDIN: F006038F000977437 
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Place: Mumbai 

Date: 14.08.2024 
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MANAGING DIRECTOR & CIDEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION 

To, 
The Board ofDirectors 
Phoenix Township Limited 

Sub.: Certificate in accordance with Regulation 33(2) (a) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015: 

We, undersigned certify that the Audited Financial Results for the quarter and year ended March 31",2024 prepared in accordance with 
Clause 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 do not contain any false or misleading 
statement or figures and do not omit any material fact which may make the statements or figures contained therein misleading and we 
further certify that; 

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the quarter and year ended March 31",2024 and that to 
the best of their knowledge and belief, we state that: 

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading; 

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity's code of conduct of the Company. 

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 
auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design oroperation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 
and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

D. We have indicated, based in our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements; and 

iii.Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the listed entity's internal control system over financial reporting. 

Yours Faithfully, 

For Phoenix Township Limited 

Sd/-
Samit P. Bede 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 01411689) 

Date: 14.08.2024 
Place: Mumbai 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

Sd/­
DeepakPednekar 
CFO(KMP) 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

This Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR), 
presents an overview of the operational and financial 
performance of the Company during 2023-2024. It also 
highlights our strategy, and discusses important initiatives taken 
by it to achieve its growth and performance objectives. 

GLOBAL ECONOMY OVERVIEW: 

The International Monetary Fund (IMF), in its April 2024 'World 
Economic Outlook', pointed to the surprising resilience of the 
global economy, which showed steady growth even as inflation 
receded. Global real gross domestic product (GDP) growth is 
estimated at 3.2% in CY 2023, and projected to grow at the same 
rate in CY 2024 and CY 2025. The IMF report attributed the slow 
pace of growth to several factors such as high borrowing costs, 
withdrawal of fiscal support, long-term effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic, Russia's invasion of Ukraine, weak growth in 
productivity and increasing geo economic fragmentation. 
Global inflation moderated from its peak in the middle of CY 
2022 while economic activity continued to grow, thus averting a 
possible global recession. 

IMF expects global headline inflation to fall further from the 
annual average of6.8% in 2023 to 5.9% in 2024 and to 4.5% in 
2025, with advanced economies returning to their inflation 
targets sooner than emerging markets and developing 
economies. Risks to the global outlook for 2024 seem broadly 
balanced. These risks arise from price spikes stemming from 
geopolitical tensions and regional conflicts such as those in 
Gaza, attacks in the Red Sea, and continued war in Ukraine, a 
slower than expected decline in core inflation and interest rates 
remaining higher than expected. 

On the upside are factors such as a short-term fiscal boost as 
many countries go to elections in 2024, faster monetary policy 
easing, and increase in productivity from technologies such as 
artificial intelligence. (Source: IMF - World Economic Outlook, 
April 2024). The World Bank's 'Global Economic Prospects' 
report of January 2024 was more conservative in its estimates, 
putting the global real GDP growth at 2.6% for 2023, and growth 
forecasts at 2.4% and 2. 7% for 2024 and 2025, respectively. 

INDIAN ECONOMY OVERVIEW: 

India is now the world's fifth largest economy in terms of 
nominal GDP and the third largest in terms of purchasing power 
parity (PPP). The Second Advance Estimates of National 
Income released by the National Statistical Office (NSO) of the 
Government of India in February 2024, estimates a GDP growth 
rate of 7.6% for FY 2023-24 as compared to a growth rate of 
7.0% in FY 2022-23. Total consumption, comprising 56% of 
GDP, grew by 3.0% in FY 2023-24. Exports grew marginally by 
1.5% while imports grew by 10.9%. As a consequence of the 
government's thrust on capex, which has continued to crowd in 
private investment, Gross Fixed Capital Formation (GFCF) at 
constant prices, constituting 34% of the GDP, registered a 
growthofl0.2%inFY2023-24. 
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On the supply side, agriculture grew by 0.7%, manufacturing 
grew by 8.5%, construction by 10. 7% and services grew by 7.5% 
in FY 2023-24. Within services, 'trade, hotels, transport, 
communication and broadcasting related services', constituting 
about a third of overall services, grew by 6.5% after a strong 
growthof12.5%inFY2022-23. 

SBI Research and Moody's expects India's GDP growth for FY 
2023-24 to be 8%. Till February 2024, inflation in FY 2023-24 
averaged 5.4%, in comparison to 6.8% for the corresponding 
period in FY 2022-23. During CY 2023, the rate of 
unemployment declined to 3.1% (2022: 3.6%) and the labour 
force participation rate expanded to 59.8% (2022: 56. l %) 
(Source: Govt. of India - Dept. of Economic Affairs Monthly 
Economic Review, February 2024). India's foreign currency 
reserves stood strong at $645.6 billion as of March 31, 2024, and 
the Indian currency remained stable during the year. 

The outlook for FY 2024-25 remains positive. The Reserve Bank 
of India (RBI) expects manufacturing to maintain its momentum 
and services to grow above the pre-pandemic trend. Agricultural 
activities should gain from an expected normal south-west 
monsoon. Private consumption is likely to gain steam with a 
pick-up in rural activity; discretionary spending of urban 
households is expected to increase (as per the RBI's consumer 
survey) together with improving income levels. Credit growth 
and private investment are also expected to rise, given optimistic 
business and consumer sentiments, healthy corporate and bank 
balance sheets leading to an upturn in the private capex cycle. 
Core inflation is likely to continue trending downwards, 
indicating a broad-based moderation in price pressures. 

The RBI has highlighted the risk of headwinds from geopolitical 
tensions, volatility in international financial markets, geo­
economic fragmentation, rising Red Sea disruptions and extreme 
weather events. Considering all these factors, the RBI has 
projected real GDP growth for FY2024-25 at7.0%. 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW: 

GLOBAL INDUSTRY OVERVIEW: 

The global tourism industry demonstrated remarkable resilience 
and adaptability in 2023. During the year, tourist arrivals 
internationally were 1,286 million, showing a 34% increase vis­
a-vis 2022 and an 88% recovery from the pre-pandemic levels of 
2019. Europe retained the largest share of global inbound 
tourism, with 55% share in 2023, growing by 17% over that of 
2022, and reaching 94% of the pre-pandemic levels. 

Total export revenues from tourism (including passenger 
transport) are estimated at $1.6 trillion in 2023, which is 94% of 
the $1.7 trillion recorded in 2019. Preliminary estimates of 
tourism direct gross domestic product (TDGDP) were $3.3 
trillion in 2023, which is 3% of the global GDP (Source: 
UNWTO, Barometer January 2024). 
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The United Nations World Tourism Organisation (UNWTO) 
expects international tourism to fully recover to pre-pandemic 
levels in 2024, with initial estimates pointing to 2% growth 
above 2019 levels, led by increased air connectivity, visa 
facilitation and a stronger recovery of Asian destinations. As 
many as 67% of the tourism professionals participating in the 
UNWTO Confidence Index Survey indicated better or much 
better prospects for 2024 compared to 2023. 

The World Travel and Tourism Council (WTTC) predicts 2024 
to be a record year in terms of travel and tourism. It estimates 
global economic contribution of the sector to reach a historically 
high level of$1 l.1 trillion compared to $9 .9 trillion in 2023. 

INDIAN INDUSTRY OVERVIEW: 

FY 2023-24 was a year of record results and growth for the 
industry. Indian tourism is being driven by favourable 
demographics, increasing employment, higher disposable 
incomes of a young middle class, robust domestic demand, 
increased investments and improving infrastructure and 
connectivity. The Ministry of Tourism of the Government of 
India initiated several schemes such as 'Swadesh Darshan and 
PRASHAD to promote travel. 

As many as 50 tourist destinations are in the pipeline for being 
developed to provide a wholesome tourism experience under the 
'Swadesh Darshan' scheme. 

Similarly, the PRASHAD scheme aims at the development of 
select pilgrimage destinations in the country. Additionally, 
several states of India have also undertaken initiatives and 
investments to promote local tourism. The government's 
electronic visa facility now covers practically all the countries of 
the world, including foreign nationals of 166 countries, and is 
valid for entry at 28 designated airports and five designated 
seaports of India. India's remarkable economic growth, coupled 
with transformative changes, has had a positive impact on the 
tourism and hospitality sectors, ushering in a golden era - 'Amrit 
Kaal'. 

Foreign tourist arrivals for CY 2023 were 9.23 million in 
comparison with 6.43 million in 2022, registering a growth of 
44%. However, the arrivals, which included G20 related 
business travel in CY 2023, accounted for only 85% of 2019 
figures, when foreign tourist arrivals touched 10.93 million 
(Source: Government of India, Ministry of Tourism statistics 
December 2023). Thus, there is a future demand potential arising 
from a complete revival and growth of the sector. 

The Indian hotel industry is poised for a remarkable growth 
driven by long-term demand. Notable drivers of this growth are: 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

(i) improved connectivity with new airports and national 

highways across the country; 

(ii) increase in business travelled by buoyant economic 

conditions, new convention centres and global capability 

centres; 

(iii) recovery of foreign tourist arrivals, additional middle­

income households and a clearly visible trend of premiumisation 

leading to higher demand for leisure destinations. 

A balanced portfolio of owned, leased and managed properties, 

iconic brands and a robust, well diversified topline gives the 

Company the competitive advantage to lead markets and expand 

its business. A strong balance sheet and free cash flow strengthen 

its financial position, while a focus on productivity enhances its 

profitability. 

COMPANY OVERVIEW: 

The Company believes that there is a significant potential for 
growth ofhospitability business in India. During the year, it has 
taken several measures to tap this opportunity. As most of its 
addressable market is very active online, the Company has made 
a conscious effort to focus on 'digital', both as a channel for future 
growth and to build its brand. As a result, response times to 
customer leads, queries or online mentions are being cut 
drastically. The Company's results of operations are primarily 
affected by room revenue and food and beverage revenue in its 
hotel. Room revenue is dependent upon the number of hotel 
rooms occupied by guests and the rate at which such guests can 
be charged. 

The Company and its hotels have taken various initiatives to 
protect the health and safety of guests and employees. They have 
been implementing and adhered to all precautions and guidelines 
issued by the World Health Organization (WHO). 

DISCUSSION ON OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE & 
FINANCE IDGHLIGHTS: 

During the year under consideration Your Company recorded a 
turnover of Rs. 2954.4/- Lacs as against Rs. 2623.35 Lacs in 
previous financial year. The Company registered profit before 
tax (PBT) of Rs. 249.0/- Lacs for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024 against a profit before tax (PBT) of Rs. 99.2/- Lacs 
in the previous financial year and the profit after tax (PAT) for the 
current Financial year is Rs. 174.64 /- Lacs (excluding 
Exceptional Item-Note No 32ofStandalone Financial Statement 
)as compared to Rs. 76.13 Lacs profit earned in the previous 
financial year. 
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The Management is expecting growth in this sector due to 
remarkable recovery of the Indian hotel sector in previous year. 
The hoteliers persist to adapt and innovate and take advantage of 
the opportunities available to them. 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY 
FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED 
EXPLANATIONS THEREFOR: 

Debtors Turnover: Decreased by 7 4.90% 
Inventory Turnover: Decreased by 44.33% 
Interest Coverage Ratio: Increased by 62.23%. 
Current Ratio: Increased by 1212.95% 
Debt Equity Ratio: Decreased by 89 .16% 
OperatingProfitMargin(%): lncreasedby40 .. 13% 
Net Profit Margin(%): Increased by 103.69% 

DETAILS OF CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH 
AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS 
FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG WITH A DETAILED 
EXPLANATION THEREOF: 

There has been an increase in Net Worth by 804% (due to 
exceptional Item - Sale of agricultural land) percent for the 
FY'24 as compared to 3 .22 percent for the FY'23, due to increase 
in return to operational profit of Rs. 174.64 /-Lacs (excluding 
Exceptional Item-Note No 32 of Standalone Financial Statement 
) for FY'24 from the profit ofRs. 76.13/- Lacs for FY'23. 

RESORT OPERATIONS: 

Efficient resort operations are central to delivering a holiday 
experience that meets the expectations of our customers. This 
encompasses three key areas: infrastructure and facilities, 
holiday activities, and food and beverage (F & B). The Company 
continued its initiative on institutionalizing 'post-holiday 
feedback' as the chief mechanism to measure its success in 
delivering quality holiday experience to its customers and 
addressing their concerns. We are happy to report that the 
feedback scores have consistently improved during the year. 
Efforts are in progress to further improve the coverage of the 
feedback, both in terms of processes and resort location. 

Previous year, our hotel operations at all the locations has been 
quite encouraging and done remarkable, therefore the 
management of the Company is expected better outcome in 
upcoming years. 

INTERNALCONTROLSYSTEMSANDTHEIRADEQUACY: 

The Company has a proper and adequate internal control system 
to ensure that all the assets are safe-guarded and protected 
against the loss from unauthorized use or disposition and those 
transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. 

The internal control is supplemented by an extensive internal 
audit, periodical review by the management and documented 
policies, guidelines and procedures. The internal control is 
designed to ensure that the financial and other records are 
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reliable for preparing financial statements and other data and 
for maintaining accountability of assets. 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN 
RESOURCES: 

The Company continues to lay emphasis on developing and 
facilitating optimum human performance. Performance of 
management was the key word for the Company this year. 
Recruitment process has been strengthened to ensure higher 
competence levels. During the year, the Company successfully 
inducted people to meet the needs of the growing business, both 
from outside as well as through talent management and 
capability development initiatives aimed at development of 
existing employees. The employee strength is 173 as on 31st 
March, 2024. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations or predictions may be forward-looking statements 
within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. 
Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied. 
Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's 
operations include poor macroeconomic growth and consumer 
confidence, inability to add resorts and increase the inventory of 
room, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company's principal 
markets, changes in tastes and preferences, government 
regulations, tax regimes, economic development within India 
and other incidental factors. 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
The Members of 
PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED, 
Durga Bhavan, Hede Centre 
Tonca,PanajiGoa403001 IN 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of PHOENIX 
TOWNSHIP LIMITED, having L67190GA1993PLC001327 and having registered office at Durga Bhavan, Hede Centre 
Tonca Panaji GOA GA 403001, (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for the purpose 
of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause lO(i) of the Securities 
Exchange Board oflndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number 
(DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its 
officers. 

We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31" 
March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities 
and Exchange Board oflndia, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

Sr.No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 
in Company 

1. Mr. Samit Prafulla Hede 01411689 01/04/2012 

2 Mrs. Shibanee Harlalka 00507607 09/02/2016 

3. Mr. Paul David Talbot Willcox 01862872 15/09/1993 

4. Mr. Arun Pandurang Pawar 03628719 14/08/2017 

5. Dr. Surendra Ambalal Dave 00001480 30/06/1998 

6. Mr. Dev Kirit Toprani 07969034 06/09/2018 

7. Mr. Kiran Narayan Talcherkar 00393180 12/02/2018 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management 

of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which 

the management has conducted the affairs of the Company 

For KOTHARI H. & ASSOCIATES 

Company Secretaries 

(Peer Review Certificate No.5312/2023) 

Sd/-

Hitesh Kothari 

Membership No. F6038 

Certificate of Practice No. 26758 

UDIN:F006038F000976579 
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Place: Mumbai 

Date: 14.08.2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TOTHEMEMBERSOFPHOENIXTOWNSHIPLIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial 
Statements ofPHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED (the 
"Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 
31 ", 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 
"Standalone Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial 
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind 
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31 ", 
2024 and its Profit, total comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SA"s) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the I CAi's Code ofEthics. We believe that the audit evidence 
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial 
Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other 

information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's 

Report includingAnnexures to Board's Report, Business 
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Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's 

Information, but does not include the consolidated Standalone 

Financial Statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our 

auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not 

cover the other information and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial 

Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial 

Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 

the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

opinion. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for 

the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 

stated in section 134( 5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 

of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair 

view of the financial position, financial performance, including 

other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows 

of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone 

Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management 

is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
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concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the 

Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 

Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

Standalone Financial Statements 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant 

to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 

Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 

whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by the management and Board ofDirectors. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the 

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude 

that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 

Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 

Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone 

Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 

probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may 

be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 

in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect 

of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

59 



r.:J PllOENIX'IOWNSHIPLIMITED 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 

(the "Order") issued by the Central Government in terms of 

Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement 

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audi 

we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary forthe purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 

have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes 

in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply 

with the IndAS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the 

directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of 

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 

2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 

164(2) of the Act. 

t) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

"Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on 

the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's 

internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion 

and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us: 
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1) As per explanation given to us by the Management of the 

Company, No litigation is pending against the Company which 

would impact its financial position as on 31" March, 2024. 

2) The Company has made provision, as required under the 

applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 

losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts. 

3) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to 

be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 

the Company. 

4) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its 

knowledge and beliefno funds (which are material either 

individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other 

person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with 

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its 

knowledge and beliefno funds (which are material either 

individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 

Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 

("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or 

indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 

("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or 

the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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+ Based on the audit procedures that have been considered 

reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 

come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll{e), as 

provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 

3. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, 

we report that the Company have paid remuneration to their 

respective directors during the year in accordance with the 

provisions of and limits/approval laid down under section 197 

read with Schedule V to the Act. 

4. Based on our examination, which include test checks, the 

Company has used accounting software for maintaining its 

books of account for the Financials year ended March 31, 2024 

which has a feature of recording audit trial (edit log) facility and 

the same has operated during the year for all material transaction 

recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit 

we did not come across any instance of the audit trial feature 

being tampered with. 

As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 

2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under rule 11 (g) 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014 on 

preservation of audit trial as per the statutory requirement for 

records retention is not applicable for the financials year ended 

March31,2024. 

For Bhatter & Company 

Chartered Accountants 

F.R.N.: 131092W 

Sd/-

Daulal H. Bhatter 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No.: 016937 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30 .. May 2024 

UDIN :24016937BKBYLZ4661 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S 
REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph l(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members 
of PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED of even date) 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of subsection 3 of Section 143 of the 
CompaniesAct,2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED (the 
"Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit 
of the standalone Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAl"). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act. 
Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
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material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone 
Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone 
Financial Statements. 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control over 
financial reporting established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

For Bhatter & Company 
Chartered Accountants 
F.R.N.: 131092W 

Sd/-
Daulal H. Bhatter 
(Proprietor) 
Membership No.: 016937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May 2024 
UDIN :24016937BKBYLZ4661 
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ANEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S 
REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members 
of PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that: 

I. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment 
and Intangible Assets: 

(a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
relevant details of right-of-use assets. 

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of 
Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets so to 
cover all the assets once every three years which, in 
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for 
verification during the year and were physically 
verified by the Management during the year. According to 
the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
( c) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, 
Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and 
intangible assets during the year. 
(d) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or 
are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for 
holding any benami property under the Benami transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder. 

ii. (a)The company has conducted physical verification 
of inventory as at balance sheet date. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits 
in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks or financial 
institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of 
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report 
onclause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company 

iii. According to information and explanation given to us and 
on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, The Company has not provided guarantee or 
security or granted any advance in the nature of loans, 
secured and unsecured, to Companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnership firm or any other parties during the 
period accordingly clause iii (a)(c)(d)(e) and (f) of the 
order is not applicable to the Company, as explained to us 
and on the basis of relevant records of the Company 
during the period the Company has made Investment in 
the deposit of the other companies. 
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(b) As explained to us and on the basis of relevant records 
terms and condition oflnvestment made is not prejudicial to the 
interest of the Company. 

iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of 
Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantee 
and securities provided, as applicable. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts 
which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under 
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified 
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business 
activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting 
under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

vii. In respect of statutory dues: 
(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been 

regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 
Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty o f 
Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and 
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the 
appropriate authorities. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of 
Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other 
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a 
period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation provided 
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident 
fund, Employees' state Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, 
Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Custom, 
Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other 
Statutory Dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a 
period of more than six month from the date they became 
payable. 

viii. According to information and explanation given to us and 
on the basis of the records of the Company, there were no 
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income 
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (43 of1961). 

ix. a. The Company has not taken any loans or other 
borrowings from any lender. Hence reporting under 
clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by 
any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority. 

c. The Company has not taken any term loan during the 
year and there are no outstanding term loans at the 
beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 
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3(ix) + of the Order is not applicable. 

d. On an overall examination of the Standalone Financial 
Statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term 
basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for 
long-term purposes by the Company. 

e. On an overall examination of the Standalone Financial 
Statements of the Company, the Company has not taken 
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 
meet the obligations ofits subsidiaries. 

f. The Company has not raised any loans during the year 
and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

x. a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under 
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b. During the year, the Company has made private 
placement of shares and related requirement of section 42 
and 62 of the Companies Act have complied with and 
during the year the company has not issued any 
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally). 

xi. a. No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, 
no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and upto the date of this report. 

c. As per Management Representation the has not 
received any whistle blower complaints during the year 
and hence clause 3(xi)© is not applicable to the Company. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence 
reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable. 
xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with 
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with 
respect to applicable transactions with the related parties 
and the details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its 
business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the 
year under audit, issued to the Company during the year 
and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures. 

xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or 
persons connected with its directors and hence, 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable to the Company_,_. ---------. __ _ 
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xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) 
and (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

( c) In our opinion, there is no core investment company 
within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)( d) of the Order i s 
not applicable. 

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 0 in the 
current and Rs 0 in the immediately preceding financial 
year. 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of 
the Company during the year. 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 
Standalone Financial Statements and our knowledge of 
the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on 
our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on 
the date of the audit report indicating that Company is 
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and 
when they fall due. 
xx. As per section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the 
company is not liable to contribute toward CSR, accordingly 
clause 3(xx)( a)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

For Bhatter & Company 
Chartered Accountants 
F.R.N.: 131092W 

Sd/-

Daulal H. Bhatter 
(Proprietor) 
Membership No.: 016937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May 2024 
UDIN :24016937BKBYLZ4661 
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Particulars 

PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 

Notes As at 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 
Capital Work in Progress 
Intangible assets 3 

Financial Assets 
Non Current Investments 4 
Other financial assets 5 

Other non-current assets 6 
Total Non- Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Inventories 7 
Financial Assets 

Trade receivables 8 
Current Investments 9 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 
Bank balances other than cash & cash 
equivalents 
Other financial assets 12 

Other current assets 13 
Total Current Assets 
Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY & LIABILITIES 
Share capital 14 
Other Equity 15 

LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 
Long Term Borrowings 17 
Other Financial Liabilites 22 

Total Non-Current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Short Term Borrowings 18 
Trade payables 19 
Other current liabilities 20 
Provisions 21 
Other Financial Liabilites 22 

Total Current liabilities 
Total Eguit:i,( & Liabilities 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 131092W 

D.H. Bhatter 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 16937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 3oth May 2024 
UDIN : 24016937BKBYLZ4661 
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For and on behalf of the Board 

Sd/-

Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No. :014116899 

Sd/-
Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

1,621.11 
408.68 
118.98 

194.49 
139.33 

19, 138.23 
21,620.82 

17.61 

123.68 
2,325.50 

106.02 

5.61 

267.61 
2,846.03 

24,466.85 

2,168.09 
19,916.55 
22,084.64 

245.65 
916.62 
125.94 

1,288.21 

597.23 
218.97 
108.12 
168.71 

0.97 
1,094.00 

24,466.85 

Sd/­
Shibanee M. Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No : 00507607 

Sd/-
Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 

2,111.86 
362.55 
121.47 

97.49 
139.05 

1,862.58 
4,695.00 

12.57 

74.73 
43.37 
25.54 

5.47 
-

44.53 
206.21 

4,901.21 

2,168.09 
273.71 

2,441.80 

233.56 
1,058.22 

126.91 
1,418.69 

486.31 
275.70 
101.94 
175.90 

0.87 
1,040.72 
4,901.21 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended Mrach 31, 2024 

Particulars Notes 

INCOME 
Revenue from operations 23 
Other income 24 
Total income 

EXPENSES 
Cost of Operations 25 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in 

26 process and stock in trade 
Employee benefits expense 27 
Finance costs 28 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 
Other expenses 30 
Total expenses 

Profit I (loss) before Exceptional item for the year 
Exceptional Items- Note no 32 32 
Less : Tax expenses 

- Current tax 30 
- Short /(excess) provision of earlier years 
- Deferred tax 

Total tax expense 
Profit I (loss) before Exceptional item for the year 

Profit I (loss) for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified subseguentlJl to 12rofit or loss 
Reimbursement of employee defined benefit obligation 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

I 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share 31 
Nominal value of share Rs.10 : Basic 

: Diluted 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Bhatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Firm Registration No: 131092W 

Sd/-
D.H. Bhatter 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 16937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 3oth May 2024 
UDIN: 24016937BKBYLZ4661 
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Sd/-

Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No. :014116899 

Sd/-

Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

Year ended 
31.03.2024 

2,747.1 
207.4 

2,954.4 

831.1 

610.9 
148.4 
196.0 
919.2 

2,705.5 

249.0 
19,468.2 

62.2 

12.1 

74.3 

19,642.8 

-
-

19,642.8 

140.5 
140.5 

Sd/-

Shibanee M. Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No: 00507607 

Sd/-

Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

Year ended 
31.03.2023 

2,586.0 
37.4 

2,623.3 

-
723.4 

500.0 
152.5 
216.5 
931.6 

2,524.1 

99.2 

-
24.8 

6.5 
31.3 

67.9 

-8.2 
-8.2 

76.1 

0.5 
0.5 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars As at 
31.03.2024 

Operating activities 
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax 19,717.2 

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash inflow from operating activities 

Finance Cost 148.4 
Depreciation 196.0 

Unrealised Income on Mutual 
Fund 

Provision for Doubtful Debts 

Interest Income 0.1 
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of non-current investments 
Credit Balance Written Back (Net) 2.1 

20,061.7 
Working capital adjustments:-

(Increase) I Decrease in 
Inventories (5.0) 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other 
Loans and advances (17,275.9) 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other 
current assets (223.1) 
(Increase) I Decrease in Trade and other Receivables (49.0) 
Increase/( Decrease) in Provision (7.2) 
Increase/( Decrease) in Trade Payables (56.7) 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilties & Provisions (6.2) 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowing 110.9 

2,549.5 
Income taxes paid (62.2) 

Net cash flow from operating activities 2,487.3 

Investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 251.4 
(Purchase)/Sale of Investments (2,282.1) 
Changes in Non Current Investments (97.0) 
Changes in Other financial assets (0.9) 
Interest Income (0.1) 

Net cash flow used in investing activities (2, 128.7) 

Financing activities 
Defered tax Liabilities 12.1 
Short Term Borrowings (141.6) 
Interest paid (148.4) 

Net cash flow from financing activities (277.9) 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 80.62 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Note 10) 31.00 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 10) 111.6 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements 
Note: 
The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows. 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Bhatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 131092W 

D.H. Bhatter 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 16937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 30th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24016937BKBYLZ4661 
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For and on behalf of the Board 

Sd/-

Samit P. Hade 
Managing Director 
DIN No. : 014116899 

Sd/-
Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

Sd/-

Shibanee M. Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No : 00507607 

Sd/-
Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

As at 
31.03.2023 

99.2 

152.5 
216.5 

-
-

0.2 
-

2.1 
470.5 

(2.0) 

(359.7) 

(23.4) 
(73.4) 

28.7 
136.1 

(10.4) 
87.6 

254.1 
(24.8) 
229.3 

(317.6) 
(43.1) 

-
-

(0.2) 
(360.9) 

6.5 
247.3 

(152.5) 
101.2 

(30.4) 
61.4 
31.0 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Accompanying notes to the Standalone financial statements 
for the year ended 31st March 2024 

NOTE: 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I. Company Overview 

PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED (the company) is a Public 
limited company incorporated on 10/02/1993 under the 
provisions of The Indian Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate 
Identity Number (CIN) L67190GA1993PLC001327. Its shares 
are listed in Bombay stock exchange. The Registered office is 
situated at Panjim in the state of Goa. The company is engaged in 
providing Services relating to hotel business. 

II. Significant accounting policies: 

I) Basis of Preparation and Presentation: 

Compliance with Ind AS 

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all 
material respects with the Indian Accounting Standard ('Ind AS') 
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, except additional disclosures required by the 
Companies Act 2013. 

The financial statements are based on the classification 
provisions contained in Ind AS 1, 'Presentation of Financial 
Statements' and division II of schedule III of the Companies Act 
2013. Further, for the purpose of clarity, various items are 
aggregated in statement of profit and loss and balance sheet. 
Nonetheless, these items are dis-aggregated separately in the 
notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non­
current as per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria 
set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the 
nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities. 

Authorisation ofFinancial Statements: 

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue in 
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 30thMay,2024 

ii) Use of Estimates and Judgments: 
The preparation of the financial statements of the Company in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, 
liabilities and the accompanying disclosures along with 
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. These 
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estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of 
current events and actions; however uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may 
require adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities 
in future periods. Appropriate revisions in estimates are made as 
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Revisions in estimates are recognized 
prospectively in the financial statements in the period in which 
the estimates are revised in any future periods affected. 

iii) Fair Value Measurement: 

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair 
value at each reporting date.Certain accounting policies and 
disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both 
financial and non-financial asset and liabilities. 

The Company used valuation techniques, which were 
appropriate in circumstances and for which sufficient data were 
available considering the expected loss/ profit in case of financial 
assets or liabilities. 

iv)Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being 
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined 
terms of payment. 

Revenue in respect of export sales is recognised on shipment of 
products. 

Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) 
method 

Dividend Income on Investments is accounted for when the right 
to receive the payment is established. 

v) Inventories 
Inventories of Raw Materials, Finished Goods, Semi-Finished 
Goods, Accessories andPacking Materials are valued at cost or 
net realizable value, whichever is lower. Goods in transit are 
valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost 
comprises of all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location 
and conditions. Cost is arrived at on Weighted Average basis.\ 

vi)Property, plant and equipment 
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Property, plant and 
equipment is carried at the cost of acquisition or construction and 
depreciated over its estimated useful life. An impairment loss is 
recognized in addition if an asset's recoverable amount falls 
below its carrying amount. 
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Significant asset components with different useful lives are 
accounted for and depreciated separately. 

If there are indications that an individual item of property, plant 
and equipment may be impaired, the recoverable amount is 
compared to the carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 
If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an 
impairment loss is recognized for the difference. If the reasons 
for a previously recognized impairment loss no longer apply, the 
impairment loss is reversed provided that the reversal does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
(net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for 
the asset in prior years. 

vii) IntangibleAssets 

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at 
cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried 
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

Intangible Assets are amortized on a systematic basis over its 
useful life on straight line basis and the amortization for each 
period will be recognized as an expense. 

viii) Depreciation 

Depreciation on Plant, Property and Equipment has been 
provided based on the useful life of the assets as prescribed in 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each reporting date. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have 
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and 
equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated 
depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon 
sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

ix)Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs incurred in 
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also 
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs. 
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Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of qualifying assets (i.e. an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use) 
are capitalized as a part of the cost of such assets. All other 
borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

x)Taxes on Income 

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net 
change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, 
the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

a) Current Income Tax 

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are 
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities based on the taxable income for that 
period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 
those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance 
sheet date. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company: 

1 has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; 
and 
1 intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

b) Deferred Income Tax 

Deferred tax is recognized for the future tax consequences of 
deductible temporary differences between the carrying values of 
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases at the 
reporting date, using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or 
substantively enacted as on reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable income will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits 
can be utilized. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: 

• Entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities; and 

• Deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to the 
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. 

xi) Leases 
Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an 
expense on a straight line basis in the statement of profit and loss 
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over the lease term except where the lease payments are 
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation. 

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2015, the 
Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease 
on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of 
transition. 

xii) FinancialAssets: 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value 
through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value plus 
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the 
classification of the respective financial assets. The Company 
classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair 
value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for 
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial asset. 

(i) Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the 
following conditions are met: 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to 
hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and Contractual 
terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the 
principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in 
the Statement of Profit & Loss. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

(ii) Debt instruments at Fair value through Other 
Comprehensive Income <FVOCI) 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the fair value through other 
comprehensive income ifboth the following conditions are met: 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets Contractual terms of the asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 
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'After initial measurement, these assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value. Interest income under effective interest 
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. Other net gains and 
losses are recognised in other comprehensive Income. 

(iii) Debt instruments at Fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL) 

Fair value through profit or loss is a residual category for debt 
instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is 
classified as at FVTPL. 

(iv) Equityinvestments 

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at 
fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are 
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the 
Company decides to classify the same either as at FVOCI or 
FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument­
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable. 

For equity instruments classified as FVOCI, all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized 
in other comprehensive income (OCI). 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are 
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the 
Statement of Profit & Loss. 

c) Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset 
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily 
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) 
when. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired, or The Company has transferred its rights to receive 
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either: 

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or 

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 
On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments 
and equity instruments (measured at FVTPL) are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit & Loss. Accumulated gains or losses on 
equity instruments measured at FVOCI are never reclassified to 
the Statement of Profit & Loss. 
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d) Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected 
Credit Loss ("ECL'') model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the financial assets measured at amortised 
cost. 

Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the 
'simplified approach' at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL at 
each reporting date. In respect of other financial assets measured 
at amortised cost, the loss allowance is measured at 12 month 
ECL for financial assets with low credit risk at the reporting date 
and there is a significant deterioration in the credit risk since 
initial recognition of the asset. 

xiii) Financial Liabilities: 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of 
transaction costs that are attributable to the respective liabilities. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the 
classification of the respective financial liabilities. The Company 
classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss. 

(I) Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL) 

A financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit or 
loss ifit is classified as held-for-trading or is designated as such 
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
measured at fair value and changes therein, including any 
interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss. 

(ii) Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those 
which are classified as fair value through profit or loss are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method ("EIR"). 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs 
in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

c) Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under 
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
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modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in 
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit & Loss. 

xiv) Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there 
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

xv) Fair value of financial instruments 

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the 
Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are 
based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting 
date. 

Fair value hierarchy: 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 

~ Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities 

~ Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 
or indirectly observable 

~ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial 
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the 
end of each reporting period. 

xvi) Financial guarantees 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Corporation are 
those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse 
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to 
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of the 
debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised 
initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the 
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment 
requirements oflndAS 109 and the fair value initially recognised 
less cumulative amortisation. 
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xvii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, 
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that 
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having 
original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
purchase, to be cash equivalents. 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks 
and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any 
time without prior notice or penalty on the principal. Bank 
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in 
the balance sheet. 

viii) Employee Benefits 

Short term employee benefits: 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of 
rendering the service are classified as short-term employee 
benefits. These benefits include short term compensated 
absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of 
short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for 
the services rendered by employees is recognized as an expense 
during the period. Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and 
the paid or expected cost of the incentives I miscellaneous 
welfare compensations I bonus I ex-gratia are recognised in the 
period in which the employee renders the related service. 

Long term employee benefits: 

Defined Contribution plans: 

Company's periodical makes contribution to several vital funds 
and employee benefits insurances schemes its cost has been 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year where 
such contributions to the respective funds are due or on accrual 
basis. 

Such contribution are to the Employee's Provident fund Scheme, 
1952 govern by regional provident funds commissioner, 
Maharashtra whereby Company's employee are obligation 
towards pension and retirement benefits are covered 

Defined benefit plans: 

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an 
independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on project 
unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The Company 
recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its 
balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re­
measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are 
recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with 
Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit 
plans recognised in OCI are not be to be subsequently 
reclassified to statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind 
AS compliant Schedule III, the Company transfers it 
immediately to retained earnings. 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

xix) Events after Reporting date 

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide 
evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial 
statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of 
material size or nature are only disclosed. 

xx) Foreign Currency Transactions: 

a) Functional and Presentation Currency: 

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees which is 
the functional currency for the Company. All amounts have been 
rounded off to the nearest lakh, unless otherwise indicated. 
Hence, the figures already reported for all the quarters during the 
year might not add up to the year figures reported in this 
statement. 

b) Transactions and Balances 

1 Transactions denominated in foreign currency are normally 
accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of 
transaction. 

• Monetary assets and Liabilities in foreign currency 
transactions remaining unsettled at the end of the yearare 
translated at the year-end rates and the corresponding effect is 
given to the statement of profit and loss. 

• Exchange differences' arising on account of fluctuations in the 
rate of exchange is recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss. 

• Exchange rate difference arising on account of 
conversion/translation of liabilities incurred for acquisition of 
FixedAssets is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

• Non-monetary items are reported at the exchange rate at the 
date of transaction. 

xxi) ImpairmentofAssets: 

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there 
is any indication that any property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets with finite life may be impaired. If any such 
impairment exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is 
estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it 
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

xii) Provisions: 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 
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Provisions are not discounted to present value and are 
determined based on best estimate required to settle the 
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. 

xxiii) Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond 
the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not 
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability 
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that 
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The 
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses 
its existence in the condensed standalone financial statements. 

xxiv) Earnings per Share 

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net 
profit attributable to equity shareholders for the period by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. 

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per 
share comprises the weighted average shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per share, and also the weighted average 
number of equity shares which could be issued on the conversion 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

xxv) Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and 
Non-Current: 

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as 
per the Corporation's normal operating cycle (determined at 12 
months) and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Act. 

xxvi) Cash Flows 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by net 
profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a 
non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or 
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The 
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are 
segregated. 

xxvii) Operating Segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the 
internal reporting provided to Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(CODM). 

The Company has identified its Managing Director as CODM 
which assesses the operational performance and position of the 
Company and makes strategic decisions. 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

xxviii) Recent accounting pronouncements 

New and amended standards adopted by theCompany: 

On June 18, 2021, MCA through a notification has notified 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2021. However those amendments do not have any impact on the 
financial statements of the Company. 

New Standards or other amendments issued but not yet 
effective: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or 
amendments to the existing standardsunder Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. 

On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022,applicable 
fromApril l, 2022, Key amendments are as below: 

Ind AS 16-Property Plant and equipment-

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceedsof items 
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised 
in the profit or loss but deducted fromthe directly attributable 
costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and 
equipment. 

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
ContingentAssets -

The amendment specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract 
comprises the 'costs that relate directly to thecontract'. Costs that 
related directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of 
fulfilling that contract( examples would be direct labour, 
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to 
fulfillingcontracts (an example would be the allocation of the 
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant andequipment 
used in fulfilling the contract). 

For Bhatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 131092W 

D.H. Bhatter Partner 
Membership No.16937 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 0141689 

Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date :30th May, 2024 

Shibanee Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No. :00507607 

Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024 

Changes in 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL: 
Balance as at equity 

1st April, 2022 share capital 
during the year 

Paid up Capital (Refer Note 15) 2,168.087 -

OTHER EQUITY : 
Securities 
Premium Capital reserves 

Particulars Reserve 
Balance as at April 1, 2022 - 4.250 
Profit/Loss for the year - -
Interim Dividend Paid - -
Dividend Tax Paid on Interim Dividend - -
Other Com12rehensive Income : 
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 - 4.250 

Profit/Loss for the year - -
Interim Dividend Paid - -
Dividend Tax Paid on Interim Dividend - -
Provision for final Dividend payable - -
Provision for Dividend Tax Paid on final Dividend 
payable - -
On issue during the year - -
Other Com12rehensive Income : - -
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 - 4.250 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 131092W 

D.H. Shatter 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 16937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 30th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24016937BKBYLZ4661 
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For and on behalf of the Board 

Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No. :014116899 

Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

Balance as at 
1st April, 2023 

2,168.087 

Retained 
Earnings 

181.250 
67.931 

-
-

-
249.181 

19,642.842 
-
-
-

-
-
-

19,892.022 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Changes in 

Balance as at 
equity 

31st March, 
share capital 

2024 
during the year 

- 2, 168.087 

(Rupees in lakhs) 

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 
12.074 

-
-

8.198 
20.273 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

20.273 

Shibanee M. Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No : 00507607 

Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 

Total 

197.584 
67.931 

-
-

8.198 
273.713 

19,642.842 
-
-
-

-
-
-

19,916.545 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 2 : Property, Plant and Equipment 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and eq uipment for the year ended March 31, 2023: 

Particulars 
Land & Site 

Building 
Plant and Computers Office 

Development machinaries Equipments Equipments 

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2022 1,049.77 1,585.45 463.07 39.80 21.90 
Additions 56.99 105.57 4.58 11.63 
Deletions (7.11) 
Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2023 1,049.77 1,642.44 561.53 44.38 33.53 

Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2022 802.69 403.65 39.55 21.15 
Charge for the period 95.35 53.78 1.92 2.68 
Deduction I Adjustments during the period 
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2023 898.04 457.42 41.47 23.84 
Carrying value as of March 31, 2023 1,049.77 744.40 104.10 2.91 9.69 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 
Land & Site 

Building 
Plant and Computers Office 

Development machinaries Equipments Equipments 

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2023 1,049.77 1,642.44 561.53 44.38 33.53 
Additions 18.87 79.28 0.74 
Deletions 477.80 
Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2024 571.97 1,661.31 640.81 44.38 34.28 

Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2023 898.04 457.42 41.47 23.84 
Charge for the period 96.16 33.03 1.53 3.06 
Deduction I Adjustments during the period 
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2024 994.20 490.46 43.00 26.90 
Carrying value as of March 31, 2024 571.97 667.11 150.36 1.38 7.38 

Vehide 
Furniture & 

Fixtures 

69.07 461.94 
94.77 43.98 

163.85 505.91 

61.68 346.85 
15.73 44.52 

77.41 391.37 
86.44 114.54 

Vehide 
Furniture & 

Fixtures 

163.85 505.91 
40.47 41.17 

204.32 547.08 

77.41 391.37 
15.59 44.11 

93.00 435.49 
111.32 111.59 

W.l.P. 

355.35 
180.39 

(173.19) 
362.55 

362.55 

W.l.P. 

362.55 
46.13 

408.68 

408.68 

Total 

4,046.35 
497.91 

(180.30 
4,363.96 

1,675.58 
213.97 

1,889.56 
2,474.41 

Total 

4,363.96 
226.67 
477.80 

4,112.83 

1,889.56 
193.49 

2,083.04 
2,029.79 
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r.:J PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 

Note: 
For Property, Plant & Equipment exisiting as on the date of transition to IND -AS)le Company has used Indian GAAP carrying value as deemed cost. 

Note 2(a) : Capital Work in Progresss 

Particular Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total 
Project in Progress 46.13 180.39 182 408.68 
Other- Non Project CWIP 
Total 46.13 180.39 182.16 408.68 

Note 3 : Intangible assets 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for th e year ended March 31, 2023: 
Particulars Goodwill ROUAssets Total 

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2022 49.02 129.86 178.88 
Additions - - -
Deletions - - -
Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2023 49.02 129.86 178.88 

-
Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2022 49.02 5.90 54.92 
Charge for the period 2.49 2.49 
Deduction I Adjustments during the period - - -
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2023 49.02 8.39 57.41 
Carrying value as of March 31, 2023 - 121.47 121.47 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the year ended March 31, 2024 
Particulars Goodwill ROUAssets Total 

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2023 49.02 129.86 178.88 
Additions - - -
Deletions - - -
Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2024 49.02 129.86 178.88 

-
Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2023 49.02 8.39 57.41 
Charge for the period 2.49 2.49 
Deduction I Adjustments during the period - - -
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2024 49.02 10.88 59.89 
Carrying value as of March 31, 2024 - 118.98 118.98 
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I 

Notes to Balance Sheet 
Financial Assets 

Note 4 : Non Current Investments 

Particulars 

Unquoted,Fully Paid Up 
Investment in Equity Shares 
Equity Share 
Investment in Property 

Investment with Trust 

PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(Investment in Equity and Preferance share held as per Merger Scheme as per approved by court.) 

Investment in Subsidiarv Company 

Green First Estate Private Limited 

Note 5 : Other financial assets 

Particulars 

Lease Deposit 
Deposit for Leased Apt./Staff Accomodation 
Deposit on empty bottles/others 
Deposit against Gas Supply 
Other Deposit 
Deposit with GSPB 

Note 6 : Other non-current assets 

Particulars 

Staff Advances 
Advances of ZFL 
Other Advances 
Advance from Creditors/ Suppliers 
Advance Against Agricultural Land -Glacier Trade Private Limited• 
Green First Estate Pvt Ltd - OCD • 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

3.15 3.2 
5.59 5.6 

88.75 88.8 

97.00 

194.49 97.5 

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

113.00 113.00 
3.57 3.29 
0.12 0.12 
1.00 1.06 

15.64 15.58 
6.00 6.00 

139.33 139.05 

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

12.86 7.2 
141.04 139.5 

1,112.36 1,715.9 
- -

2,125.97 -
15,746.00 -

19,138.23 1,862.6 
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---------------r:i--
*Note No: 1 : Advance for Purchase of Agricultural Land 
The Company has advanced funds to Glacier Trade Private Limited for the acquisition of agricultural land situated in Goa Velha. The land area measures 
23,000 square meters. This advance is recorded as a non-current asset until the completion of the purchase transaction, in accordance with all legal 
formalities and the relevant statutory provisions. 
*Note No. 2: The Company has subscribed to 15,746 Optional Convertible Debentures (OCDs) issued by Green First Estate Private Limited, a wholly­
owned subsidiary of Phoenix Township Limited. Each debenture has a face value of 100,000, amounting to a total value of 15,746 lakhs. The OCDs 
bear a nominal interest rate of 0.1 % per annum. All legal formalities and applicable provisions of the relevant Acts have been duly complied with. 

Note 7 : Inventories 
(Valued at lower of cost or Net Realisable Value) 

Particulars Asat Asat 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Food & Beverges 11.86 9.2 
Operating supplies 4.31 1.8 
Printing & Stationery 1.23 1.5 
Engineering supplies 0.21 0.0 

17.61 12.6 

Note 8 : Trade receivables 

Particulars 
Asal Asal 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Unsecured, Considered Good Less than 6 Month 123.68 74.7 
Net Unsecured, Considered Doubtful Others -
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful Others 
Less : Provision for Bad Debts 

-

Current Portion 123.68 74.7 

Note 8 (a) : Trade receivables (Advance from Customers) 

Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1- 2 years More than 3 years Total 
Particulars months 

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 123.68 .. .. .. 123.68 
.. .. .. .. . . 

Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have 
significant increase in credit risk - - - - -

.. .. .. .. . . 

.. .. .. .. . . 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - .. .. .. .. .. 

.. .. .. .. . . 
Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - - - .. .. .. .. .. 

.. .. .. .. . . 

Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant 
increase in credit risk 

Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 123.68 123.68 
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Note 9 : Current Investments 

Particulars 

Unquoted Investments 
Investments in Mutual Funds at fair value through Profit and loss* 
Mutual Fund 

A!lareaate Value of Unquoted Investments 

• Represents lien marked against varies funded and non-funded banking fadlles . 

Note 10 : Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with Banks in 
-Rupees Current Accounts 
-Foreign Currency Current Accounts 
Cash on Hand 

Note 11 : Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 3 to 12 months # 
Earmarked balances with banks 
Unpaid Dividend @ 

# Include accured interest on bank deposits. lien marked against varies fundeand non-funded banking facilities . 

Note 12 : Other financial assets 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Particulars 

Security Deposite for Tender 
Corporate Fixed Deposit 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for the value to be received 

Note 13 : Other current assets 

Particulars 

TCS Paid on Liqour Purchases/TDS Receivable 
Prepaid Expenses 
Service Tax/GST Input 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

2,325.50 43.4 

2,325.50 43.4 

2,325.50 43.4 

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

42.73 2.9 
- -

63.29 22.7 

106.02 25.5 

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

5.61 5.5 

-

5.61 5.5 

Asat Asat 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

- -
-

- -

-

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

244.75 27.6 
2.53 2.1 

20.33 14.8 

267.61 44.5 

79 



r.:J PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 

Note 14 : Share capital 

Particulars Asat As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Authorised 
202.00 lakhs Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,020.0 2,020.0 
78.00 lakhs Preference Share of Rs. 10 each 780.0 780.0 

2 800.0 2 800.0 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up 
139.84 lakhs Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully Paid Up 1,398.4 1,398.4 
76.97 lakhs Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully Paid Up 769.7 769.7 

2168.1 2168.1 
The Company issued Cumulative Redeemable Preference share @ 10/- each, which are redeemable after 6 years but before 15 years and will convert in Equity 
share only. 

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period 

Particulars Asal 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 
No. in lakhs Rs. In lakhs No. in lakhs Rs. In lakhs 

EQuity Shares 
At the beginning of the year 139.840 1,398.430 139.84 1,398.4 
Issued during the year . . . . 
Outstandina at the end of the vear 139.840 1398.430 139.84 1398.4 

Terms I rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class af equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to ane vote per share. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company: 

Particulars Asal 31.03.2024 Asal 31.03.2023 
No. % holding No. % holding 

Dr. Prafulla R. Hede . . . 

Mr. Samit P. Hede 777,086 5.560 777,086 5.560 
Mrs. Shibanee M. Harlalka 1,541,447 13.910 1,541,447 11.020 
Hede Consultancy Company Pvt. Ltd. 2,242,880 16.040 2,242,880 16.040 
Jwala Investment & T radinQ Pvt.Ltd. 3,981,307 28.470 3,981,307 28.470 
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d) Other Information 

e) Promoter's Share Holding 

Name of Promotor As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 

Hade Consultancy Company Pvt Ltd 2,242,880 16.04 2,242,880 16.04 

Hade Navigation Pvt.Ltd. (Jwala Investment &Trading Pvt.Ltd.) 3,981,307 28.47 3,981,307 28.47 

Glacier Trades Pvt Ltd 210,700 1.51 210,700 1.51 

Colaba Real Estate Private Limited 99,115 0.71 99,115 0.71 

Seema Arun Pawar 381,625 2.73 381,625 2.73 

Star Galaxy Trades Pvt Ltd 212,807 1.52 212,807 1.52 

Samit Prafulla Hade 777,086 5.56 777,086 5.56 

Shibani M Harlalka 1,946,190 13.91 1,946,190 13.91 

Total 9,851,710 70.44 9,851,710 70.44 

No.of Shares held at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during the year 
Name of Promoter's 

As On Date No. of Shares 
% of total shares of 

the companv 
No. of shares 

% of total shares of 
the companv 

Hede Consultancy Company Pvt Ltd 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 2,242,880 16.04 2,242,880.00 16.04 

Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding duringtheyear NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 2,242,880.00 16.04 

Hede Navigation Private Limited 

At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 3,981,307 28.47 3,981,307.00 28.47 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding duringtheyear NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 3,981,307.00 28.47 

Glacier Trades Pvt Ltd 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 210,700 1.51 210,700.00 1.51 

Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding duringtheyear NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 210,700.00 1.51 

Colaba Real Estate Private Limited 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 99,115 0.71 99,115.00 0.71 

Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding duringtheyear NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 99,115.00 0.71 

Seema Arun Pawar 

At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 381,625 2.73 381,625.00 2.73 

Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding duringtheyear NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 o.oo 381,625.00 2.73 

Star Galaxy Trades Pvt Ltd 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 212,807 1.52 212,807.00 1.52 

Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding duringtheyear NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 212,807.00 1.52 

Samit Prafulla Hede 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 777,086 5.56 777,086.00 5.56 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding duringtheyear NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 777,086.00 5.56 

Shibani M Harlalka 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 1,541,447 11.02 1,541,447.00 11.02 

Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding duringtheyear 404,743 2.89 

At the End of the year 31/03/2024 1,946,190 13.91 1,946,190.00 13.91 
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Note 15 : Other Equity 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL : 

Balance as at 
1stApril, 2022 

Paid uo Caoital (Refer Note 14l 2168.087 

OTHER EQUITY : 
Securities 
Premium 

Particulars Reserve 
Balance as atApril 1, 2022 -
Profit/ Loss for the year -
Interim Dividend Paid -
Dividend Tax Paid on Interim Dividend -
Qlbe[ Cornpmbeasi~ lacorne · 
Remeasurements of net defined benefit nlans -
Balance as at March 31 2023 -

Profit/ Loss for the year -
Interim Dividend Paid -
Dividend Tax Paid on Interim Dividend -
Provision for final Dividend payable -
Provision for Dividend Tax Paid on final Dividend 
payable -
On issue during the year -
Qtbe[ Cornpmbeasi~ lacorne · 

Remeasurements of net defined benefit 11lans -
Balance as at March 31 2024 -

Particulars 

Securities Premium 
Balance at the beginning and end of the period 

Other Reserves (Speacial Capital Incentive) 
Balance at the beginning and end of the period 

Surplus I (deficit) in the statement of profit and 
loss 
Balance at the beginning of the period 
Add: Profit I (loss) for the year 

Less: 
Interim Dividend Paid 
Dividend Tax Paid on Interim Dividend 
Provision for final Dividend payable 
Provision for Dividend Tax Paid on final Dividend payable 
Closing Balance 

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 

Total 
Nature and Purpose of Reserves 
Securities Premium Reserve 

Changes in equity 
Balance as at 1st 

Changes in equity 
share capital during 

April, 2023 
share capital during 

the year the year 

- 2168.087 -

Reserves and Surplus 
Other 

Capital Reserve Retained Earnings Comprehensive 
Income 

4.250 181.250 12.1 
67.931 -

- - -
- - -

- - 8.2 

4.3 249.2 20.3 

19,642.842 
- - -
- - -
- - -

- - -
- - -

- -
- 19 642.842 -

Asal 
31.03.2024 

273.71 
[ 19 642.84 

19,916.55 

19916.55 

19916.55 

Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
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Balance as at 31st 
March, 2024 

2168.087 

Total 

197.584 
67.931 

-
-
-

8.198 
273.713 

19,642.842 
-
-
-

-
-
-

19916.555 

Asal 
31.03.2023 

-

-

197.6 
67.9 

265.5 

-
-
-
-

265.5 

8.2 

273.7 

82 



r.:J PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 

Capital Reserve 
Capital reserve will be utilised in accordance with provision of the Act. 

Retained Earnings 
Retained Earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to shareholders 

Propose Dividend 
The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders and prefrence shareholder is determined 
considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the dividend distribution policy of the Company. 

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 30, 2024 has recommended a final dividend of Rs 0.25 per equity 
share & Rs 0.10 per prefrence share {face value of Rs 10 each) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The dividend is subject to 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting of the company .. 

Non Current Liabilities 

Note 16 : Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Excess of net block of fixed assets as per books of accounts over net block for tax purpose 233.56 227.1 

.Add: Current year laibilify 12.09 6.5 
Deferred Tax Assets 
Provision for Expenses . 

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans . 

Net Deferred Tax liability (a-bl 245.65 233.56 
Deferred Tax CharaeHCreditl for the vear 12.09 6.5 

83 
31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 



r.:J PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 

Note 17 : Long Term Borrowings 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Term Loan: From Bank & Other Finanical Institutes 
HDFC Ltd (Secured Against Equitable Mortgage of the Building) - s.s 
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim, and Personal Guarantee of Directors, Term Loan of 2.4S Cr@ 
Interest 9.5% p.a for a period of 5 years.) 

Daimler Financial Services India Pvt.Ltd.-2022 49.25 57.S 
(Hypothecation of Motor Car, Moler Car Loan 69.20L @ Interest Rate 11.30% for a period of 7 years) 

HDFC Bank (WCTL) - -
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim and Stocks, Term Loan of SOL Cr@ Interest 9.5% p.a for a 
period of 4 years.) 

HDFC Bank WCTL 2022 - 60.7 
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim, Working capital Term Loan of SOL Cr@ Interest 9.75% p.a for 
a period of 5 years 2 Month.) 

HDFC Bank (Vehicle Loan Secured Against Car) - -
(Hypothecation of Motor Car, Moler Car Loan 15L @ Interest Rate S.SO% for a period of 5 years) -

HDFC Bank (Garbage Truck Secured Against Truck) - -
(Hypothecation of Garbage Truck, Garbage Truck Loan 9.5L@ Interest Rate 10.00% for a period of 4 years) 

HDFC Bank (GECL Covid Loan) - 7.3 
(GECL Covid Loan 7S.40L@ Interest Rate S.25% for a period of 4 years, 1year moratorium) 

HDFC Bank (GECL Loan) - 71.3 
(GECL Covid Loan S4.13L@ Interest Rate S.25% for a period of 4 years, 2year moratorium) 

NKGSB Loan 447.3S 535.0 
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim, Term Loan of SCr@ Interest 10.50% p.a for a period of 1 O 
years. 

Drop Down Overdraft Facility from ICICI Bank Limited (DLOD) 3S9.17 
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim, and Personal Guarantee of Directors, Drop down overdraft 

facility of 5 Cr@ Interest 9.15% p.a for a period of 10 years.) 

NKGSB GECL LOAN - 0010 
100.0 -

(GECL Loan 100 Lakh@ Interest Rate 9.25% for a period of 6 years, 2year moratorium) 

NKGSB GECL LOAN - 0011 
45.0 -

(GECL Loan 45 Lakh @ Interest Rate 9.25% for a period of 6 years, 2year moratorium) 

NKGSB GECL Loan Ale No - 0001 
150.0 -

(GECL Loan 150 Lakh@ Interest Rate 9.25% for a period of 6 years, 2year moratorium) 

NKGSBAuto Loan - 205S S.55 

(Hypothecation of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 10.15 Lakh @ Interest Rate S.50% for a period of 7 years) 

NKGSBAuto Loan - 2059 13.2S 

(Hypothecation of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 15. 76 Lakh @ Interest Rate S.50% for a period of 7 years) 

NKGSBAuto Loan - 2060 9.00 

(Hypothecation of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 10.76 Lakh@ Interest Rate S.50% for a period of 7 years) 

916.62 1 035.9 
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Note 17 A : Other financial liabilities 

Particulars 
As at Asal 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Un-Secured Loan 

Tata Capital Finance Limited - 1.8 

Tata Capital Finance Limited Covid -19 - 1.2 

Inter-Corporate Loans - 2.6 

From Directors & Others - 13.1 

Others 
Times Share Money 3.50 3.6 

3.50 22.4 

TOTAL 920.1 1058.2 
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Note 18: Short Term Borrowings 

Particulars 
Asal Asal 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Working capital loans from banks 
-5ecured 
Working Capital Assistance Loan from HDFC Banks - 165.3 
(Working Capital Assistance Loan for Merchant establishment overdraft facility (Credit Card Payments facility) of Rs. 
75L (originally it was 30L) @ Interest rate 10% for indefinite period) 

Working Capital Assistance Loan from NKGSB Banks 0.91 132.2 
(Overdraft facility (OVPD) of Rs. 130L (Originally it was 30L) @ Interest rate 10% for indefinite period) 

Working Capital Assistance Loan from ICICI Bank 459.34 
(Overdraft facility (OVPD) of Rs. 500L ( @ Interest rate 9.15% for indefinite period) 

Drop Down Overdraft Facility from ICICI Bank Limited (DLOD) 45.83 
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim, and Personal Guarantee of Directors, Drop down overdraft 
facility of 5 Cr@ Interest 9.15% p.a for a period of 10 years.) 

HDFC Ltd (Secured Against Equitable Mortgage of the Building) - 58.2 

Daimler Financial Services India Pvt.Ltd.-2022 8.52 7.7 

HDFC Bank (WCTL) - 2.4 

HDFC Bank WCTL 2022 - 13.0 

HDFC Bank (Vehicle Loan Secured Against Car) 0.8 

HDFC Bank (Garbage Truck Secured Against Truck) 1.8 

HDFC Bank (GECL Covid-19 Loan - 2020) - 27.7 

HDFC Bank (GECL Covid-19 Loan - 2021) - 12.9 

NKGSB Loan Term Loan 72.00 56.0 

NKGSB Auto Loan - 2058 1.15 -
(Hypothecation of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 10.15 Lakh @ Interest Rate 8.50% for a period of 7 years) 
NKGSB Auto Loan - 2059 1.78 -
(Hypothecation of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 15.76 Lakh @ Interest Rate 8.50% for a period of 7 years) 
NKGSB Auto Loan - 2060 1.19 -
(Hypothecation of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 10.76 Lakh@ Interest Rate 8.50% for a period of 7 years) 

Un-Secured Loan 

Tata Capital Finance Limited 1.78 6.4 
-

Tata Capital Finance Limited Covid -19 1.23 1.9 

593.73 486.3 

Notes on BORROWING 
Loan from Directors & Others are interest free loans and it is payable within the short span of time (i.e within 2-3years) 
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Note 19 : Trade payables 

Particulars 
Asal Asal 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Current 
Trade payables 218.97 275.7 

218.97 275.7 

The Company had sought cofirmation from the vendors whether they fall in the category of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. In view of insufficient information 
from suppliers regarding their status the amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises can not be ascertained. 

Note 19 (a) : Trade Payable (Ageing) 

Less Than 1 
Particulars vear 1- 2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 years Total 

- - - - -

MSME - - - - -

- - - - -

Others 175.55 37.62 5.80 218.97 
- - - - -

Disputed dues - MSM E - - - - -

- - - - -

Disputed dues -Others - - - - -

- - - - -

Total 175.55 37.62 5.80 - 218.97 

Note 20 : Other current liabilities 

Asal Asal 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Advances towards Compensation for use 11.51 11.9 

Payables towards Cost of Soft Furnishing 1.75 1.8 

Payables towards Legal Professional Fees. 3.14 3.3 

Advance towards Customer Services 13.04 14.4 

Security Deposit - 1.0 

Duties & Taxes 42.78 29.7 

Advance From Customer 16.63 0.5 

Other Liabilities 19.27 39.3 

108.12 101.9 
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Note 21 : Provisions 

Particulars 
Asal Asal 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Provision For Tax 78.92 53.5 
Provision For Expenses 89.79 122.4 

168.71 175.9 

Note 22 : Other Financial Liabilites 

Particulars 
Asal Asal 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Non Current 
Lease Liability on ROU Assets 124.97 126.0 

Current 
Lease Liability on ROU Assets 0.97 0.9 

125.94 126.9 

Note 23 : Revenue from operations 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Revenue from operations 
Room Revenue 2,504.92 2,372.9 
Food & Beverages 241.44 210.1 

Other operating revenue 
Others 0.71 2.9 
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuations (net) 

2 747.07 2 586.0 
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Note 24 : Other income 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Interest income on Bank deposits 0.14 0.2 

Sale of SEIS License/ Interest Written Back . 1.6 

Dividend-MF 0.01 0.8 

Revenue from Shop Rental . 2.3 

Laundry Income 1.90 2.2 

Foreign Exchange . . 

Telephone, Fax Etc. . 0.0 

Revenue from Spa/Travel Desk 27.09 8.5 

Miscellaneus Income 4.86 3.0 

Agricultural Income 5.49 4.1 

Scrap Sales 7.95 2.2 

Banquet Rent 17.73 12.6 

Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund 140.69 . 

Profit on Sale of Equify Share 1.50 . 

207.37 37.4 

Nt25Ctf0 f oe : os o 1oera ions 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Room Expenses. 607.29 554.6 
Food & Beverages. Expenses 223.78 168.8 

831.06 723.4 
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---------------r:i--
Nt26Ch .. t' ffi'hd d rk' d t k' t d oe anoes in inven ones o 1ms e ooo s wo in process an s oc in ra e 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Opening Stocks 
-Stock in trade . 

. 

Less : Closing Stocks 
-Stock in trade . 

. 

. 

Nt27E I b fits oe : mo1ovee ene exoense 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Salaries, wages & bonus 444.51 364.1 
Directors' remuneration 48.00 36.0 
Workmen & staff welfare 118.36 99.9 

610.87 500.0 

Note 28 : Finance costs 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Interest expense 148.38 152.5 

148.38 152.5 

Note 29 : Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment 193.49 214.0 
Depreciation on Intangible Properties 2.49 2.5 

195.98 216.5 
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Nt300th oe erexoenses 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Heat, Light & Power Expenses 174.83 175.0 
Basic & Incentive Management Fees 5.51 9.3 
Franchise Fees 123.02 115.1 
Printing & Stationary 7.13 2.9 
Legal & Professional Fees 44.80 24.6 
Admn., Selling & Other Exp. 59.04 45.8 
Postage, Telex & Courier 6.93 1.8 
Provision for Bad Debts - -
Miscellaneous Exp. 1.13 1.1 
Bank Charges 14.43 3.3 
Lease Rent - -
Audit Fees 1.00 1.0 
Business Promotion Expenses 10.42 5.8 
Telephone, Fax & Internet Expenses 16.20 16.8 
Travelling & Desk Expenses 34.65 21.4 
Repairs & Maintenance 215.77 339.5 
loss on sale of MF - -
Meeting Exp. 0.17 0.8 
Commission & Brokerage 27.48 9.4 
Advertisement Expenses 6.28 4.0 
Insurance Charges 4.49 4.5 
Sitting Fees 2.25 2.0 
Freight & Handling 2.42 7.8 
General Expenses 44.97 47.7 
Spa and Parlor Exp 15.20 5.5 
Incentive Management Fees 101.04 86.6 
Prior Period Exp -

919.17 931.6 

P ts t A d't avmen o u 1 or 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Audit fees 1.00 1.0 
Certification -
Others -

1.00 1.0 
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Note 30 : -Current tax 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Tax Payable For the Year 62.24 24.8 
Short /(excess) provision of ea~ier years . 

62.24 24.8 

Note 31 : Earnings per equity share 

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 -Earning Per Share, the computation of earning per share is set below: 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares of Re. 10 each 
a) Number of shares at the beginning of the year 139.8 139.8 
b) Number of shares at the end of the period 139.8 139.8 
c) Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 139.8 139.8 

ii) Net Profit after tax available for equity shareholders 19,642.84 67.9 

iii) Basic Earning Per Share 140.47 0.5 

ivl Diluted Eamina Per Share 140.47 0.5 

Note: 
The Company does not have any dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently the basic and diluted earning per share of the Company remain the same. 

Note 32 : Exceptional Item 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Sale value of thivim Agricultural Land as per sale deed 19,946.00 

Cost of land as on date 477.80 

Profit on sale of Agricultural Land of Thivim 19 468.20 

The Company Fixed Assets includes total land measuring 316600 sq ft situated at Village Thivim Bardez Taluka 
Sub-District of Bardez, District of North Goa, State of Goa out of it 52,900 sq ft is mark as institutional land in the 
regional plan of GOA 2021, and balance land measuring 2,63,900 is agriculture land used for agriculture purpose. 
During the year the Company has sold total agriculture land of 3, 16,600 sq mtr to it fully owned subsidiary namely 
Green First Estate Private Limited by complying all legal formalities and applicable provision of relevant Act's. 

. 

19,468.2 
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Note 33 : Ratio 

Particulars 
As at 31st March As at 31st March 

2024 2023 
Debtors Turnover (in Times) 

Net Credit Sales 2,747.07 2,586.00 
Aver-age Accounts Receivable 161.05 38.05 

Ratio 17.06 67.96 

Inventory Turnover (in times) 

Cost of goods sold + 831.06 723.42 
average inventory. 23.90 11.58 

Ratio 34.78 62.48 

Interest Coverage Ratio (in Times) 

EBIT 397.36 251.78 
INTEREST EXPENSES 148.38 152.53 

Ratio 2.68 1.65 

Curr-ent Ratio (in Times) 

Current Assets I 2,846.03 206.21 
Current Liabilities 1,094.00 1,040.72 

Ratio 2.60 0.20 

Debt Equity Ratio (in Times) 

Total Debt/ 1,513.85 1,544.53 
Shareholders' Equity 22,084.64 2,441.80 

Ratio 0.07 0.63 

Operating Profit Margin (%) 

EBIT+ 397.36 251.78 
Total revenue 2,954.44 2,623.35 

Ratio 0.13 0.10 

Net Profit Margin (%) 

Net Profit 174.64 76.13 
Revenue 2,954.44 2,623.35 

Ratio 0.06 0.03 

Return to Net Worth (in%) 

Net Income I 174.64 76.13 
Shareholders' Equity 22,084.64 2,441.80 

Ratio 0.01 0.03 

Debt service coverage ratio (In times) 

Ear-nings available for debt service 593.34 445.14 
Debt service 386.70 306.07 

Ratio 1.53 1.45 

Trade payables turnover ratio (In times) 

Net credit purchases 441.34 363.27 
Average trade payables 385.18 207.62 

Ratio 1.15 1.75 

Return on capltal employed (In%) 

Earning before interest and taxes 397.36 251.78 
Capital Employed 23,372.85 3,860.49 

Ratio 0.02 0.07 

Net capital turnover ratio (in times) 

Revenue from Operations 2,747.07 2,586.00 
Working Capital 1,752.03 (834.51 

Ratio 1.57 (3.10 
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(Rs. In Lacs) 
Note 33 (1): Contingent Liabilities 

Contingent Liabilities not provided for : Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

a) Guarantee given by Banks on behalf of the Company - -

c) GST liabilties I input tax credit (subject to reconcilation as per gst act and the amount 
is not ascertain) - -

Note 33(2): Operating leases 
A. Leases as lessee 
The Corporation enters into cancellable operating lease arrangements with one party.The lease rentals paid/ received for the same are 

i. Amounts recognised in profit or loss 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Lease expense - -
- -

Initial direct costs incurred on these leasing transactions have been recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. 
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Note: 34 Emoloyee Benefit Expenses: 

Post Employement Benefit Plans 

Defined Contribution Scheme 

The Company offers its employee's benefits under defined contribution plans in the form of providert fund and family pensic 
Fund and Family Pension Fund cover substantially all regular employees. Contribution is paid during the year into separated 
certain statutory/fiduciary type arrangements. Both the employees and the Company pay pre-determined contributions into 
and pension fund. The Contribution is normally based on a certain proportion of the employee's salary. 

A sum of Rs.33,30,628 /- (Previous Year Rs. Rs. 28,02,484 /-)has been charged to the profit and loss account in this respect, th 
components of which are tabulated below. 

Contribution to provident fund and others: 

Contributions to defined contribution plans Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Provident fund 26.80 22.47 
ESI 6.08 5.17 
Labour Welfare Fund 0.42 0.39 

Total 33.31 28.02 

Defined benefit plans 

Gratuity :In accordings with the applicable laws, the Company provides for the gratuity, a define retairement plan (the Gratuit 
eligible employees. The gratuity plan provides for alum sum payment to vested employees on the retairement (subject to the 
years of continuation employment), death, incapaciation or termination of employment, that are based on the last drown sali 
employment. Liabilities with regards to the gratuity plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the repoerting date and Cc 
annual contribution to the gratuity fund administred by the life insurance companies under their respective laws. 
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Movement in plan assets and plan liability: 

Particulars Presnt value of Fair Value of plan Net amount 
Obligation assets 

As at 1st April 20223 
Current service cost 11.26 - 11.26 
Interest expense/(income) 1.58 - 1.58 
Past service Cost - - -
Total amount recoqnised in profit or loss 12.84 - 12.84 

Remeasurements 
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net finance inco - - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss arising from changes in the financial Assumpth 0.86 - 0.86 
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss arising from experience adjustments (3.35 - (3.35 
Experience (gains)/losses - - -
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (2.50 (2.50 

Contributions: - - -
Employer - - -
Plan participations - - -
Benefit payments - - -
As at 31st March, 2024 10.34 - 10.34 

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows: 

Particulars As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Present Value of Funded obligations 28.62 22.40 
Fair value of Plan Asstes -
Deficit of funded plan 28.62 22.40 

Unfunded plans -
Net (Assets)/ Liability Recognised 28.62 22.40 

Post - Employment benefits 

Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Discount rate 6.97% 7.22% 
Attrition Rate (PS: O to 40) 3.80% 3.80% 
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---------------r:i--
Sensitivity analysis 
Impact on defined benefit obligation 
Particulars As at 31.03.2024 
Assumptions Discount rate Salary scalation rate 
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 
Impact on defined benefit obligation 25.45 32.55 32.06 25.74 

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 
Assumptions Discount rate Salary scalation rate 
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 
Impact on defined benefit obligation 20.02 25.31 25.19 20.07 

Sensitivity analysis is determined based on the expected movement in liability if the assumptions 3were not proved to be tru 

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior perio 

Employee benefit obligations 
The major categories of plants assets are as follows: 

Particulars As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Unquoted Investments: - -
Gratuity Fund maintained by LIC of India - -
Total - -

Note: 35 Segment Reporting: 
(i) Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decis 
("CODM") of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operatin 
has been identified as the Managing Director Officer of the Company. The Company operates only in one Business Segment i 
Industry". All the business activity 10% or more of the total Tio of the company shall be stated in reportable Segments as per I 
"Ooeratina Seaments". 

(Rs in Lacs) 

Nature of Product or Service As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

-
a) Hotel Operating-Room Sales 2,504.92 2,372.92 
b) Food & Beverages 242.15 210.14 

Total 2,747.07 2,583.07 

(ii) The Company operates in one segment i.e. Hoteliering and within one geographical segment i.e. India 
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(Rs. In Lacs) 
Note 36: Tax Expense 
(a) Amounts recoanised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Current tax expense 
Current ye< 6224S 24.812 

-
Deferred tax expense 

Short /(excess) provision of earlier y -
Origination and reversal of temporary diffe 12.090 6505 

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 74.335 31316 

(b)A . d" h h mounts recognise 1n ot er com pre ens1ve income 
Year ended 31.03.2024 Year ended 31.03.2023 

Particulars Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax 
benefit benefit 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of the defined benefit - - - (8.198) (2.132) (6.067) 

- - - (8. 198) (2.132) (6.067) 

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
Profit before tax 248.979 99.247 
Tax using the Company s domestic tax rate (Curren26.00% and Previous Year 26.00 62245 24.812 
Tax effect of : 
Tax effect on non-deductible/ (Deductible) expenses (Net) 12.090 6500 
Tax expense as per Statement of Profit & Loss 74335 31320 
Effective tax rate 29.869! 31.559! 

Movement in deferred tax balances 

Net balance 
Recognised in Recognised Net Balance as 

Particulars as at 
profit or loss inOCI at March 31, 202· 

Deferred tax liability Deferred tax asset 
April 1, 2023 

Deferred tax (Asset)/Liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment & Intangible 233.St 12.0~ - 245.65 - 245.6~ 

Actuarial gain or loss on defined benefit plan transferred to Other - - - - - -
Comprehensive Income 
Expenses allowed for tax purpose that were part of profit & - - - - - -
vice versa 
Deferred tax (Asset)A.iabilities 233.556 12.090 - 245.646 - 245.646 

Net balance 
Particulars as at Recognised in Recognised Net Balance as 

April 1, 2022 profit or loss inOCI at March 31, 202. Deferred tax liability Deferred tax asse 
Deferred tax (Asset)/Liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets 227.051 6.505 - 235.605 - 235.60~ 

Actuarial gain or loss on defined benefit plan transferred to Other - - (2.050) (2.050) - (2.050) 
Comprehensive Income 
Expenses allowed for tax purpose that were part of profit & - - - - - -
vice versa 
Deferred tax (Asset)A.iabilities 227.051 6.505 (2.050) 233.556 - 233.556 
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Note 37 : Disclosures on Related Party Transaction 

List of Related Parties and Relationship~ 

a) Key Management Personnel I Promoter Di recto 

Name of related party 

Dr. P.R.Hede 
11/'r. Sarrit Hede 

Dr. P.R.Hede -Mine Owner 
Green First Estate Private Limited 

Colaba Real Estate Pvt Ltd 
Hede Navigation Private Limited 

Star Galaxy Trades Pvt Ltd 
Glacier Trades Pvt Ltd 

Hede Consultancy Company Private Limited 
Rarra Carlin Pvt Ltd 

b) Transaction with Key managerial Personnel and Related Pan 

Particulars Addition Substraction 

Director Remunaration 
Mr. Samit Hed 48.00 -

Loan Taken 
Hede Nevigation Pvt. Ltd. (Formally known as. 0.72 11.27 
Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd.) 

Loan Taker 
Rama Capfin Pvt. Lt 2.46 4.50 

Loan Taken 
Hede Consultarcy Conµmy Pvt Ltd. - -

Advance for agricultural Land-Goa Veil 
Glacier Trades Pvt. Lt 1,474.30 1,474.30 

Sale of Agricultiral Land-Thivim Ge 
Green First Estate Private Limi 19,946.00 19,946.00 

0.1 % Debentur 
Green First Estate Private Limi 15,746.00 15,746.00 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

Relation 
Chainran 

IVanaging Directa' 
Associate Firm 

Subsidiary Company 
Group Company 
Group Company 
Group Company 
Group Company 
Group Company 
Group Corrpu~ 

Net Increase I Year ended Year ended 
(Decrease) 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

48.00 48.00 36.00 

(11.99) - 11.85 

(2.04) 2.04 

- - -

- 2125.90 615.60 

19,946.00 - -

- 15,746.00 -
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Note: 38 Other Disclosures persunat to Schedule Ill 

1. Traveling expenses includes Rs. 31.92 Lacs (previous year Rs. 36.05 Lacs) 
spent on Foreign Travel.. 

2. Earnings & Outflow in foreign currency ( on accrual basis ) : 

Particulars 

EARNINGS 
Inflow I Earning in Foreign Cuurancy 
Outtlow I Expenses in Foreign Cuurancy 

TOTAL EARNINGS 

Note 39: Financial instruments Fair values and risk management 

A. Accounting classification and fair values 

Year ended 
31.03.2024 

127.090 
0.000 

127.090 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

Year ended 
31.03.2023 

36.080 
1.268 

37.348 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique: 

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data. 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. 

It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount 

is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 
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Financial Asset & Liabilities as at Non Routed through Profit & Loss Routed through OCI Carried at Amortised Cost Total 
31st March 2023 Current Current Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level Level Level 3 Tot I Leve 1 Level 2 Level i Tota Amount 
Financial assets 
Investment~ 

-Mutual funi 2,325.497 2,325.497 2~25.497 2,325.497 2,325.50 
2,325.50 2,325.50 2,325.50 2,325.50 2,325.50 

Other Assets 
Security Deposi 113.00 113.00 113.00 113.00 113.00 
Trade receivable 123.68 123.68 123.68 123.68 123.68 
Cash and cash equivaler 106.02 106.02 106.02 106.02 106.02 
Bank balances other than cash & c 

e<JM~ 5.61 5.61 5.61 5.61 5.61 
Other Advanc1 

113.00 2,560.81 2,673.81 2,325.50 2,325.50 348.31 348.31 2,673.81 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowin~ 916.62 597.23 1,513.85 1,513.85 1,513.85 1,513.85 
Other Financial Liabilit 125.94 0.97 126.91 126.91 126.91 126.91 
Trade Payable 218.97 218.97 218.97 218.97 218.97 

1,042.56 817.17 1,859.73 1~59.73 1,859.73 1,859.73 

Financial Asset & Liabilities as at Non Routed through Profit & Loss Routed through OCI Carried at Amortised Cost Total 
31st March 2023 Current Current Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total Amount 
Financial assets 
Investment~ 

-Mutual funi 43.372 43.372 43.372 43.372 43.37 
43.37 43.37 43.37 43.37 43.37 

Other Assets 
Security Deposi 113.00 113.00 113.00 113.00 113.00 
Trade receivable 74.73 74.73 74.73 74.73 74.73 
Cash and cash equivaler 25.54 25.54 25.54 25.54 25.54 
Bank balances other than cash & c 
e<J!ivalenis 5.47 5.47 5.47 5.47 5.47 
Other Advanc1 

113.00 149.11 262.11 43.37 43.37 218.73 218.73 262.11 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowin1 1,058.22 486.31 1,544.53 1,544.53 1,544.53 1,544.53 
Other Financial Liabilit 126.05 0.87 126.91 126.91 126.91 126.91 
Trade Payable 275.70 275.70 275.70 275.70 275.70 

1,184.26 762.88 1,947.14 1,947.14 1,947.14 1,947.14 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 40: Financial instruments-Fairvalues and risk management (continued)Market risk 
Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk 
comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 
Currency risk 
The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its operating and financing activities. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. 
Our foreign exposures are mainly denominated in U.S. dollars. The USD exchange rate has changed substantially in recent periods and may continue 
to fluctuate substantially in the future. The Company's business model incorporates assumptions on currency risks and ensures any exposure is 
covered through the normal business operations. This intent has been achieved in all years presented. The Company has put in place a Financial Risk 
Management Policy to Identify the most effective and efficient ways of managing the currency risks. 
Exposure to currency risk 
The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as below: 

31st March, 2024 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables 
Net exposure for assets 

Financial liabilities 
Foreign Currency Borrowings (Including Current Maturities) 
Net exposure for liabilities 
Net exposure (Assets - Liabilities) 

31st March 2023 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables 
Net exposure for assets 

Financial liabilities 
Foreign Currency Borrowings (Including Current Maturities) 
Net exposure for liabilities 
Net exposure (Assets - Liabilities) 

Sensitivity analysis 

(Foreign Currency in lacs) 
USD In Rs 

USD INR 

A reasonably possible strengthening I (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars at 31st March would have affected the 
measurement of financial instruments denominated in US dollars and affected profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis 
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. In 
cases where the related foreign exchange fluctuation is capitalised to fixed assets or recognised direclty in reserves, the impact indicated 
below may affect the Company's income statement over the remaining life of the related fixed assets or the remaining tenure of the 
borrowing respectively. 
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Effect in INR (before tax\ 
For the year ended 31st March, 2024 

5%movement 
USD 
INR 

Effect in INR (before tax) 

For the year ended 31st March, 2023 
5%movement 
USD 

(b) Particulars of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting 

As at 31st March 2024 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables 
Less : Foreign currency forward contracts (Sell) 
Unhedged Receivable 

Borrowings 
Less : Foreign currency forward contracts (Buy) 
Unhedged Payable 

As at 31st March 2023 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables 
Less : Foreign currency forward contracts (Sell) 
Unhedged Receivable 

Borrowings 
Less : Foreign currency forward contracts (Buy) 
Unhedged Payable 
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Profit or loss 

Strenathenina Weakenina 

- -
- -
- -

Profit or loss 
Strengthening Weakening 

- -
- -

(Foreign Currency in lacs) 
USD INR 

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

(F . C . I ) ore1gn urrency m acs 
USD INR 

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
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Note 41: Financial instruments-Fair value and risk management (continued) 

Financial Risk Management 
Risk management framework 

A wide range of risks may affect the Company's business and 
operational I financial performance. The risks that could have 
significant influence on the Company are market risk, credit risk 
and liquidity risk. The Company's Board of Directors reviews 
and sets out policies for managing these risks and monitors 
suitable actions taken by management to minimise potential 
adverse effects of such risks on the company's operational and 
financial performance. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a 
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 
Company's trade and other receivables, cash and cash 
equivalents and other bank balances. To manage this, the 
Company periodically assesses financial reliability of 
customers, taking into account the financial condition, current 
economic trends and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing 
of accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk in 
case of all the financial instuments covered below is resticted to 
their respective carrying amount. 

(a) Trade receivables 

The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of 
business. The Company considers factors such as credit track 
record in the market and past dealings with the Company for 
extension of credit to customers. The Company monitors the 
payment track record of the customers. Outstanding customer 
receivables are regularly monitored. The Company evaluates the 
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as 
its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries 
and operate in largely independent markets. The history of trade 
receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and doubtful 
debts. Therefore, the Company does not expect any material risk 
on account of non performance by any of the counterparties. 

Credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables is managed 
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 
monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the 
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. 

The Company considers the probablity of default upon initial 
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant 
increase in the credit risk on an ongoing basis through each 
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase 
in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occuring 
on assets as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the 
date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive 
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forwarding-looking information such as: 

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business 

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results 
of the counterparty 

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a 
significant change to the counterparties ability to meet its 
obligationiv) Significant imcrease in credit risk on other 
financial instruments of the same counterpartyv) Significant 
changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or 
in the quality of third party guarantees or credit enhancements 

Financial assets are written off when there is a no reasonable 
expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a 
repayment plan with the Company. When loans or receivables 
have been written off, the Company continues to engage in 
enforcement activity to attemp to recover the receivable due, 
When recoverables are made, these are recognised as incone in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade 
receivebles and loan from individual customers based on 
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment 
in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit 
loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss 
on collection of receivable is not material hence no additional 
provision considered. 
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Note 42 : Financial instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued} 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

Company's interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Companys interest-bearing financial instruments is 
(Rs. In Lacs} 

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Borrowing bearing variable interest rate 597.23 486.31 
Total of Variable Rate Financial Liabilities 597.23 486.31 

Cash flow sensitivify analysis for variable-rate instruments 
The sensitivify analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments at the end of the reporting 

Cash flow sensitivify (net} Profit or loss 
INR 50 bp increase 50 bp decrease 
31st March 2024 
Variable-rate loan instruments (2.99} 2.99 
Cash flow sensitivify (net} (2.99} 2.99 

31st March 2023 
Variable-rate loan instruments 2.43 2.43 
Cash flow sensitivify (net} 2.43 2.43 

Other price risk 

The Company invests its surplus funds in various Equify and debt instruments . These comprise of mainly liquid schemes of mutual funds (liquid 

105 
31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 



w ...... 
~ 

i 
e:.. 
:g 
§. 
N 
0 
N w 

N 
0 

~ 

.... 
= c:7'I 

Note 43: Financial instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued) 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities : 

Maturity Analysis of Significant Financial Liabilities 
31st March 2024 

Current Borrowings 
Trade and other payables 
Other Financial Liabilities (Current & Non Current) 

31st March 2023 

Current borrowings 
Trade and other payables 
Other Financial Liabilities (Current & Non Current) 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Total Upto 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years 

597.23 
218.96 
108.12 

597.23 
175.55 
108.12 

43 

Total Upto 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years 

486.31 486.31 
275.70 275.70 
101.94 101.94 
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Note 44 : Capital Management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and 

(Rs. in lacs) 
As at As at 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
Total Debt 1,513.85 1,544.53 
Total Equity 22,084.64 2,441.80 
Total debt to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 0.07 0.63 

Additional Notes to the Financial statement:-

The Company operates in one segment i.e. Hoteliering and within one geographical segment i.e. India. 

2 Previous Year's figures have been regrouped I reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current years classification/dsclosure 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 131092W 

Sd/­
D.H. Shatter 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 16937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 30th May, 2024 
UDIN : 24016937BKBYLZ4661 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Sd/-

Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 014116899 

Sd/-

Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

Sd/· 

Shibanee M. Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No : 00507607 

Sd/-

Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TOTHEMEMBERSOFPHOENIXTOWNSHIPLIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Phoenix Township Limited ('the Holding 
Company') and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as 'the Group') as listed in 
Annexure A, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as 
at 31 n March 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us and on the financial 

information of the subsidiary the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 

Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of 

the Act, read with the Companies (IndianAccounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted 

in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 n 

March 2024, and their consolidated Profit (including other 

comprehensive income/loss), consolidated cash flows and the 

consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 
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Information other than the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

4. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible 
for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Directors' Report, but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's 
report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

The Directors' Report is not made available to us at the date of 
this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

5. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have 
been approved by the Holding Company's Board of Directors. 
The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for 
the matters stated in section 134( 5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position, consolidated financial performance including 
other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind 
AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The 
Holding Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for 
ensuring accuracy of records including financial information 
considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements. Further, in terms of the provisions of the Act 
the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 
the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These 
financial statements have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board 
ofDirectors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
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6. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the 

respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 

Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to 

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

7. Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for 

overseeing the financial reporting process of the companies 

included in the Group. 

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing 

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 

statements. 

9 As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control; 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the 

audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 

of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our 
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opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements in place 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls.; 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management; 

• Conclude on the appropriateness ofBoard ofDirectors' use 

of the going concern basis ofaccounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as 

a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 

continue as a going concern; and 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of 

the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 

financial information/ financial statements of the entities 

or business activities within the Group, to express an 

opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 

of the audit of financial statements of such entities 

included in the financial statements, of which we are the 

independent auditors. 

10. We communicate with those charged with governance 

regarding, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 

in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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11. The Consolidated financial statement includes the financial 

statements/ financial information of one Indian subsidiaries, 

whose financials statement reflect total assets of Rs 21,861 lakh 

as on 31 ''March, 2024, total Revenues is Nil and net cash flow of 

Rs -3.11 lakh for the period ended on that. The Financials 

statement have been audited by us. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

12. As required by section 197( 16) of the Act based on our audit, 

we report that the Holding Company and one subsidiary 

company incorporated in India whose financial statements have 

been audited under the Act have paid remuneration to their 

respective directors during the year in accordance with the 

provisions of and limits/approval laid down under section 197 

read with Schedule V to the Act. Accordingly, reporting under 

section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable in respect of such 

subsidiary companies. 

13. As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies 

(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of section 143( 11) of the 

Act based on the consideration of the Order reports issued by us, 

we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks 

reported in the respective Order reports of such companies. 

14. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit 

and other financial information of the subsidiary incorporated in 

India whose financial statements have been audited by us under 

the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements; 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 

relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 

statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 

examination of those group books. 

c) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this 

report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 

maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
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financial statements; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 

statements comply with IndAS specified under section 133 of the 

Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the 

directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company 

and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 

Company and its subsidiary companies, respectively, none of the 

directors of the Group companies, are disqualified as on 31 

March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

section 164(2) of the Act. 

t) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding 

Company, and its subsidiary companies covered under the Act, 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate report in Annexure A wherein we have expressed an 

unmodified opinion; and 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion 

and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us. 

As explained to us by the Management of the Company, no 

litigation is pending against the group which would impact its 

pending financial position as on 31 ~March, 2024 

ii. The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies did not have 

any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024; 

iii There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding 

Company, and its subsidiary companies covered under the Act 

during the year ended 31 March 2024; 

iv. a. The respective managements of the Holding Company 

and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose 
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financial statements have been audited under the Act, to the best 

of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding 

Company or its subsidiary companies to or in any person(s) or 

entity(ies), including foreign entities ('the intermediaries'), with 

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such 

subsidiary companies('the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and 

its subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose financial 

statements have been audited under the Act , no funds have been 

received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies 

from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('the 

Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, or any such 

subsidiary companies shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend 

or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate 

Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c. Based on such audit procedures performed by us, as 

considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us or the other 

auditors to believe that the management representations under 

sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement. 

iv. The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies have 

not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 

March2024. 

15. Based on our examination which included test check, 

performed by us on the Company and its subsidiaries 

incorporated in India, except for the instances mentioned below, 

have used accounting software for maintaining their respective 

books of account for the financials year/period ended March 31'" 

2024, which has feature of recording audit trails (edit Log) 
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facility and the same is operated throughout the year for all 

relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during 

the course of audit, we have not come across any instances of the 

audit trail feature being tampered with. 

The financial statement of one foreign subsidiary have not been 

audited under the provisions of the Act, therefore, we are unable 

to comment on the reporting requirement under rule 11 (g) of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in respect of these 

subsidiary. 

For Bhatter & Company 

Chartered Accountants 

F.R.N.: 131092W 

Daulal H. Bhatter 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No.: 016937 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30 .. May 2024 

UDIN :24016937BKBYMA5045 
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AnnexureA-List of entities included in the Statement 

Name of the Holding Company 

1. Phoenix Township Limited 

List of Subsidiaries 

1. Green First Estate Private Limited 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members 
ofPHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that: 

I. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and 
Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

(a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
relevant details of right-of-use assets. 

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of 
Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets so to 
cover all the assets once every three years which, in 
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for 
verification during the year and were physically 
verified by the Management during the year. According to 
the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

( c) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, 
Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and 
intangible assets during the year. 

(d) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or 
are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for 
holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 
2016) and rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a)The company has conducted physical verification 
ofinventory as at balance sheet date. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working 
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate 
from banks or financial institutions during any point of 
time of the year on the basis of security of current 
assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

iii. According to information and explanation given to us and 
on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, The Company has not provided guarantee or 
security or granted any advance in the nature ofloans, 
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secured and unsecured, to Companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnership firm or any other parties during the 
period accordingly clause iii (a)(c)(d)(e) and (f) of the 
order is not applicable to the Company, as explained to us 
and on the basis of relevant records of the Company 
during the period the Company has made Investment in 
the deposit of the other companies. 

"AnnexureA" 

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
('the Act') 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of Phoenix Township Limited ('the Holding 
Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as 'the Group') and its associate 
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which 
are companies covered under the Act, as atthat date. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The respective Board ofDirectors of the Holding Company 
and its subsidiary companies, which are companies covered 
under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including 
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal 
Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 

Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India ('ICAI') prescribed under Section 143(10) 

of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
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controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAL Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements were established 

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements includes obtaining an 

understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the 

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 

the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and 

the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 

reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 

companies as aforesaid. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to 

Financial Statements 

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 

to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
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the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 

of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 

assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 
Reference to Financial Statements 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion and based on the consideration of the 
reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements of the subsidiary companies, 
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are 
companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects, 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with 
reference to the financial statements criteria established by the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
note issued by the ICAI. 

For Bhatter & Company 

Chartered Accountants 

F.R.N.: 131092W 

SD/-

Daulal H. Bhatter 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No.: 016937 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30 .. May 2024 

UDIN: 24016937BKBYMA5045 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31 2024 

Particulars Notes 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 2 
Capital Work in Progress 

Intangible assets 3 
i-1nanc1a1 ASsets 

Non Current Investments 4 
Other financial assets 5 

Other non-current assets 6 
Total Non- Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Inventories 7 
Financial Assets 

Trade receivables 8 
Current Investments 9 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 

Bank balances other than cash & cash 
equivalents 11 
umer 11nanc1a1 assets 12 

Other current assets 13 
Total Current Assets 
Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY & LIABILITIES 
Share capital 14 
Other Equity 15 

Equity attributable to owner ot the vcompany 
Non Controling Interest 
Total Equity 

LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 
Long Term Borrowings 17 
Other Financial Liabilites 22 

Total Non-Current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Short Term Borrowings 18 
Trade payables 19 
Other current liabilities 20 
Provisions 21 
Other Financial Liabilites 22 

Total Current liabilities 
Total Egui~ & Liabilities 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No : 131092W 

Sd/­
D.H. Shatter 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 16937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 30th May 2024 
UDIN : 24016937BKBYMA5045 
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For and on behalf of the Board 

Sd/-

Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 014116899 

Sd/-
Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

As at 
31.03.2024 As at 

1,621.11 
22,168.17 

118.98 

97.49 
139.33 

19,138.23 
43,283.31 

17.61 

123.68 
2,325.50 

207.65 

5.61 

267.61 
L,947.oo 

"+01L.3U.~/ 

2,168.09 
19,914.22 
LL,uo"·,j·I 

3.00 
22,08S.31 

245.65 
22,662.62 

125.94 
23,034.21 

597.23 
218.97 
108.12 
186.16 

0.97 
1,111.4S 

46,230.97 

Sd/­
Shibanee M. Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No: 00507607 

Sd/-
Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

31.03.2023 

2,111.86 
362.55 

121.47 

97.49 
139.05 

1,862.58 
4,695.00 

12.57 

74.73 
43.37 
25.54 

5.47 
-

44.53 
"uo.:.!1 

4,9Ul.Ll 

2,168.09 
273.71 

L,..-+1.ou 

2,441.80 

233.56 
1,058.22 

126.91 
1,418.69 

486.31 
275.70 
101.94 
175.90 

0.87 
1,040.72 
4,901.21 
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---------------r:i--
PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended Mrach 31, 2024 

Particulars Notes 

INCOME 
Revenue from operations 23 
Other income 24 
Total income 

EXPENSES 
Cost of Operations 25 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 

26 
work in process and stock in trade 
Employee benefits expense 27 
Finance costs 28 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 
Other expenses 30 
Total expenses 

Profit I (loss) before Exceptional item for the year 
Exceptional Items- Note no 32 32 
Less : Tax expenses 

- Current tax 30 
- Short /(excess) provision of earlier years 
- Deferred tax 

Total tax expense 
Profit I (loss) before Exceptional item for the year 

Profit I (loss) for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 
Reimbursement of employee defined benefit obligation 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share 31 
Nominal value of share Rs.10 : Basic 

: Diluted 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Firm Registration No: 131092W 

Sd/-
D.H. Shatter 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 16937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 30th May 2024 

UDIN : 24016937BKBYMA5045 
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Sd/-

Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No. :014116899 

Sd/-
Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

2,747.1 
207.4 

2,954.4 

831.1 

610.9 
148.4 
196.0 
922.3 

2,708.6 

245.9 
19,468.2 

61.5 

12.1 

73.6 

19,640.5 

-
-

19,640.5 

140.4 
140.4 

Sd/­
Shibanee M. Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No : 00507607 

Sd/-
Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 

2,586.0 
37.4 

2,623.3 

-
723.4 

500.0 
152.5 
216.5 
931.6 

2,524.1 

99.2 

-
24.8 

6.5 
31.3 

67.9 

-8.2 
-8.2 

76.1 

0.5 
0.5 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

Operating activities 
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax 

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash inflow from operating activities 

Finance Cost 
Depreciation 

Unrealised Income on Mutual 
Fund 

Provision for Doubtful Debts 

Interest Income 
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of non-current investments 
Credit Balance Written Back (Net) 

Working capital adjustments:-
(Increase) I Decrease in 
Inventories 

(Increase) I Decrease in 
Other Loans and advances 
(Increase) I Decrease in 
Other current assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in Trade and other Receivables 
Increase/( Decrease) in Provision 
Increase/( Decrease) in Trade Payables 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilties & Provisions 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Short Tenn Borrowing 

Income taxes paid 
Net cash flow from operating activities 

Investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
(Purchase)/Sale of Investments 
Changes in Non Current Investments 
Changes in Other financial assets 
Interest Income 

Net cash flow used in investing activities 

Financing activities 
Change in NCI 
Defered tax Liabilities 
Short Term Borrowings 
Interest paid 

Net cash flow from financing activities 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Note 10) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear (Note 1 O) 

Note: 
The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows. 

For Shatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 131092W 

Sd/­
D.H. Shatter 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 16937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 30th May 2024 
UDIN : 24016937BKBYMA5045 
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For and on behalf of the Board 

Sd/-

Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No. :014116899 

Sd/-
Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

Asat Asat 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

19,714.1 

148.4 
196.0 

0.1 

2.1 
20,058.6 

(5.0) 

(17,275.9) 

(223.1) 
(49.0) 
10.3 

(56.7) 
6.2 

110.9 
2,576.2 

(73.6' 
2,502.6 

(21,508.4) 
(2,282.1) 

-
(0.9) 
<0.11 

(23,791.5 

3.0 
12.1 

21,604.4 
(148.4' 

21,471.1 

182.3 
31.0 

213.3 

Sd/­
Shibanee M. Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No : 00507607 

Sd/-
Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 

99.2 

152.5 
216.5 

-

-

0.2 
-
2.1 

470.5 

(2.0) 

(359.7 

(23.4, 

(73.4) 
28.7 

136.1 
(10.4' 
87.6 

254.1 
(24.8' 

229.3 

(317.6, 
(43.1' 

-
-

<0.21 
(360.91 

6.5 
247.3 

(152.5' 
101.2 

(30.4) 
61.4 
31.0 

116 



r.:J PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 

PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Accompanying notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 
NOTE: 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I. Company Overview 

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to PHOENIX 
TOWNSHIP LIMITED its Subsidiary Company Green First 
Estate Private Limited The Company and its Subsidiaries are 
together referred to as "Group PHOENIX TOWNSHIP 
LIMITED (the company) is a Public limited company 
incorporated on 10/02/1993 under the provisions of The Indian 
Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity Number (CIN) 
L67190GA1993PLC001327. Its shares are listed in Bombay 
stock exchange. The Registered office is situated at Panjim in the 
state of Goa. The company is engaged in providing Services 
relating to hotel business. 

Green First Estate Private limited is subsidiary with 97% holding 
of Phoenix Township Limited. 

II. Significant accounting policies: 

I) Basis of Preparation and Presentation: 

Compliance with Ind AS 

The financial statements are based on the classification 
provisions contained in Ind AS 1, 'Presentation of Financial 
Statements' and division II of schedule III of the Companies Act 
2013. Further, for the purpose of clarity, various items are 
aggregated in statement of profit and loss and balance sheet. 
Nonetheless, these items are dis-aggregated separately in the 
notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required. 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non­
current as per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria 
set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the 
nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities. 
Authorisation of Financial Statements: The Financial 
Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a 
resolution of the directors on 30th May, 2024. 

ii) Use of Estimates and Judgments: 

The preparation of the financial statements of the Company in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, 
liabilities and the accompanying disclosures along with 
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. These 
estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of 
current events and actions; however uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may 
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require adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities 
in future periods. Appropriate revisions in estimates are made as 
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Revisions in estimates are recognized 
prospectively in the financial statements in the period in which 
the estimates are revised in any future periods affected. 

iii) Fair Value Measurement: 

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair 
value at each reporting date. Certain accounting policies and 
disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both 
financial and non-financial asset and liabilities 

The Company used valuation techniques, which were 
appropriate in circumstances and for which sufficient data were 
available considering the expected loss/ profit in case of financial 
assets or liabilities. 

iv) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being 
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined 
terms of payment. 

Revenue in respect of export sales is recognised on shipment of 
products. 

Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) 
method. 

Dividend Income on Investments is accounted for when the right 
to receive the payment is established. 

v) Inventories 

Inventories of Raw Materials, Finished Goods, Semi-Finished 
Goods, Accessories and Packing Materials are valued at cost or 
net realizable value, whichever is lower. Goods in transit are 
valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost 
comprises of all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location 
and conditions. Cost is arrived at on WeightedAverage basis. 

vi)Property, plant and equipment 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Property, plant and 
equipment is carried at the cost of acquisition or construction and 
depreciated over its estimated useful life. An impairment loss is 
recognized in addition if an asset's recoverable amount falls 
below its carrying amount. 
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or 
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it meets 
the asset recognition criteria as per Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant 
and Equipment. 

Significant asset components with different useful lives are 
accounted for and depreciated separately. 

If there are indications that an individual item of property, plant 
and equipment may be impaired, the recoverable amount is 
compared to the carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 
If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an 
impairment loss is recognized for the difference. If the reasons 
for a previously 

recognized impairment loss no longer apply, the impairment loss 
is reversed provided that the reversal does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of 
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the 
asset in prior years. 

i) IntangibleAssets 

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at 
cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried 
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

Intangible Assets are amortized on a systematic basis over its 
useful life on straight line basis and the amortization for each 
period will be recognized as an expense. 

ii) Depreciation 

Depreciation on Plant, Property and Equipment has been 
provided based on the useful life of the assets as prescribed in 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each reporting date. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have 
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and 
equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated 
depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon 
sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
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iii) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs incurred in 
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also 
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of qualifying assets (i.e. an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use) 
are capitalized as a part of the cost of such assets. All other 
borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

iv) Taxes on Income 

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net 
change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, 
the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

a) CurrentlncomeTax 

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are 
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities based on the taxable income for that 
period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 
those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance 
sheet date. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company: 

~ has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized 
amounts; and 

~ intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

b) Deferred Income Tax 

Deferred tax is recognized for the future tax consequences of 
deductible temporary differences between the carrying values of 
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases at the 
reporting date, using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or 
substantively enacted as on reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable income will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits 
can be utilized. 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: 

);> Entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities; and 

);> Deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to 
the income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. 

v) Leases 

Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an 
expense on a straight line basis in the statement of profit and loss 
over the lease term except where the lease payments are 
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation. 

For arrangements entered into prior to l April 2015, the 
Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease 
on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of 
transition. 

vi) FinancialAssets: 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value 
through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value plus 
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the 
classification of the respective financial assets. The Company 
classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair 
value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for 
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial asset. 

(i) Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the 
following conditions are met: 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to 
hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and Contractual 
terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the 
principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in 
the Statement of Profit & Loss. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 
? 
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(ii) Debt instruments at Fair value through Other 
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the fair value through other 
comprehensive income if both the following conditions are met: 

);> The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets 

);> Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding 

After initial measurement, these assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value. Interest income under effective interest 
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. Other net gains and 
losses are recognised in other comprehensive Income. 

(iii) Debt instruments at Fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL) 

Fair value through profit or loss is a residual category for debt 
instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is 
classified as at FVTPL. 

(iv) Equity investments 

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at 
fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are 
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the 
Company decides to classify the same either as at FVOCI or 
FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument­
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable. 

For equity instruments classified as FVOCI, all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized 
in other comprehensive income (OCI). 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are 
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the 
Statement of Profit & Loss. 

c) Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset 
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily 
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) 
when. 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 
'pass-through' arrangement; and either: 
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» The Company has transferred substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, or 
» The Company has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 

On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments 
and equity instruments (measured at FVTPL) are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit & Loss. Accumulated gains or losses on 
equity instruments measured at FVOCI are never reclassified to 
the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

d) Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected 
Credit Loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the financial assets measured at amortised 
cost. 

Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the 
'simplified approach' at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL at 
each reporting date. In respect of other financial assets measured 
at amortised cost, the loss allowance is measured at 12 month 
ECL for financial assets with low credit risk at the reporting date 
and there is a significant deterioration in the credit risk since 
initial recognition of the asset. 

xiii) Financial Liabilities: 

a)Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of 
transaction costs that are attributable to the respective liabilities. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the 
classification of the respective financial liabilities. The 
Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss. 

(i) Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL) 

A financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit or 
loss ifit is classified as held-for-trading or is designated as such 
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
?Ieasured at fair value and changes therein, including any 
mterest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss. 

(ii) Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those 
which are classified as fair value through profit or loss are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method ("EIR"). 
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs 
in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

c) Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under 
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
l~n~e~ on substantially ?ifferent terms, or the terms of an existing 
hab1hty are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in 
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit & Loss. 

xiv) Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there 
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

xv) Fair value of financial instruments 

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the 
Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are 
based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting 
date. 

Fair value hierarchy: 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial 
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the 
end of each reporting period. 
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xvi) Financial guarantees 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Corporation are 
those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse 
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to 
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of the 
debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised 
initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the 
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment 
requirements oflndAS 109 and the fair value initially recognised 
less cumulative amortisation. 

xvii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, 
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that 
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having 
original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
purchase, to be cash equivalents. 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks 
and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any 
time without prior notice or penalty on the principal. Bank 
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in 
the balance sheet. 

xviii) Employee Benefits 

Short term employee benefits: 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of 
rendering the service are classified as short-term employee 
benefits. These benefits include short term compensated 
absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of 
short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for 
the services rendered by employees is recognized as an expense 
during the period. Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and 
the paid or expected cost of the incentives I miscellaneous 
welfare compensations I bonus I ex-gratia are recognised in the 
period in which the employee renders the related service. 

Long term employee benefits: 

Defmed Contribution plans: 

Company's periodical makes contribution to several vital funds 
and employee benefits insurances schemes its cost has been 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year where 
such contributions to the respective funds are due or on accrual 
basis. 

Such contribution are to the Employee's Provident fund Scheme, 
1952 govern by regional provident funds commissioner, 
Maharashtra whereby Company's employee are obligation 
towards pension and retirement benefits are covered 
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Defined benefit plans: 

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an 
independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on project 
unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The Company 
recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its 
balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re­
measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are 
recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with 
Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit 
plans recognised in OCI are not be to be subsequently 
reclassified to statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind 
AS compliant Schedule III, the Company transfers it 
immediately to retained earnings. 

xix) Events after Reporting date 

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide 
evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial 
statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of 
material size or nature are only disclosed. 

xx) Foreign Currency Transactions: 

a) Functional and Presentation Currency: 

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees which is 
the functional currency for the Company. All amounts have been 
rounded off to the nearest lakh, unless otherwise indicated. 
Hence, the figures already reported for all the quarters during the 
year might not add up to the year figures reported in this 
statement. 

b) Transactions and Balances 

> Transactions denominated in foreign currency are normally 
accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of 
transaction. 

> Monetary assets and Liabilities in foreign currency 
transactions remaining unsettled at the end of the year are 
translated at the year-end rates and the corresponding effect is 
given to the statement of profit and loss. 

> Exchange differences' arising on account of fluctuations in 
the rate of exchange is recognized in the statement of Profit & 
Loss. 

> Exchange rate difference ansmg on account of 
conversion/translation of liabilities incurred for acquisition of 
Fixed Assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

> Non-monetary items are reported at the exchange rate at 
the date of transaction. 
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xxi) Impairment of Assets: 

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there 
is any indication that any property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets with finite life may be impaired. If any such 
impairment exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is 
estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it 
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

xxii) Provisions: 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the 
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end 
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

Provisions are not discounted to present value and are 
determined based on best estimate required to settle the 
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. 

xxiii) Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond 
the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not 
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability 
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that 
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The 
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses 
its existence in the condensed standalone financial statements. 

xxiv) Earnings per Share 

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net 
profit attributable to equity shareholders for the period by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. 

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per 
share comprises the weighted average shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per share, and also the weighted average 
number of equity shares which could be issued on the conversion 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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xxv) Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current 
and Non-Current: 

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current 
as per the Corporation's normal operating cycle (determined at 
12 months) and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Act. 

xxvi) Cash Flows 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by net 
profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a 
non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or 
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The 
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are 
segregated. 

xxvii) Operating Segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the 
internal reporting provided to Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(CODM). 

The Company has identified its Managing Director as CODM 
which assesses the operational performance and position of the 
Company and makes strategic decisions. 

xxviii) Recent accounting pronouncements 

New and amended standards adopted by the Company: 

On June 18, 2021, MCA through a notification has notified 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2021. However those amendments do not have any impact on the 
financial statements of the Company. 

New Standards or other amendments issued but not yet effective: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or 
amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. 

On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable 
fromApril 1, 2022, Key amendments are as below: 

Ind AS 16- Property Plant and equipment-

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items 
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised 
in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable 
costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and 
equipment. 
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lndAS 37 -Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and ContingentAssets -

The amendment specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that related 
directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an 
allocation ofother costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an 
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). 

For Shatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 131092W 

Sd/­
D.H. Shatter 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 16937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 30th May 2024 
UDIN : 24016937BKBYMA5045 
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For and on behalf of the Board 

Sd/-

Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No. :014116899 

Sd/-
Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

Sd/­
Shibanee M. Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No : 00507607 

Sd/-
Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL : 

Paid up Capital (Refer Note 15) 

OTHER EQUITY : 

Particulars 
Balance as at April 1, 2022 
ProfiULoss for the year 
Interim Dividend Paid 
Dividend Tax Paid on Interim Dividend 
Other Comgrehensive Income : 
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 

ProfiULoss for the year 
Interim Dividend Paid 
Dividend Tax Paid on Interim Dividend 
Provision for final Dividend payable 
Provision for Dividend Tax Paid on final Dividend 
payable 
On issue during the year 
Other Comgrehensive Income : 
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 131092W 

Sd/­
D.H. Shatter 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 16937 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 30th May, 2024 
UDIN : 2401693BKBYMA5045 
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Changes in 
Balance as at equity 

1st April, 2022 share capital 
during the year 

2,168.087 -

Securities 
Premium Capital reserves 
Reserve 

- 4.250 
- -
- -
- -

- -
- 4.250 

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

- 4.250 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 014116899 

Sd/-

Deepak Pednekar 
Chief Financial Officer 

Balance as at 
1st April, 2023 

2,168.087 

Retained 
Earnings 

181.250 
67.931 

-
-

-
249.181 

19,640.511 
-
-
-

-
-
-

19,889.692 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Changes in 

Balance as at 
equity 

31st March, 
share capital 

2024 
during the year 

- 2,168.087 

(Rupees in lakhs) 

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 
12.074 

-
-

8.198 
20.273 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

20.273 

Sd/­
Shibanee M. Harlalka 
Director 
DIN No: 00507607 

Sd/-

Mansi Thakkar 
Company Secretry 

Total 

197.584 
67.931 

-
-

8.198 
273.713 

19,640.511 
-
-
-

-
-

19,914.215 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 2 : Property, Plant and Equipment 

Following are lhe changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2023: 

Particulars 
Land & Site 

Building 
Plant and Computers Office 

Development machinaries Equipments Equipments 

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2022 1,049.77 1,585.45 463.07 39.80 21.90 
Additions 56.99 105.57 4.58 11.63 
Deletions ~.11) 
Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2023 1,049.77 1,642.44 561.53 44.38 33.53 

Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2022 802.69 403.65 39.55 21.15 
Charge for lhe period 95.35 53.78 1.92 2.68 
Deduction I Adjustments during lhe period 
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2023 898.04 457.42 41.47 23.84 
Carrying value as of March 31, 2023 1,049.77 744.40 104.10 2.91 9.69 

Following are lhe changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 
Land & Site 

Building 
Plant and Computers Office 

Development machinaries Equipments Equipments 

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2023 1,049.77 1,642.44 561.53 44.38 33.53 
Additions 18.87 79.28 0.74 
Deletions 477.80 
Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2024 571.97 1,661.31 640.81 44.38 34.28 

Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2023 898.04 457.42 41.47 23.84 
Charge for lhe period 96.16 33.03 1.53 3.06 
Deduction I Adjustments during lhe period 
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2024 994.20 490.46 43.00 26.90 
Carrying value as of March 31, 2024 571.97 667.11 150.36 1.38 7.38 

Vehicle 
Furniture & 

Fixtures 

69.07 461.94 
94.77 43.98 

163.85 505.91 

61.68 346.85 
15.73 44.52 

77.41 391.37 
86.44 114.54 

Vehicle 
Furniture & 

Fixtures 

163.85 505.91 
40.47 41.17 

204.32 547.08 

77.41 391.37 
15.59 44.11 

93.00 435.49 
111.32 111.59 

C.W.l.P. Total 

355.35 
180.39 

(173.19) 
362.55 

362.55 

C.W.l.P. Total 

22,122.04 
46.13 

22,168.17 

22,168.17 

4,046.35 
497.91 

(180.30) 
4,363.96 

1,675.58 
213.97 

1,889.56 
2,474.41 

26,123.45 
226.67 
477.80 

25,872.32 

1,889.56 
193.49 

2,083.04 
23,789.28 
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Note: 
For Property, Plant & Equipment exisiting as on the date of transition to IND -AS, the Company has used Indian GAAP carrying value as deemed cost. 

Note 2(a) : Capital Work in Progresss 

Particular Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total 
Project in Progress 21,805.62 180.39 182 22,168.17 
Other - Non Project CWIP 
Total 21,805.62 180.39 182.16 22,168.17 

Note 3 : Intangible assets 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the year ended March 31, 2023: 
Particulars Goodwill ROUAssets Total 

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2022 49.02 129.86 178.88 
Additions - - -
Deletions - - -
Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2023 49.02 129.86 178.88 

-
Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2022 49.02 5.90 54.92 
Charge for the period 2.49 2.49 
Deduction I Adjustments during the period - - -
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2023 49.02 8.39 57.41 
Carrying value as of March 31, 2023 - 121.47 121.47 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the year ended March 31, 2024 
Particulars Goodwill ROUAssets Total 

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2023 49.02 129.86 178.88 
Additions - - -
Deletions - - -
Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2024 49.02 129.86 178.88 

-
Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2023 49.02 I 8.39 57.41 
Charge for the period 2.49 2.49 
Deduction I Adjustments during the period - - -
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2024 49.02 I 10.88 59.89 
Carrying value as of March 31, 2024 - I 118.98 118.98 
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PHOENIX TOWNSHIP LIMITED 
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 4: Non Current Investments 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

As at As at 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
Unquoted.Fully Paid Up 
Investment in Equitv Shares 
t:qu1ty :snare 3.15 3.2 
Investment 1n Property 5.59 5.6 
Investment with Trust 88.75 88.8 

.. 
Investment in Subsidiary Company 

Green First Estate Private Limited - -

97.49 97.5 

Note 5 : Other financial assets 

l\S a1 l\S a1 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Lease Deposit 113.00 113.00 
Deposit for Leased Apt./Staff Accomodation 3.57 3.29 
Deposit on empty bottles/others 0.12 0.12 
Deposit against Gas Supply 1.00 1.06 
Other Deposit 15.64 15.58 
Deposit with GSPB 6.00 6.00 

139.33 139.05 

Note 6 : Other non-current assets 

"'ell "'ell 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Staff Advances 12.86 7.2 
Advances of ZFL 141.04 139.5 
Other Advances 1,112.36 1,715.9 
Advance from Creditors/ Suppliers - -
Advance Against Agricultural Land -Glacier Trade Private Limited* 2,125.97 -
Green First Estate Pvt Lid - OCD • 15,746.00 -

19,138.23 1,862.6 

*Note No: 1 : Advance for Purchase of Agricultural Land 
The Company has advanced funds to Glacier Trade Private Limited for the acquisition of agricultural land situated in Goa Velha. The land area measures 23,000 square meters. This 
advance is recorded as a non-<:urrent asset until the completion of the purchase transaction, in accordance with all legal formalities and the relevant statutory provisions. 

*Note No. 2: The Company has subscribed to 15,746 Optional Convertible Debentures (OCDs) issued by Green First Estate Private Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Phoenix Township 
Limited. Each debenture has a face value of 100,000, amounting to a total value of 15,746 lakhs. The OCDs beara nominal interest rate of 0.1% per annum.All legal formalities and 
applicable provisions of the relevant Acts have been duly complied with. 
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Note 7: Inventories 
(Valued at lower of cost or Net Realisable Value) 

As at As at 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Food & Beverges 11.86 9.2 
Operating supplies 4.31 1.8 
Printing & Stationery 1.23 1.5 
Engineering supplies 0.21 0.0 

17.61 12.6 

Note 8 : Trade receivables 

l\S at #\Seit 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Unsecured, Considered Good Less than 6 Month 123.68 74.7 
Net Unsecured, Considered Doubttul Others -
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful Others 
Less : Provision for Bad Debts 

-

Current Portion 123.68 74.7 

Note 8{a) : Trade receivable (Advance From Customers) 

Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1- 2 years More than 3 years Total 
Particulars months 

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 123.68 .. .. .. 123.68 
.. .. .. .. .. 

Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk - - - - -

.. .. .. .. .. 

.. .. .. .. .. 

Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - .. .. .. .. .. 
.. .. .. .. .. 

Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - - - .. .. .. .. .. 
.. .. .. .. .. 

Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant 
increase in credit risk 

Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 123.68 123.68 
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Note 9 : Current Investments 

Particulars 

Unquoted Investments 
Investments in Mutual Funds at fair value through Profit and loss* 
Mutual Fund 

A1111re11ate Value of Unauoted Investments 

• Represents lien marked against varios funded and non-funded banking facilities . 

Note 10: Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with Banks in 
-Rupees Current Accounts 
-Foreign Currency Current Accounts 
Cash on Hand 

Note 11 : Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 3 to 12 months # 
Earmarked balances with banks 
Unpaid Dividend @ 

# Include accured interest on bank deposits. lien marked against varios funded and non-funded banking facilities . 

Note 12 : Other financial assets 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Particulars 

Security Deposite for Tender 
Corporate Fixed Deposit 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for the value to be received 

Note 13 : Other current assets 

Particulars 

TCS Paid on Liqour Purchases/TDS Receivable 
Prepaid Expenses 
Service Tax/GST Input 
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As at Asat 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

2,325.50 43.4 

2,325.50 43.4 

2,325.50 43.4 

Asat Asat 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

144.36 2.9 
- -

63.29 22.7 

207.65 25.5 

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

5.61 5.5 

-

5.61 5.5 

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

- -
-

- -

-

Asal Asal 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

244.75 27.6 
2.53 2.1 

20.33 14.8 

267.61 44.5 
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Note 14 : Share capital 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Authorised 
202.00 lakhs Equity Shares of Rs.1 O each 2,020.0 2,020.0 
78.00 lakhs Preference Share of Rs. 10 each 780.0 780.0 

2,800.0 2,800.0 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up 
139.84 lakhs Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully Paid Up 1,398.4 1,398.4 
76.97 lakhs Preference Shares of Rs.10 each fully Paid Up 769.7 769.7 

2,168.1 2,168.1 

The Company issued Cumulative Redeemable Preference share @ 10/- each, which are redeemable after 6 years but before 15 years and will convert in Equity 
share only. 

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period 

Particulars 
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 

No. in lakhs Rs. In lakhs No. in lakhs Rs. In lakhs 
Equity Shares 
At the beginning of the year 139.840 1,398.430 139.84 1,398.4 
Issued during the year . . . . 
Outstanding at the end of the year 139.840 1,398.430 139.84 1,398.4 

Terms I rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company: 

Particulars Asal 31.03.2024 Asal 31.03.2023 
No. % holding No. % holding 

Dr. Prafulla R. Hede . . . 
Mr. Samit P. Hede 777,086 5.560 777,086 5.560 
Mrs. Shibanee M. Harlalka 1,541,447 13.910 1,541,447 11.020 

Hede Consultancy Company Pvt. Ltd. 2,242,880 16.040 2,242,880 16.040 
Jwala Investment & Trading Pvt.Ltd. 3,981,307 28.470 3,981,307 28.470 
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Other Information 

Promoter's Shareholding 

Name of Promote~s As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 

Hede Consultancy Company Pvt Ltd 2,242,880 16.04 2,242,880 16.04 
Hede Navigation Pvt.Ltd. (Jwala Investment &Trading Pvt.Ltd.) 3,981,307 28.47 3,981,307 28.47 
Glacier Trades Pvt Ltd 210,700 1.51 210,700 1.51 
Colaba Real Estate Private Limited 99,115 0.71 99,115 0.71 
Seema Arun Pawar 381,625 2.73 381,625 2.73 
Star Galaxy Trades Pvt Ltd 212,807 1.52 212,807 1.52 
Samit Prafulla Hede 777,086 5.56 777,086 5.56 
Shibani M Harlalka 1,946,190 13.91 1,946,190 13.91 

Total 9,851,710 70.44 9,851,710 70.44 

Transfer/ Changes in Promoter's Shareholding 

No.of Shares held at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during the 
Name of Promoter's 

As On Date No. of Shares 
% of total shares of 

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company the company 

Hede Consultancy Company Pvt Ltd 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 2,242,880 16.04 2,242,880.00 16.04 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 2,242,880.00 16.04 

Hede Navigation Private Limited 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 3,981,307 28.47 3,981,307.00 28.47 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 3,981,307.00 28.47 

Glacier Trades Pvt Ltd 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 210,700 1.51 210,700.00 1.51 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year NIL NIL 
At the End ofthe year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 210,700.00 1.51 

Colaba Real Estate Private Limited 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 99,115 0.71 99,115.00 0.71 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 99,115.00 0.71 

Seema Arun Pawar 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 381,625 2.73 381,625.00 2.73 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 381,625.00 2.73 

Star Galaxy Trades Pvt Ltd 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 212,807 1.52 212,807.00 1.52 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 212,807.00 1.52 

Samit Prafulla Hede 
At the beginning of the year 01/04/2023 777,086 5.56 777,086.00 5.56 
Date wise Increase I Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year NIL NIL 
At the End of the year 31/03/2024 0 0.00 777,086.00 5.56 
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Note 15 : Other Equity 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL: 

Balance as at 
1st April, 2022 

Paid up Capital (Refer Note 14) 2,168.087 

OTHER EQUITY : 
Securities 
Premium 

Particulars Reserve 
Balance as at April 1, 2022 -
Profit/ Loss for the year -
Interim Dividend Paid -
Dividend Tax Paid on Interim Dividend -
Other Com1:1rehensive Income : 
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 -

Profit/ Loss for the year -
Interim Dividend Paid -
Dividend Tax Paid on Interim Dividend -
Provision for final Dividend payable -
Provision for Dividend Tax Paid on final Dividend 
payable -
On issue during the year -
Other Com1:1rehensive Income : 
Remeasurements of net defined benefit 1lans -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 -

Particulars 

Securities Premium 
Balance at the beginning and end of the period 

Other Reserves (Speacial Capital Incentive) 
Balance at the beginning and end of the period 

Surplus I (deficit) in the statement of profit and 
loss 
Balance at the beginning of the period 
Add: Profit I (loss) for the year 

Less: 
Interim Dividend Paid 
Dividend Tax Paid on Interim Dividend 
Provision for final Dividend payable 
Provision for Dividend Tax Paid on final Dividend payable 
Closing Balance 

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 

Total 
Nature and Purpose of Reserves 
Securities Premium Reserve 

Changes in equity 
Balance as at 1st 

Changes in equity 
Balance as at 31st 

share capital 
April, 2023 

share capital during 
March, 2024 

during the year the year 

- 2,168.087 - 2,168.087 

Reserves and Surplus 
Other 

Capital Reserve Retained Earnings Comprehensive Total 
Income 

4.250 181.250 12.1 197.584 
67.931 - 67.931 

- - - -
- - - -

-
- - 8.2 8.198 
4.3 249.2 20.3 273.713 

19,640.511 19,640.511 
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

- - - -
- - - -

-
- -
- 19,640.511 - 19,914.225 

AS at AS at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

-

-

273.71 197.6 
19,640.51 67.9 
19,914.22 265.5 

-
-
-
-

19,914.22 265.5 

8.2 

19,914.22 273.7 

Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.. 
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Capital Reserve 
Capital reserve will be utilised in accordance with provision of the Act. 

Retained Earnings 
Retained Earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to shareholders 

Propose Dividend 
The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders and prefrence shareholder is determined 
considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the dividend distribution policy of the Company. 

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 30, 2024 has recommended a final dividend of Rs 0.25 per equity 
share & Rs 0.10 per prefrence share (face value of Rs 10 each) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The dividend is subject 
to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting of the company .. 

Non Current Liabilities 

Note 16 : Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Particulars 
Asat Asal 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Excess of net block of fixed assets as per books of accounts over net block for tax purpose 233.56 227.1 
Add: Current year laibility 12.09 6.5 
Deferred Tax Assets 
Provision for Expenses . 

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans . 

Net Deferred Tax liability (a·b) 245.65 233.56 
Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) for the year 12.09 6.5 
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Note 17 : Long Term Borrowings 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Term Loan: From Bank & Other Finanical Institutes 
HDFC Ltd (Secured Against Equitable Mortgage of the Building) - S.S 
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim, and Personal Guarantee of Directors, Term Loan of 2.4S Cr 
@ Interest 9.5% p.a for a period of 5 years.) 

Daimler Financial Services India Pvt.Ltd.-2022 49.25 57.S 
(Hypothecation of Motor Car, Moler Car Loan 69.20L@ Interest Rate 11.30% for a period of 7 years) 

HDFC Bank (WCTL) - -
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim and Stocks, Term Loan of SOL Cr@ Interest 9.5% p.a for a 
period of 4 years.) 

HDFC Bank WCTL 2022 - 60.7 
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim, Working capital Term Loan of SOL Cr@ Interest 9. 75% p.a 
for a period of 5 years 2 Month.) 

HDFC Bank (Vehicle Loan Secured Against Car) - -
(Hypothecation of Motor Car, Moler Car Loan 15L @ Interest Rate S.SO% for a period of 5 years) -

HDFC Bank (Garbage Truck Secured Against Truck) - -
(Hypothecation of Garbage Truck, Garbage Truck Loan 9.5L@ Interest Rate 10.00% for a period of 4 years) 

HDFC Bank (GECL Covid Loan) - 7.3 
(GECL Covid Loan 7S.40L@ Interest Rate S.25% for a period of 4 years, 1 year moratorium) 

HDFC Bank (GECL Loan) - 71.3 
(GECL Covid Loan S4.13L@ Interest Rate S.25% for a period of 4 years, 2year moratorium) 

NKGSB Loan 447.3S 535.0 
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim, Term Loan of SCr @ Interest 10.50% p.a for a period of 10 
years. 

Drop Down Overdraft Facility from ICICI Bank Limited (DLOD) 3S9.17 
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim, and Personal Guarantee of Directors, Drop down overdraft 

facility of 5 Cr@ Interest 9.15% p.a for a period of 10 years.) 

NKGSB GECL LOAN - 0010 - 100.0 
(GECL Loan 100 Lakh @ Interest Rate 9.25% for a period of 6 years, 2year moratorium) 

NKGSB GECL LOAN - 0011 - 45.0 
(GECL Loan 45 Lakh @ Interest Rate 9.25% for a period of 6 years, 2year moratorium) 

NKGSB GECL Loan Ale No - 0001 - 150.0 

(GECL Loan 150 Lakh@ Interest Rate 9.25% for a period of 6 years, 2year moratorium) 

NKGSB Auto Loan - 205S S.55 

(Hypothecation of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 10.15 Lakh @ Interest Rate S.50% for a period of 7 years) 
NKGSB Auto Loan - 2059 13.2S 

(Hypothecation of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 15.76 Lakh@ Interest Rate S.50% for a period of 7 years) 
NKGSB Auto Loan - 2060 9.00 

(Hypothecalion of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 10.76 Lakh@ Interest Rate S.50% for a period of 7 years) 

Debenture NCD 6,000.00 
NCD Debenture Issued by Green First Estate Private Limited to DMI Group Subcription of 6000 Debenture@ 
100000 Face Value with 9 % Interest rate 

OCD Debenture 
OCD Debenture Issued by Green First Estate Private Limited to Phoenix Township Limited Subcription of 157 46 15,746.00 
Debenture @ 100000 Face Value with 0.1 % Interest rate 

22,662.62 1,035.9 
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Note 17 A: Other financial liabilities 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Un-Secured Loan 

Tata Capital Finance Limited . 1.8 

Tata Capital Finance Limited Covid -19 . 1.2 

Inter-Corporate Loans . 2.6 

From Directors & Others . 13.1 

Others 
Times Share Money 3.50 3.6 

3.50 22.4 

TOTAL 22,666.1 1,058.2 
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Note 18: Short Term Borrowings 

Particulars 
Asal Asal 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Working capital loans from banks 
Secured 
Working Capital Assistance Loan from HDFC Banks - 165.3 
(Working Capital Assistance Loan for Merchant establishment overdraft facility (Credit Card Payments facility) of 
Rs. 75L (originally it was 30L)@ Interest rate 10% for indefinite period) 

Working Capital Assistance Loan from NKGSB Banks 0.91 132.2 
(Overdraft facility (OVPD) of Rs. 130L (Originally it was 30L) @ Interest rate 10% for indefinite period) 

Working Capital Assistance Loan from ICICI Bank 459.34 
(Overdraft facility (OVPD) of Rs. 500L ( @ Interest rate 9.15% for indefinite period) 

Drop Down Overdraft Facility from ICICI Bank Limited (DLOD) 45.83 
(Landed Property and Building Situated at Candolim, and Personal Guarantee of Directors, Drop down overdraft 
facility of 5 Cr@ Interest 9.15% p.a for a period of 10 years.) 

HDFC Ltd (Secured Against Equitable Mortgage of the Building) - 58.2 

Daimler Financial Services India Pvt.Ltd.-2022 8.52 7.7 

HDFC Bank (WCTL) - 2.4 

HDFC Bank WCTL 2022 - 13.0 

HDFC Bank (Vehicle Loan Secured Against Car) 0.8 

HDFC Bank (Garbage Truck Secured Against Truck) 1.8 

HDFC Bank (GECL Covid-19 Loan - 2020) - 27.7 

HDFC Bank (GECL Covid-19 Loan - 2021) - 12.9 

NKGSB Loan Term Loan 72.00 56.0 

NKGSB Auto Loan - 2058 1.15 -
(Hypothecation of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 10.15 Lakh @ Interest Rate 8.50% for a period of 7 years) 

NKGSB Auto Loan - 2059 1.78 -
(Hypothecation of vahicle, Vahicle Loan 15.76 Lakh @ Interest Rate 8.50% for a period of 7 years) 

NKGSB Auto Loan - 2060 1.19 -
(Hypothecation ofvahicle, Vahicle Loan 10.76 Lakh@ Interest Rate 8.50% for a period of7 years) 

Un-Secured Loan 

Tata Capital Finance Limited 1.78 6.4 
-

Tata Capital Finance Limited Covid -19 1.23 1.9 

593.73 486.3 
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Notes on BORROWING 
Loan from Directors & Others are interest free loans and it is payable within the short span of time (i.e within 2-3years) 

Note 19 : Trade payables 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Current 
Trade payables 218.97 275.7 

218.97 275.7 

The Company had sought cofirmation from the vendors whether they fall in the category of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. In view of insufficient 
information from suppliers regarding their status the amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises can not be ascertained. 

Note 19 (a) : Trade Payable (Ageing) 

Less Than 1 

Particulars year 1-2 years 2- 3 years More than 3 years Total 

- - - - -
MSME - - - - -

- - - - -

Others 175.55 37.62 5.80 218.97 

- - - - -
Disputed dues - MSM E - - - - -

- - - - -

Disputed dues - Others - - - - -

- - - - -
Total 175.55 37.62 5.80 - 218.97 

Note 20 : Other current liabilities 

As at As at 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Advances towards Compensation for use 11.51 11.9 

Payables towards Cost of Soft Furnishing 1.75 1.8 

Payables towards Legal Professional Fees. 3.14 3.3 

Advance towards Customer Services 13.04 14.4 

Security Deposit - 1.0 

Duties & Truces 42.78 29.7 

Advance From Customer 16.63 0.5 

Other Liabilities 19.27 39.3 

108.12 101.9 
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Note 21 : Provisions 

Particulars 
Asal Asal 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Provision For Tax 78.14 53.5 
Provision For Expenses 108.01 122.4 

186.16 175.9 

Note 22 : Other Financial Liabilites 

AS at AS at 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Non Current 
Lease Liability on ROU Assets 124.97 126.0 

Current 
Lease Liability on ROU Assets 0.97 0.9 

125.94 126.9 

Note 23 : Revenue from operations 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Revenue from operations 
Room Revenue 2,504.92 2,372.9 
Food & Beverages 241.44 210.1 

Other operating revenue 
Others 0.71 2.9 
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuations (net) 

2,747.07 2,586.0 
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Note 24 : Other income 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Interest income on Bank deposits 0.14 0.2 
Sale of SEIS License/ Interest Written Back . 1.6 
Dividend-MF 0.01 0.8 
Revenue from Shop Rental . 2.3 
Laundry Income 1.90 2.2 
Foreign Exchange . . 

Telephone, Fax Etc. . 0.0 
Revenue from Spa/Travel Desk 27.09 8.5 
Miscellaneus Income 4.86 3.0 
Agricultural Income 5.49 4.1 
Scrap Sales 7.95 2.2 
Banquet Rent 17.73 12.6 
Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund 140.69 . 

Profit on Sale of Equity Share 1.50 . 

207.37 37.4 

Note 25 : Cost of Operations 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Room Expenses. 607.29 554.6 
Food & Beverages. Expenses 223.78 168.8 

831.06 723.4 
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Note 26 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in process and stock in trade 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Opening Stocks 
• Stock in trade . 

. 

Less : Closing Stocks 
-Stock in trade . 

. 

. 

Note 27 : Employee benefits expense 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Salaries, wages & bonus 444.51 364.1 
Directors' remuneration 48.00 36.0 
Workmen & staff welfare 118.36 99.9 

610.87 500.0 

Note 28 : Finance costs 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Interest expense 148.38 152.5 

148.38 152.5 

Note 29 : Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment 193.49 214.0 
Depreciation on Intangible Properties 2.49 2.5 

195.98 216.5 
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Note 30 : Other expenses 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Heat, Light & Power Expenses 174.83 175.0 
Basic & Incentive Management Fees 5.51 9.3 
Franchise Fees 123.02 115.1 
Printing & Stationary 7.13 2.9 
Legal & Professional Fees 47.81 24.6 
Admn., Selling & Other Exp. 59.04 45.8 
Postage, Telex & Courier 6.93 1.8 
Provision for Bad Debts - -
Miscellaneous Exp. 1.13 1.1 
Bank Charges 14.43 3.3 
Lease Rent - -
Audit Fees 1.10 1.0 
Business Promotion Expenses 10.42 5.8 
Telephone, Fax & Internet Expenses 16.20 16.8 
Travelling & Desk Expenses 34.65 21.4 
Repairs & Maintenance 215.77 339.5 
loss on sale of MF - -
Meeting Exp. 0.17 0.8 
Commission & Brokerage 27.48 9.4 
Advertisement Expenses 6.28 4.0 
Insurance Charges 4.49 4.5 
Sitting Fees 2.25 2.0 
Freight & Handling 2.42 7.8 
General Expenses 44.97 47.7 
Spa and Parlor Exp 15.20 5.5 
Incentive Management Fees 101.04 86.6 
Prior Period Exp -

922.28 931.6 

Payments to Auditor 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Audit fees 1.00 1.0 
Certification -
Others -

1.00 1.0 
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Note 30 : -Current tax 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Tax Payable For the Year 61.47 24.8 
Short /(excess) provision of earlier years . 

61.47 24.8 

Note 31 : Earnings per equity share 

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 -Earning Per Share, the computation of earning per share is set below: 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares of Re. 10 each 
a) Number of shares at the beginning of the year 139.8 139.8 
b) Number of shares at the end of the period 139.8 139.8 
c) Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 139.8 139.8 

ii) Net Profit after tax available for equity shareholders 19,640.51 67.9 

iii) Basic Earning Per Share 140.45 0.5 

ivl Diluted Earnina Per Share 140.45 0.5 

Note: 
The Company does not have any dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently the basic and diluted earning per share of the Company remain the same. 

Note 32 : Exceptional Item 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Sale value of thivim Agricultural Land as per sale deed 19,946.00 

Cost of land as on date 477.80 

Profit on sale of Agricultural Land of Thivim 19,468.20 

The Company Fixed Assets includes total land measuring 316600 sq ft situated at Villege Thivim Bardez Taluka 
Sub-District of Bardez, District of North Goa, State of Goa out of it 52,900 sq ft is mark as institutional land in the 
regional plan of GOA 2021, and balance land measuring 2,63,900 is agriculture land used for agriculture purpose. 
During the year the Company has sold total agriculture land of 3, 16,600 sq mtr to it fully owned subsidiary namely 
Green First Estate Private Limited by complying all legal formalities and applicable provision of relevant Acf s. . 

19,468.2 
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Note 33 : Ratio's 

Particulars 
As at 31st March As at 31st March 

2024 2023 
Debtors Turnover (in Times) 

Net Credit Sales 2,747.07 2,586.00 
Average Accounts Receivable 161.05 38.05 

Ratio 17.06 67.96 

Inventory Turnover (in times) 

Cost of goods sold + 831.06 723.42 
average inventory. 23.90 11.58 

Ratio 34.78 62.48 

Interest Coverage Ratio (in Times) 

EBIT 397.36 251.78 
INTEREST EXPENSES 148.38 152.53 

Ratio 2.68 1.65 

Current Ratio (in Times) 

Current Assets I 2,947.66 206.21 
Current Liabilities 1,111.45 1,040.72 

Ratio 2.65 0.20 

Debt Equity Ratio (in Times) 

Total Debt/ 23,259.85 1,544.53 
Shareholders' Equity 22,082.31 2,441.80 

Ratio 1.05 0.63 

Operating Profit Margin (%) 

EBIT+ 394.25 251.78 
Total revenue 2,954.44 2,623.35 

Ratio 0.13 0.10 

Net Profit Margin (%) 

Net Profit 172.31 76.13 
Revenue 2,954.44 2,623.35 

Ratio 0.06 0.03 

Return to Net Worth (in %) 

Net Income/ 172.31 76.13 
Shareholders' Equity 22,082.31 2,441.80 

Ratio 0.01 0.03 
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Note 33 (1): Contingent Liabilities 

Contingent Liabilities not provided for : Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

a) Guarantee given by Banks on behalf of the Company - -

c) GST liabilties I input tax credit (subject to reconcilation as per gst act and the amount 
is not ascertain) - -

Note 33(2): Operating leases 
A. Leases as lessee 
The Corporation enters into cancellable operating lease arrangements with one party.The lease rentals paid/ received for the same are 

i. Amounts recognised in profit or loss 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Lease expense - -
- -

Initial direct costs incurred on these leasing transactions have been recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note: 34 Emoloyee Benefit Expenses: 

Post Employement Benefit Plans 

Defined Contribution Scheme 

The Company offers its employee's benefits under defined contribution plans in the form of providert fund and family pensic 
Fund and Family Pension Fund cover substantially all regular employees. Contribution is paid during the year into separated 
certain statutory/fiduciary type arrangements. Both the employees and the Company pay pre-determined contributions into 
and pension fund. The Contribution is normally based on a certain proportion of the employee's salary. 

A sum of Rs.33,30,628 /- (Previous Year Rs. Rs. 28,02,484 /-)has been charged to the profit and loss account in this respect, th 
components of which are tabulated below. 

Contribution to provident fund and others: 

Contributions to defined contribution plans Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Provident fund 26.80 22.47 
ESI 6.08 5.17 
Labour Welfare Fund 0.42 0.39 

Total 33.31 28.02 

Defined benefit plans 

Gratuity :In accordings with the applicable laws, the Company provides for the gratuity, a define retairement plan (the Gratuit 
eligible employees. The gratuity plan provides for alum sum payment to vested employees on the retairement (subject to the 
years of continuation employment), death, incapaciation or termination of employment, that are based on the last drown sali 
employment. Liabilities with regards to the gratuity plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the repoerting date and Cc 
annual contribution to the gratuity fund administred by the life insurance companies under their respective laws. 
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Movement in plan assets and plan liability: 

Particulars Presnt value of Fair Value of plan Net amount 
Obligation assets 

As at 1st April 20223 
Current service cost 11.26 . 11.26 
Interest expense/{income) 1.58 . 1.58 
Past service Cost . . -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 12.84 . 12.84 

Remeasurements 
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net finance income . . -
Actuarial {Gain)/ Loss arising from changes in the financial Assumption 0.86 . 0.86 
Actuarial {Gain)/ Loss arising from experience adjustments {3.35) . {3.35) 
Experience (gains)/losses . . -
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (2.50) (2.50) 

Contributions: . . . 
Employer . . . 
Plan participations . . . 
Benefit payments . . . 
As at 31st March, 2024 10.34 . 10.34 

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows: 

Particulars As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Present Value of Funded obligations 28.62 22.40 
Fair value of Plan Asstes -
Deficit of funded plan 28.62 22.40 

Unfunded plans -
Net (Assets)/ Liability Recoqnised 28.62 22.40 

Post -Employment benefits 

Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Discount rate 6.97% 7.22% 
Attrition Rate (PS: Oto 40) 3.80% 3.80% 
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Sensitivity analysis 
Impact on defined benefit obligation 
Particulars As at 31.03.2024 
Assumptions Discount rate Salary scalation rate 
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 
Impact on defined benefit obligation 25.45 32.55 32.06 25.74 

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 
Assumptions Discount rate Salary scalation rate 
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 
Impact on defined benefit obligation 20.02 25.31 25.19 20.07 

Sensitivity analysis is determined based on the expected movement in liability if the assumptions 3were not proved to be true on different 

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period. 

Employee benefit obligations 
The major categories of plants assets are as follows: 

Particulars As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Unquoted Investments: . . 
Gratuity Fund maintained by UC of India . . 
Total . . 

Note: 35 : Segment Reporting: 
(i) Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
("CODM") of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating 
segments, has been identified as the Managing Director Officer of the Company. The Company operates only in one Business Segment i.e. 
"Hotel Industry". All the business activity 10% or more of the total Tio of the company shall be stated in reportable Segments as per lndAS 
108 "Operating Segments". 

(Rs in Lacs) 
Nature of Product or Service As at As at 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
. 

a) Hotel Operating -Room Sales 2,504.92 2,372.92 
b) Food & Beverages 242.15 210.14 

Total 2,747.07 2,583.07 

(ii) The Company operates in one segment i.e. Hoteliering and within one geographical segment i.e. India 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Note 36 : Tax Expense 

al Amounts recoanised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
Current tax expense 

Current year 61.468 24.812 
-

Deferred tax expense 
Short /(excess) provision of earlier years -

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 12.090 6.505 

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 73.558 31.316 

bl Amounts recoanised in other comprehensive income 
Year ended 31.03.2024 Year ended 31.03.2023 

Particulars Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax 
benefit benefit 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - - - (8.1981 (2.1321 (6.0671 

- - - (8.1981 (2.1321 (6.0671 

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Profit before tax 245.872 99.247 
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (Current year 26.00% and Previous Year 26.00%) 61.468 24.812 
Tax effect of : 
Tax effect on non-deductible/ (Deductible) expenses (Net) 12.090 6.500 
Tax expense as per Statement of Profit & Loss 73.558 31.320 
Effective tax rate 29.92% 31.55% 

Movement in deferred tax balances 

Net balance 
Recognised in Recognised 

Net Balance as 
Deferred tax 

Particulars asat at March 31, Deferred tax asset 
April 1,2023 

profit or loss inOCI 
2024 

liability 

Deferred tax (Asset)/Liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets 233.56 12.09 - 245.65 - 245.65 
Actuarial gain or loss on defined benefit plan transferred to - - - - - -
Other Comprehensive Income 
Expenses allowed for tax purpose that were part of profit & - - - - - -
loss or vice versa 
Deferred tax (Asset)/Liabilities 233.556 12.090 - 245.646 - 245.646 

Net balance Net Balance as 
Particulars asat Recognised in Recognised at March 31, Deferred tax 

April 1, 2022 profit or loss inOCI 2023 liability Deferred tax asset 
Deferred tax (Asset)/Liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets 227.051 6.505 - 235.605 - 235.605 
Actuarial gain or loss on defined benefit plan transferred to - - (2.050) (2.050) - (2.050) 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Expenses allowed for tax purpose that were part of profit & - - - - - -
loss or vice versa 
Deferred tax (Assell/Liabililies 227.051 6.505 (2.0501 233.556 - 233.556 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 37 : Disclosures on Related party transactions 

List of Related Parties and Relationships: 

a) Key Management Personnel I Promoter Directors 

Name of related party Relation 

Dr. P.R.Hede Chairman 
Mr. Samit Hede Managing Director 

Dr. P.R.Hede -Mine Owner Associate Firm 
Green First Estate Private Limited Subsidiary Company 

Colaba Real Estate Pvt Ltd Group Company 
Hede Navigation Private Limited Group Company 

Star Galaxy Trades Pvt Ltd Group Company 
Glacier Trades Pvt Ltd Group Company 

Hede Consultancy Company Private Limited Group Company 
Rama Capfin Pvt. Ltd Group Company 

b) Transaction with Key managerial Personnel and Related Parties 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars Addition Substraction 
Net Increase I Year ended Year ended 

(Decrease) 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
Director Remunaration 
Mr. Samit Hede 48.00 48.00 48.00 36.00 

Loan Taken 
Hede Nevigation Pvt. Ltd. (Formally known as 

Jwala Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd.) 0.72 11.27 (11.99) - 11.85 

Loan Taken 
Rama Capfin Pvt. Ltd. 2.46 4.50 (2.04 - 2.04 

Loan Taken 
Hede Consultancy Company Pvt. Ltd. - - - -

Advance for agricultural Land-Goa Velha 
Glacier Trades Pvt. Ltd. 1,474.30 1,474.30 - 2,125.96 651.66 

Sale of Agricultiral Land· Thivim Goa 
Green First Estate Private Limited 19,946.00 19,946.00 19,946.00 - -

0.1% Debenture 
Green First Estate Private Limited 15,746.00 15,746.00 15,746.00 -
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note: 38 Other Disclosures persunat to Schedule Ill 

1. Traveling expenses includes Rs. 31.92 Lacs (previous year Rs. 36.05 Lacs) spent on Foreign Travel. 

2. Earnings & Outflow in foreign currency ( on accrual basis ) : -
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

EARNINGS 
Inflow I Earning in Foreign Cuurancv 127.090 36.080 
Outflow I Expenses in Foreign Cuurancy 0.000 1.268 

TOTAL EARNINGS 127.090 37.348 

Note 39 : Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management 

A. Accounting classification and fair values 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique: 
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly. 
Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data. 
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It 
does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable 
approximation offairvalue. 
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Financial Asset & Liabilities as at Routed through Profit & Loss Routed through OCI Carried at Amortised Cost 

31st March 2023 Non Current Current To1al Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 To1al Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 To1al Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 To1al 
Financial assets 
Investments 
-Mutual funds 2,325.497 2,325.497 2,325.497 2,325.497 

2,325.50 2,325.50 2,325.50 2,325.50 
Other Assets 
Security Deposits 113.00 113.00 113.00 113.00 
Trade receivables 123.68 123.68 123.68 123.68 
Cash and cash equivalents 207.65 207.65 207.65 207.65 
cash equivalents 5.61 5.61 5.61 5.61 
Other Advances 

113.00 2,662.43 2,m.43 2,325.50 2,325.50 449.94 449.94 

Financial liabilHies 
Bonowings 22,662.62 597.23 23,259.85 23,259.85 23,259.85 
Other Financial Liabilities 125.94 0.97 126.91 126.91 126.91 
Trade Payables 218.97 218.97 218.97 218.97 

22,788.56 817.17 23,605.73 23,605.73 23,605.73 

Financial Asset & Liabilities as a1 Routed through Profit & Loss Routed through OCI Carried at Amortised Cost 

31st March 2023 Non Current Current To1al Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 To1al Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 To1al Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 To1al 
Financial assets 

Investments 

-Mutual funds 43.372 43.372 43.372 43.372 

43.37 43.37 43.37 43.37 

Other Assets 

Security Deposits 113.00 113.00 113.00 113.00 

Trade receivables 74.73 74.73 74.73 74.73 

Cash and cash equivalents 25.54 25.54 25.54 25.54 

cash equivalents 5.47 5.47 5.47 5.47 

Other Advances 

113.00 149.11 262.11 43.37 43.37 218.73 218.73 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 1,058.22 486.31 1,544.53 1,544.53 1,544.53 

Other Financial Liabilities 126.05 0.87 126.91 126.91 126.91 

Trade Payables 275.70 275.70 275.70 275.70 

1,184.26 762.88 1,947.14 1,947.14 1,947.14 
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Note 40 : Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued) 

Market risk 
Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 

Currency risk 
The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its operating and financing activities. The functional currency of the 
Company is Indian Rupee. Our foreign exposures are mainly denominated in U.S. dollars. The USO exchange rate has 
changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future. The Company's business 
model incorporates assumptions on currency risks and ensures any exposure is covered through the normal business 
operations. This intent has been achieved in all years presented. The Company has put in place a Financial Risk 
Management Policy to Identify the most effective and efficient ways of managing the currency risks. 

Exposure to currency risk 
The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as below: 

(Foreign Currency in lacs) 
31st March 2024 USO In Rs 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables 
Net exposure for assets 

Financial liabilities 
Foreign Currency Borrowings (Including Current Maturities) 
Net exposure for liabilities 
Net exposure (Assets· Liabilities) 

31st March 2023 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables 
Net exposure for assets 

Financial liabilities 
Foreign Currency Borrowings (Including Current Maturities) 
Net exposure for liabilities 
Net exposure (Assets· Liabilities) 

Sensitivity analysis 

USO INR 

A reasonably possible strengthening I (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars at 31st March would have affected 
the measurement of financial instruments denominated in US dollars and affected profit or loss by the amounts shown below. 
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast 
sales and purchases. In cases where the related foreign exchange fluctuation is capitalised to fixed assets or recognised 
direclty in reserves, the impact indicated below may affect the Company's income statement over the remaining life of the 
related fixed assets or the remaining tenure of the borrowing respectively. 
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Effect in INR (before tax) 
For the year ended 31st March, 2024 
5% movement 
USD 
INR 

Effect in INR (before tax) 
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 
5% movement 
USD 

Profit or loss 
Strengthening Weakening 

Profit or loss 
Strengthening Weakening 

(b) Particulars of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date 

As at 31st March 2024 
(Foreign Currency in lacs) 

Particulars USO INR 
Trade Receivables - -
Less : Foreign currency forward contracts (Sell) - -
Unhedged Receivable - -

Trade Payables - -
Less : Foreign currency forward contracts (Buy) - -
Unhedged Payable - -

As at 31st March 2023 
(Foreign Currency in lacs) 

Particulars USO INR 
Trade Receivables - -
Less : Foreign currency forward contracts (Sell) - -
Unhedged Receivable - -
Borrowings -
Less : Foreign currency forward contracts (Buy) - -
Unhedged Payable - -
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Notes to Consolidated fmancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 41 : Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued) 

Financial Risk Management 
Risk management framework 

A wide range of risks may affect the Company's business and 
operational I financial performance. The risks that could have 
significant influence on the Company are market risk, credit risk 
and liquidity risk. The Company's Board of Directors reviews 
and sets out policies for managing these risks and monitors 
suitable actions taken by management to minimise potential 
adverse effects of such risks on the company's operational and 
financial performance. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a 
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 
Company's trade and other receivables, cash and cash 
equivalents and other bank balances. To manage this, the 
Company periodically assesses financial reliability of 
customers, taking into account the financial condition, current 
economic trends and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing 
of accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk in 
case of all the financial instuments covered below is resticted to 
their respective carrying amount. 

(a) Trade receivables 

The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of 
business. The Company considers factors such as credit track 
record in the market and past dealings with the Company for 
extension of credit to customers. The Company monitors the 
payment track record of the customers. Outstanding customer 
receivables are regularly monitored. The Company evaluates the 
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as 
its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries 
and operate in largely independent markets. The history of trade 
receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and doubtful 
debts. Therefore, the Company does not expect any material risk 
on account ofnon performance by any of the counterparties. 

Credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables is managed 
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 
monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the 
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. 

The Company considers the probablity of default upon initial 
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant 
increase in the credit risk on an ongoing basis through each 
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase 
in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occuring 
on assets as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the 
date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive 
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forwarding-looking information such as: 

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business 

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results 
of the counterparty 

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a 
significant change to the counterparties ability to meet its 
obligationiv) Significant imcrease in credit risk on other 
financial instruments of the same counterpartyv) Significant 
changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or 
in the quality of third party guarantees or credit enhancements 

Financial assets are written off when there is a no reasonable 
expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a 
repayment plan with the Company. When loans or receivables 
have been written off, the Company continues to engage in 
enforcement activity to attemp to recover the receivable due, 
When recoverables are made, these are recognised as incone in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade 
receivebles and loan from individual customers based on 
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment 
in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit 
loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss 
on collection of receivable is not material hence no additional 
provision considered. 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 42 : Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued) 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

Company's interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Borrowing bearing variable interest rate 597.23 486.31 
Total of Variable Rate Financial Liabilities 597.23 486.31 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments 
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments at the end of the reporting 

Cash flow sensitivity (net) Profit or loss 
INR 50 bp increase 50 bp decrease 
31st March 2024 
Variable-rate loan instruments {2.99) 2.99 
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (2.99) 2.99 

31st March 2023 
Variable-rate loan instruments 2.43 2.43 
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 2.43 2.43 

Other price risk 

The Company invests its surplus funds in various Equity and debt instruments . These comprise of mainly liquid schemes of mutual funds (liquid 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 43 : Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued) 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity is defined as the risk thatthe Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable 
price. The Company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In 
addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the 
Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities : 

Maturity Analysis of Significant Financial Liabilities (Rs. In Lacs 

31st March 2024 Total Upto 1 year 1·5 years More than 5 years 

Current Borrowings 597.23 597.23 - -
Trade and other payables 

,. 
218.96 175.55 43 -

Other Financial Liabilities (Current & Non Current) 108.12 108.12 - -

31st March 2023 Total Upto 1 year 1·5 years More than 5 years 

Current borrowings 486.31 486.31 - -
Trade and other payables 275.70 275.70 - -
Other Financial Liabilities (Current & Non Current) 101.94 101.94 - -
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Note 44 : Capital Management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and 

(Rs. in lacs) 
As at As at 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
Total Debt 1,513.85 1,544.53 
Total Equity 22,084.64 2,441.80 
Total debt to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 0.07 0.63 

Additional Notes to the Consolidated Financial statement:· 

The Company operates in one segment i.e. Hoteliering and within one geographical segment i.e. India. 

2 Previous Yea(s figures have been regrouped I reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current years 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Bhatter & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 131092W 

Sd/· 

D.H. Bhatter 
Proprietor 
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Place: Mumbai 
Date : 30th May, 2024 
UDIN: 2401693BKBYMA5045 

31st Annual Report 2023 - 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Sd/· 

Samit P. Hede 
Managing Director 
DIN No. : 014116899 

Sd/· 
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Sd/· 
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Director 
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